





\
\\;\:.‘..,',',,'///,,

Himalayan Everest
Insurance Limited

20
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
131t anfties ufddea-3ma. 06¢/o6R






I Q" s sz 20—

TABLE OF CONTENTS

S.N. PARTICULARS PAGE NO.
1. Annual Report of FY 2078-79 16
2. Independent Auditor's Report 26
3. Statement of Financial Position 32
4, Statement Of Profit or Loss 33
5. Statement of Other Comprehensive Income 34
6. Statement Of Changes In Equity 35
7. Statement of Cash Flows 37
8. Notes to The Financial Statements 39
9. WA SERIEd®! giae 103
10. 3R 3AMWE 1R B AHB 106
1. nf¥e a§ o00¢/oR BN ATHI AraaE T 107
12. enf¥& ay o0¢/o] BN TG Farg fdaxor 108
3. 3R a¥ ou¢/os] AT FHRICH WUH! gRec Frel fdaror 110
14,  f¥e af 00¢/oR B S WD T Y fREE 111
15, 3Ri® a¥ ou¢/owR BT AHfad dHH! I =I e 112
16. 3@ a¥ 06¢/oR B HIeR dHH M I R’ 13
7. Snfdd a¥ ouc/osR BT IhaR AT FGIMARY o @ 14
18.  nf¥e ay 2o0¢/oR B TATS dHIET M Tu fFAE 15
19. 3@ a¥ 06¢/oR B fAfdy dHrH! Mg T v 16
20.  3nfd@ ¥ o00¢/oR] BT TY TAT qIS TR A FF I 17
21, o7 ¥ 2ouclowR B FY MG 3T = @ 118
22. Independent Auditor's Report 155
23. Statement Of Financial Position 158
24, Statement of Profit or Loss 159
25. Statement of Cash Flow 160
26. Statement of Total Comprehensive Income 162
27. Statement of Changes In Equity 163
28. Notes to The Financial Statements 165
29. WA SEiEd®! giae 231
30, 32 MG R P IS 234
3. omfd® a¥ Q06¢/ow] B ATH ArFAE fRAE 235
32, 2fd® a¥ Q06¢foR BT TG ydTE faavur 236
33, onfde a¥ Q00¢/oR AT FIIEHT HUH! URacH ww faawor 238
34, fdd a¥ Q00¢foeR BT T IR AT Y A 240
35. o7 ¥ 2ou¢/owR B HHfRd AR I I e 241
36.  3nfdid ay Qo0¢/ow] DI TATS AR AT T 2™ 242
37 e a¥ Q00¢fowR BT HIER D! T I AW 243
38. oI ¥ Q00¢[os] BT IHER TAT SFIMARY oA =g e 244
39.  amfd® a¥ Qo6¢/owr BT fafdy e ey R 245
40,  ofde a¥ Q00¢foR BT UY T TG DT T JI R 246
41, 3Ri® a¥ o6¢low] P Y TP T T AN 247



._.“:\‘\xl,l'l'lg‘/'///

B
.’§‘

%

ferTeT TR =R~ fafies

P 3, f3.9.31. IerT 9%, BISHIS!, AT
B . Y8Y0%0, 484089

Sl I AEReT 991 T8 I

fAfd R199R3 W THHT RBAEIT TRE 1R . 31 Faed Rfad! 966 . 309 B MORIFER HH=H!
Sl aiffe deRe | =1 foRaa oM, i 3 w5 9 vy SR sote T &= 0@ © |

A : 0 TF R W FEER |

WM : R Arge, ATNTS, HEAvS! |

q9Y : faeF 99 99 |

Sfall a1 AEReT |9 S fava=g=

(@) 9M™= U

(q) S affes AR GIHT Saed GRfIET dhde RIEaSgRT URgd g 3NfYd a§ Q0u9¢/ow] B
e gfiaes some T TR T |

(R) Ve AT TFRe SRR B 5. BT e a9 00¢/oR P FEIRIEGHD] Ufide Afed IH@d,
AH AT R, e yare fdeRvl, SRICHT HUdT URac I AR sggdiee uIRd T |

(3) wIfde TRE SRR H! 6. B e 9§ 00¢/ow] B BFWMNIEHH! ides ded arIad,
A R, TR yare fJeRv, SeRIEHT WUl uRad R aqasry sgdiee Rd T |

(8) wuroe wffder ARG g@ifom g §ol & ,23.8%,36,000l B Ay URRMS T IS
¥ §,948¢,300- P AEE WR USH V&I B B AU gl Yolldl 098 UKD SRS g
. 3R,82,095 & B ywE I |

(4) nfF I¥ 00R/oco B HIFT BETRIEHD! FgH T Fstdr TRsfe sEmkEy affte RwRea W arfor
I T | (FTed SERiEd S T S UUE Al g g srlt arg g950)

(&) B & B GRS WRENEED qhdle Farosd dfifae! g 1 daes e 3 de1 998
FT IWRYAEED] dhale Haed Anfae gt T daes ug 2 $1 fMam e T o

(o) fafder |

(@) faew gwm@

(q) uos FRfde RERE ™ a8 oM gohr ol . 2,238%,36 900k @I ey (S5 TG A Uid) Ufcrerie
T 38T ®. §,94,¢,300- TWIARDI IFH IR RN T | TR A9 TRR SR &7 =1 SIfHAT 3718 IR/R

BIS ARIH IR ¥ FIAHRY IRRD] U BRI ARG ATEHDT T 316 H/H T | Y I R SR
T&T SR T IRl GOl gfg g 9are Wil gy Hawdd R FREEer e I |

() RN ywdEe FeEEEEe YaETs I REEeiel deuee aaHent Merswe g1 hRaes,
JuEe T G 91 gbia HUHT W8 gHINH T SdTed aiifders R&aR) J& T |

(3) fafay |

Jaree It




I 2 Q" s s 20 o  G—G—_—_
feaTaga vRw s~=R~ fafaes

map3, f3.9.31). T 9%, BIGHIEL, AT
BT . 48400, 484 0%9

AEIRY GG G SIFSRI

a. Y Re0q TF 3 W 9T IMffiee! fE™ UG WH TaETH dRIAGR R Rifew trs fdsaRsdre
MGATH WUHT X HFID] IR IRRER TITH RIfies o, P IR AMSEHT gdl HUHBT IRREAIES
e R 9 91 a1 I 71 e |

2 IR HEIgVIEERe SMhAl UR¥y i sMYeiRe uRemds a1 deReH garee) Rl avias ar
ANRIGATD] YAOYS a1 IR GG AT o 1Sy §1 TR TR® | IR MRl IRISHTY
qH YRGS FEIGHIGEwD] §HHT DMAT TMT TRR R Fhdo ARG IR ffad wu
ST Y IRB |

3. TEed d1 A< RGNS ThAC HHAID] IR B [BaTaH FReTHDH] HUAT &l WD RS FHHT
9T {4, Aae™ ™ a1 g de asae |

g, HYHeUHl fOUD IWRP! FHAT IWR G HaeA 9de T Seow@ WD ARG a1 FadHIEe
gfafe F1geh W1 T ke A |UET 91 {39 R AdeM T 9eeee |

y. vohod Ay Ay Rie F=wE R ABGUHIeRs Bobhe TH dBdl [V arR 9 T 9l
FRIMAT © &7 3rTa sreaerers foRad wuAT HRe! AmarTs Red sRiTea ga=1 fRgu-e ar Emalil:
dhruba@hei.com.np #1 UoTSH ¥a] g9 |

&  IREAIEE Ah RG] A a1 YTTewh] T Gaedd a1 oie died! Afhale 9itd wuAl St
fes® |

O, I AMGRIGI BN D] AAES RId FRTGITN GRIGT FHIWE T80 IREgT d SRR
HEGHITERSTs AR IRD | WY ARd TGRS SN AAEe H. 2¢42042043 1 1¢oR0IRB6Y
AT GHS IR FIES |

¢.  TAf¥ Row’/23/03 T THfAD BN AP TR SIS TR 8 O |

. dIffe Uftded, 0w’ TUT HHRIHW TR SMGRID! B HFAD] Diad HRATGY, ATARTSHT
S T a1 www.hei.com.np AT &1 Hagg B | TG AN AN BT THRAT 7 T T4 95
Feam TRfeggT faw oy R |

qo. HaTodewdl A R SRIAGH! I FHIA Fared ftgael |fiared, oTunTs, SIeHrs
gHrRE RS |

9. {9 T I B BRG] HH U, 083 JHINGH IO |




\\1]
:0‘&:\‘\:“""1!('/(///

feaTaaa vRw s~ fafaes

P 3, f31.19.31), I 9%, BISHTEL, AT
BT . 4840R%0, 484089

il

EEMERE
RGBT T R TATT T e NURCE ] S— A RAUE Fe RREAID!
I, AR e fRead TRE SRING f3fcsdl 0 o3 R T guarad! o g St afie
HERY FHHT IURYT g7 NI TRYPI yaer o+ |
I : IREAT S WS Proe Tgeral | (A9 H& Ja9 T A1 d¥ U WRgd g A B 1)

ga yde =
Ol dfa
ferTeaa oRw s~ fafhes
ATaPT3, f51.19.37. FaRT 9%, HBISHTEY, AUTA
Bl . 484080, 4840’9
P - T<H
s Sares afafd,
RaeTT TRe =R .
ATINTS, HISHUS! |
vz : gfaffa fge e R |
B,
et A1 /mRE. 997 H....... T AT ... B T HHAID IRRYAID! IRITTS 008 WE oA
R T gHaRSE fem g skt aiffes wmemRor W 7 % gl waw SuRerd WS sowe dun Aok webrht g=
THFT MUHTS I FUFT FRI[EHN Thale FT {57 den Ada™ Tl a1 fRtewt i/
TN Ho T T BFIATDT IARATAT Heeeeesserrensons IR THTOTTT o 1 Raur . ... @Ts ARI/TE ufAfAfy
FAHIT TR geTge! glot |
[RECED
gfafAfe fges woer e, TREd -
BRIERD] TH: M -
IR YA S
IR . fRaumEr =i
IESEIEESE IR YA .
fafa: foH... ...
IR HE@A

Al : Tp9=l 9fe W] T Seodd TRAT X IWRYA] AeHD] IhIols UaT PR TRAT W] BRI & RS |




—— )% 1/
REPORT 2078-079

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Mahendra Krishna Shrestha

Chairman

Mr. Bhubal Rai

Director Director

Mr. Hem Raj Thapa
Director

Mr. Rajiv Sapkota
Advisor

Mr. Vijit Krishna Shrestha

Mr. Ram Prasad Khanal
Director

Mr. Ajaya Ratna Sthapit
Director-Public

Mr. Bijay Kumar Pant
Advisor




o

# .
Insurance Limited

Jll'w
’ \

MANAGEMENT TEAM

Vijaya Bahadur Shah
CEO
Kamal Gautam R. Naidu Ratan Kumar Lama
Sr. DCEO CT0 DCGM
Sanjay Aryal Anju Shrestha Kashi Nath Burlakoti
DGM DGM DGM




— ) (1

REPORT 2078-079

aifaer fFATema S g &, o, T gWE T &, [ 1 g quies:

Gross Claim
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Total (Rs.) 3,614,182,055 1,286,314,512 875,024,828 2,648,692,019 1,788,519,363
Net Profit
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Networth
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No of Policies
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Total (Nos.) 114,350.00 151,789.00 152,041.00 193,226.00 213,030.00
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Gross Premium Vs Net Premium
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Gross Premium (Rs)  1,792,815,253 = 2,271,322,691  2,315,735,985  2,366,980,270 = 3,276,668,749

Net Premium (Rs.) 425,310,273 668,464,063 664,294,173 698,532,516 850,691,131

B Gross Premium Net Premium

Portfoliowise- Premium Income Composition FY 2078/079
5.20% 0.0002%
13.64%

2.72%
2591%

25.68%

14.55%

12.29%

= Fire Marine = Motor Engineering = Aviation Miscellaneous = Agricultural = Micro
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

An eventful year completed and | hope all of you are equally excited as | am about your company and the
tremendous opportunity that lies ahead of us. With your approval, we proudly and successfully completed
the first ever merger in the insurance industry in Nepal, with the merger of Himalayan General Insurance
and Everest Insurance. The merger process was also timely and swiftly completed with Himalayan Everest
Insurance Limited (HEI) successfully starting joint operations on 1st Shrawan 2079. | would like to once
again thank all the Joint Merger Committee members, Auditors, IT Consultants and all the employees of
the Himalayan General Insurance and Everest Insurance Company who gave their time and valuable inputs

to enable the successful merger and formation of HEI

With the mergerand as HEI, there are now opportunities available tous, that would have been unimaginable
as stand alone companies. But | will also admit that there have been challenges in the process and we
continue to address various challenges of bringing together two companies and two cultures. But as HEI,
we intend to continue to stay “Ahead of the Curve” and strive to address all challenges and opportunities

with equal energy and commitment.

As | have said befare, we are in the service industry and our people and our company culture is our biggest
asset. With this in mind, | would like to share with all our stakeholders that we intend to put a renewed
focus in these aspects as we now build HEI and move towards a brighter future.

\We strive to stay ahead of the curve and together our future is bright.

Mahendra Krishna Shrestha
Chairman

2078/12/29
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CEO’S PERSPECTIVE

Warm welcome to the Chairman and all members of the Board of Directors, Shareholders, Regulators,
distinguished guests, invitees and well-wishers of the company present in the 29th Annual General
Meeting of the Company.

In last couple of Years, the penetration of insurance has increased in non- life insurance market of Nepal
specifically due to Micro Insurance, Medical, Motor and Agriculture/Cattle Insurance. Nepalese Insurance
Market is in the rise. To capitalize this we strive to maintain our competitive advantage in providing
quality products and prompt claim settlement service with innovative technology and easy accessibility
to our valuable clients.

We have focused our activities towards unparallel service through use of easy and accessible platform. In
line with the same, we are developing digital platform as one of our long term strategy to make insurance
more convenient and affordable to the larger population of Nepal.

All the activities of the company are focused to create better value to our stakeholders. In order to achieve
the same in long term, all efforts are directed in the same direction and company is investing substantially
for Human Capital Development, Technology, Product and operational infrastructure.

Currently, we have been providing services through 78 different branches and we will continue to expand
our reach through further expansion of branch network based on our long- term strategy and competitive
advantage.

The construction of state of the art Corporate Building is ongoing and we expect to complete all civil and
interior works by first half of the upcoming fiscal year. On completion of our Corporate Building, there will
be better work environment to our staff and enhanced services to our customers.

| also take this opportunity to express my gratitude on behalf of the company to Nepal Insurance Authority,
Banks and Financial Institution, Regulatory Autharities, Reinsurers, Brokers, Surveyors, Employees at all
levels and well wishers for their mentoring, support and guidance through which we have made 29 Years
of company's journey a memorable one.

Thank you.

2079/12/29

Vijaya Bahadur Shah
Chief Executive Officer

15
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Annual Report of FY 2078-79 presented by Board of Directors in the 29th
Annual General Meeting of Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited
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Respected Shareholders,

We, on behalf of the Board of Directors of Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited, cordially welcome all shareholders and
invitees to the 29th Annual General Meeting of the company.

Before presentation of Last Year's Financial Statements of Himalayan General Insurance Company Limited & Everest
Insurance Company Limited (Hereafter Jointly called “Company”) for your approval, we would like to provide a brief
summary regarding the merger process of former Himalayan General Insurance Company Limited (HGI) and Everest
Insurance Company Limited (EIC). For the purpose of merger, a joint merger committee (JMC) with representation from
both companies was formed having the following composition:

Joint Merger Committee :

S.No Name Representation
1. Mr. Ajay Ratna Sthapit Director- Himalayan General Insurance Co. Ltd.
2. Mr. Bikram Krishna Shrestha Director- Himalayan General Insurance Co. Ltd.
3. Mr. Vijit Krishna Shrestha Director- Himalayan General Insurance Co. Ltd.
4. Mr. Bhuwal Rai Director- Everest Insurance Co. Ltd.
5. Mr. Hem Raj Thapa Director- Everest Insurance Co. Ltd.
6. Mr. Ram Prasad Khanal Director- Everest Insurance Co. Ltd.
7. Mr. Vijaya Bahadur Shah CEO- Himalayan General Insurance Co. Ltd.
8. Mr. Kamal Gautam CEO- Everest Insurance Co. Ltd.
9. Mr. Dhruba Pd. Neupane Company Secretary- Himalayan General Insurance Co. Ltd.
10. Ms. GitaK. C. Company Secretary- Everest Insurance Co. Ltd.

As recommended by the JMC, both Companies (HGI & EIC) held a Special General Meeting (5GM) on 2nd Ashad 2079 for
discussion and approval regarding the merger. The SGM unanimously passed the resolution of Merger as recommended
by Merger Committee with the swap ratio of each 1 share of Everest Insurance Company Limited with 0.85 Share of
Himalayan General Insurance Company Limited. Post approval of Merger from the SGM, necessary arrangements and
approval were taken from Regulatory Authorities for the 1st ever merger in the insurance industry in Nepal.

Following approval from the Nepal Insurance Autharity and Office of the Company Registrar, we proudly and successfully
started joint operation of Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited (HEI) from 1st Shrawan 2079 and it took only 73 number
of days from signing the agreement for merger of the two companies.

Complete sets of financial statement for the FY 2078/79 of former Himalayan General Insurance Company Limited &
Everest Insurance Company Limited has been prepared, Audited and Approved by Nepal Insurance Authority and same
is placed for approval by the AGM.

Here for the discussion and approval of Shareholders, we have consolidated the respective figures and prepared a single
report of BOD of Directors pursuant to (109) of the Company Act 2063 and standalone financial statement of both the
companies along with annexures have been prepared and presented.

We are pleased to place before you the 29th Annual report of the HGI & 28th Annual Report of EIC prepared pursuant
to section (109) of the Companies Act, 2063 for the Financial Year 2078-79 including Auditor’s Report, Balance Sheet,
Profit and Loss Account, Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow Statement and notes to annual account forming
integral part of the Financial Statements, along with special purpose Financial Statements as per the Directives of Nepal
Insurance Authority, Company's current financial year activities & future action plans, as well as the Director’s Report.

16



1. Financial Results:
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FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
S.No Particulars Indicators HGI EIC Total HGI EIC Total Growth (%)
1 No of Policies Issued Nos. 70,072 18,427 188,499 91,722 101,504 193,226 -2%
2 Gross Premium Income Rs’000° 2,075,332 1,201,337 3,276,668 1335640 1,031,333 2,366,979 38%
3 Net Premium Income Rs'000’ 401,403 449,288 850,691 278,012 420,520 698,532 22%
4 RI Commission Income Rs'000’ 197,989 181,378 379,366 14,307 140,827 255135 49%
5 No of Claims Paid Nos. 6,292 6,357 12,649 6,990 5,879 12,869 -2%
6 Gross Claims Paid Rs'000’ 764,811 1,023,708 1,788,519 1,754,324 894,367 2,648,692 -32%
7 Net Claims Paid Rs'000’ 170,532 413,231 583,762 198,763 273,673 472,436 24%
8 Outstanding Claim Nos. 5,605 5,516 121 3,617 4,217 7,834 42%
9 Outstanding Claim Rs'000’ 156,888 290,124 447,012 1251 107,273 232,385 92%
10  Employee Expenses Rs'000’ 125,526 144,753 270,279 119,210 115,257 234,468 15%
1 Other Expenses Rs'000’ 83,871 72,754 156,625 87,242 55,099 142,341 10%
12 Income from Investment Rs'000’ 152,330 150,798 303,128 151,636 185,632 337,268 -10%
13 Net Profit (as per NFRS) Rs'000’ 150,755 9,565 160,320 99,091 159,367 258,458 -38%
14 Investment Rs'000" 1,677959 1,829,029 3,506,987 1,861,880 1,758,006 3,619,886 -3%

Solvency Margin:

The solvency ratio is the measurement of the company’s ability to meet its operational obligations and short term and
long-term liabilities. As per solvency margin directive issued by Nepal Insurance Authority, the solvency ratio should
be more than 1.5. Solvency margin of both the companies stands well above the prescribed minimum as on Ashad End

2079 as under.

S.No. Company Name Solvency Margin
1. Himalayan General Insurance Company Limited 414
2. Everest Insurance Company Limited 316

2. Review of Previous Year’s Performance F/Y 2078-79 (F/Y 2021-22):

The company’s market share in Financial Year 2078-79 among general insurance companies in terms of gross premium
was 8.39%. The company recorded a Gross Direct Premium of Rs. 3.27 billion (3 Arba 27 Crore) in FY 2078-79 as compared

to Rs.2.36 billion (2 Arba 36 Crore) in FY 2077-78.

The major premium contributor for 2078-79 was the miscellaneous portfolio which comprises primarily of GPA, HIP,
Medical, Burglary, All Risk, Group Hospital, and International Travel. This portfolio contributed 25.91% to our gross
premium income as compared to 20.75% in the previous year. Specifically, Fire, Marine, Motor, Engineering, Aviation,

Miscellaneous, Agriculture and Micro portfolios cantributed 13.64%, 2.72%, 25.68%, 12.29%, 14.55%, 25.91%, 5.20%
and 0.0002% respectively in the FY 2078-79

Gross Premium Income:

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
S.No Portfolio HGI EIC Total Weight HGI EIC Total Weight
1 Fire 236,424,802 210,546,971 446,971,773  13.64% 150,659,526 183172,839 333,832,365 14.10%
2 Marine 24,606,862 64,640,672 89,247,534 2.72% 20,527,779 55,415,547 75,943,326 3.21%
3 Motor 389,969,657 451,455,897 841425554  25.68% 286,016,000 420404485 706,420,485 29.84%
4 Engineering 177153,396 225,604,084 402757480  12.29% 61,629,065 188,974,635 250,603,700 10.59%
5 Aviation 473,324,756 3,352,448 476,677,204  14.55% 293,748,813 236,685  293,985498 12.42%
6  Miscellaneous 642,184,437 206,911,550 849,096,027  25.91% 374,555,893 116,685,697 491,241,590 20.75%
7 Agricultural 131,662,736 38,822,923 170,485,659 5.20% 96,431,857 33,460,335 129,892,192 5.49%
8  Micro 5,223 2,293 7516 0.0002% 52,071,942 32,989,172 85,0614 3.59%
Total 2,075,331,869  1,201,336,880  3,276,668,749 100%  1,335,640,875 1,031,339,395 2,366,980,271 100.00%

17
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Cross Claim Settlement during the FY 2078 -79 was Rs. 1.78 billion as compared to Rs. 2.64 billion in FY 2077- 78. With
the continued support from our reinsurance partners, we are able to consistently settle claims promptly, which is at the
core of our promise to our customers.

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
S.No Portfolio HGI EIC Total HGI EIC Total

1 Fire 146,800,515 209,471,444 356,271,959 97,186,492 140,564,402 237,750,894
2 Marine 12,586,393 28,690,661 41,277,053 3,491,998 17,801,509 21,293,507
3 Motor 131,618,817 333,717,799 465,336,616 76,219,431 175,287,775 251,507,207
4 Engineering 4,303,973 262,675,563 266,979,536 1,066,841,982 332,250,898  1,399,092,880
5 Aviation 241,515,588 = 241,515,588 - - -
6 Miscellaneous 121,484,992 155,269,015 276,754,007 128,519,758 101,988,618 230,508,376
7 Agriculture 94,559,202 33,853,988 128,413,190 30,093,010 17,249,561 47,342,571
8 Micro 11,941,571 29,843 11,971,414 351,971,584 109,225,000 461,196,584

Total 764,811,051  1,023,708,312  1,788,519,363  1,754,324,256 894,367,763  2,648,692,019

Re-insurance:

The company has reinsurance treaty with the following reinsurance companies:

S.No Name of reinsurers

—_

General Insurance Corporation of India, India

2 Trust International Insurance and Reinsurance Company, Bahrain
3 Zep Re (PTA Reinsurance Company) Nairobi, Kenya

4 Kenya Reinsurance Corporation Ltd., Nairobi, Kenya

5  East Africa Reinsurance Corporation Ltd., Nairobi, Kenya
6  Abu Dhabi National Insurance Company

7 The New India Assurance Company Limited

8  GIC Bhutan Reinsurance Company Limited

9  Asian Reinsurance Company Limited

10 AXA-XL

11 Hannover Reinsurance

12 Cica Reinsurance, India

13 IGI Reinsurance

14 Royal Insurance Corporation of Bhutan Ltd

Re-insurance Brokers:

The company reinsurance is placed through the following brokers who have previous track record in their respective
areas of operation.

1 K. M. Dastur Reinsurance Brokers Pvt. Ltd., India

2 J. B. Boda Reinsurance Brokers Pvt. Ltd., India
3 Marsh Limited, London

4 J. B. Boda and Co. (U. K.) Limited, London

5 Unilight Reinsurance Brokers Pvt. Ltd., India
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3. Impact of National and International Events on the Company’s Business:

COVID-19 has presented severe challenges to every industry, including the insurance industry. Despite of the post
pandemic difficulties, some progress has continued to be made in the insurance industry during these challenging
times. On the whole, market penetration has increased, reaching new individuals as well as new areas of Nepal. In line
with the new federal structure of the country, the company plans to strengthen provincial offices in all seven provinces
which will further expand it's reach and the reach of insurance services.

Special note on Climatic Risk

As per current directive of Insurance Authority, all the insurers should disclose and quantify the climatic risk on annual
basis. In the year 2078-79, claim incurred due to Climatic risk can be shown in the table below:

S.N  Particulars Gross Claim Net Claim
1. Fire Portfolio 356,271,959 39,340,814

4. GPI Since the Last Fiscal Year till Preparation of the Annual Report and Future Plans:

The comparative premium underwritten during the Fiscal Year 2079-80 is tabulated below:

S.No Particulars FY 2079-80 (up to Magh) FY 2078-79 (up to Magh) Increase/Decrease
1 Gross Premium Income 1,698,225,761 1,783,049,044 (4.76%)

The company is continuously optimizing its portfolio and as such some of the portfolios specially agriculture/cattle has
been in decline.

Future Plan:

We are now Himalayan Everest, a much stronger and bigger company with ambitions that we would not have
attempted as separate individual companies. We have visions of being a company with easy accessible nationwide
presence. Whether through branches or through technological advances, we want to reach and expand our customer
base significantly.

As Himalayan Everest, we have also been able to reevaluate our position in the market, the available opportunities and
are laying the foundations for a very exciting future for us as a company and for our customers and shareholders.

5. Industrial and Business Relations:

As a socially responsible company, on part of stake holders’ communication, all the information and disclosure
required pursuant to the guiding Acts, Rules & Regulations has been submitted, disclosed and published duly. Also,
communication with stakeholders through different medium has been maintained throughout the year 2078-79.

We are committed to strengthening the relationships within and between our teams which is critical to our future
growth strategy and direction. We are also continuing our focus on bringing in new talent who are aligned with the
company'’s values and goals. In addition, we continue to invest in capacity building to help our teams to do their best.

6. Changes in the Board of Directors and Senior Management:
In the review year 2078-79, The followings are the changes in BODs of respective companies:

Changes in BODs of Ms. Himalayan General Insurance Company Limited

S.No Incoming Director Outgoing Director

1. Mr. Bijay Kumar Pant Mr. Dasarath Lal Shrestha

Changes in BODs of Ms. Everest Insurance Company Limited

S.No Incoming Director Outgoing Director

1. - Ms Shamjhana Sharma-Independent Director

Formation of Board of Directors Post to Approval of Merger from Special General Meeting of Himalayan General
Insurance Company Limited & Everest Insurance Company Limited.
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S.No Designation

1. Mr. Mahendra Krishna Shrestha-Chairman
Mr. Bhubal Rai- Director
Mr. Vijit Krishna Shreshta- Director

Mr. Ram Prasad Khanal- Director

Mr. Hem Raj Thapa- Director

oW N

Mr. Ajaya Ratna Sthapit- Director

In addition to above, the following are nominated as advisors to the Board.
1, Mr. Bijay Kumar Pant - Advisor

2. Mr. Rajiv Sapkota - Advisor

7. Major Factors affecting Business:

1. Post Pandemic Effect.

Changes in Acts & Regulatory Directives

Political Instability

»owoN

Credit Crunch
5. Volatile Economic Activities
8. Dividend:

We have proposed Bonus Share @ 2.75% amounting to Rs. 61,598,300 and Cash Dividend of Rs. 3,242,016 for tax
purpose on Bonus Share from the profit of Former Himalayan General Insurance Company Limited. In case of Everest
Insurance Company Limited, no dividend has been declared from the profit of Fiscal Year 2078/79 and Net Profit after
allocation of regulatory reserve has been transferred to retained earnings.

9. Appointment/ Re- appointment of Auditor:

The 110™" meeting of Audit committee held on 23" Falgun 2079 has recommended M/s N. Amatya & Co. as its Statutory
auditor for FY 2079/80. Fee of total Nrs. 600,000 (Rupees Six Lakh) exclusive of Tax has been proposed to Auditor for
Statutory Audit, Tax Audit & Long Form Audit Report (LFAR).

10. Share Capital:
The following table shows the company's paid-up share capital As on Ashad Ended Fiscal Year 2078-79.
S.No Particular Paid Up Capita (Nrs)
1 Himalayan Gevneral Insurance Company 173,509,100
2 Everest Insurance Company 1,254,620,664

Currently, Paid up share capital of Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited amounted to Nrs 2,23,99,37,000 with the
adjustment of swap ratio of 1:0.85 (EIC & HGI Respectively). The company has planned to meet the minimum capital
requirement prescribed by Nepal Insurance Authority through Bonus Share.

Minimum paid up capital prescribed by Nepal Insurance Authority is at present of Rs 250 Crore for Non-Life Insurance
Company.

11. Conclusion:

We would like to express our sincere gratitude to Government of Nepal, Nepal Insurance Authority, Office of Company
Registrar, Nepal Rastra Bank, Securities Board of Nepal, Nepal Stock Exchange Limited, CDS and Clearing Limited, Inland

Revenue Department, NMB Capital Ltd, Stock Brokers, Commercial / Development Banks and Finance companies, our
clients, Reinsurance Companies, Brokers, Agents, Investors, Employees at all levels and well-wishers who have helped
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us directly or indirectly in the growth of company. Also, we would like to express our sincere gratitude to our agents and
surveyors.

The efforts shown by all the employees of the company during the period is highly praiseworthy; a special mention to
them for their commitment to serve and excel.

We would like to thank all the shareholders and other attendees present in the AGM for your valuable presence and
active participation.

Thank You,
Ajaya Ratna Sthapit, Mahendra Krishna Shrestha
Director Chairman

Date: 2079/11/23
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Provisions related to Section 109 (4) Companies Act, 2063
(First Amendments, 2074):

a. Details of Forfeited Shares:
Company has not forfeited any shares till the reporting date.
b. Disclosure of transaction with Subsidiary/ Associates:
Company has no Subsidiary/ Associates till the reporting date.
C. Information provided by the Principal Shareholders in the last fiscal year:

No such information was provided during the reporting period.

d. Disclosure on the share transaction & ownership by the Board Members and Employees of the Company in the
last fiscal year: None

e. Disclosure of information on involvement of any Board Member or their Close Relatives having personal inter-
est on any agreement done by the company during the last fiscal year: None

f Disclosure on Shares buy back of the company: None.

g. Internal Control System, Risk Management system & its effectiveness:
The internal control system of the company is designed in such a way to achieve following organizational
objectives:
a. Operational Effectiveness and Efficiency,
b. Reliable Financial Reporting and
C. Compliance with Laws, Regulations and Policies.

At the organizational level, Himalayan General Insurance Company has formed Internal Audit Committee headed
by public director Mr. Ajay Ratna Sthapit. The company has appointed an independent Chartered Accountant
firm M/s G.P. Rajbahak & Co. as Internal Auditor.

In case of Everest Insurance Company limited, Internal Audit Committee headed by Director Mr. Ram Prasad
Khanal. The company has appointed an independent Chartered Accountant firm M/s GSN & Associates as
Internal Auditor.

The internal audit report issued by the internal auditor is presented to the Audit Committee for discussion.
The comments and suggestions from the Auditor and Audit Committee has been implemented regularly. The
company strongly believes that, the implementation of suggestions of internal audit report strengthens the
overallinternal control system of the organization. Company has been following Corporate Governance Directive,
2075 issued by the Nepal Insurance Authority. It has helped to make the internal control system and good
governance mare effective.

The Company has also formed a Risk Management Committee for effective management of internal as well as
external risk.

h. Disclosure on the total Management expenses on last fiscal year:

Everest Insurance Company has spent Rs.217,506,758 (Twentyone Crore Seventy-five Lakh Six Thousand Seven
Hundred Fifty-eight Rupees) and Himalayan General Insurance has spent Rs. 209,397,538 (Twenty Crore Ninety
Three Lakh Ninety Seven Thousand Five Hundred Thirty Eight Rupees) as total management expenses in the FY
2078-79 and

Details of members of Audit committee, their remuneration, allowances and facilities, action taken, and any
recommendations made by the committee:

In case of Himalayan General Insurance Company Limited in the review period, company has constituted 3
members audit committee each time under the Chairmanship of Public Director Mr. Ajay Ratna Sthapit and
Independent Director Mr. Dasarath Lal Shrestha, Director Mr. Vijit Krishna Shrestha, Public Director Ms. Nura
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Kumari Sharma & Independent Director Mr. Bijay Kumar Pant as members. The meeting fee for member of audit
committee meeting has been fixed at Rs. 7000 (Seven Thousand) inclusive of Tax per member.

Details of fees are as under:

Mr. Ajaya Ratna Sthapit Rs.63,000
Mr. Vijit Krishna Shrestha Rs.28,000
Mr. Dasarath Lal Shrestha Rs.28,000
Ms. Nura Kumari Sharma Rs.28,000
Mr. Bijay Kumar Pant Rs. 7,000

Where as in case of Everest Insurance Company Limited company has constituted 3 members audit committee
under the Chairmanship of Director Mr. Ram Prasad Khanal, Director Mr. Hem Raj Thapa, as member and CA Kapil
Adhikari as professional member. The meeting fee for member of audit committee meeting has been fixed at
Rs.3,500 (Three Thousand Five Hundred) inclusive of Tax per member.

Details of Fees are as under:
Mr. Ram Prasad Khanal Rs.28,000
Mr. Hem Raj Thapa Rs.28,000

The actions made by the audit committee are as follows,

1. Review of Statutory Audit Report and recommended to management for the improvements, as required.
2. Review of Internal Audit Report and recommend to management for the improvements, as required.

3. Recommend the appointment of Statutory Auditor to the AGM.

4. Review of Internal Control System of the company and provide suggestions for improvement.

Disclosure on amount receivables from Directors, Managing Directors, CEQ, Company's Principal Shareholders
or any firm, company or any other organization associated with such individuals or their close relatives:

None.
Disclosures on Salary, Allowances and facilities provided to the Directors, Managing Directors, CEO:

Detail of Salary Allowances and Facilities Pravided to CEO of Himalayan General Insurance Company Limited:

S.N. Particulars CEO Tenure Amount Other Facilities

Mr. Sushil Bajracharya Shrawan- Magh 2078 7181,035 Vehicle with Driver, Fuel,
Salary & Insurance, Telephone, &

Allowances My, Vijaya Bahadur Shah  Falgun 2078 to Ashad 2079 2,051,624 Statutory Bonus & Other as per
Terms of Contract

—_

Detail of Salary Allowances and Facilities Provided to CEO- Mr. Kamal Gautam of Everest Insurance Company
Limited:

S.N. Particulars CEO

1 Salary & Allowance 7,314,827.86

Vehicle with Driver, Fuel, Insurance, Telephone, & Statutory Bonus & Other as per Terms of

2 Other Benefits Contract

Remaining Dividend amount to be claimed by shareholders:

Himalayan General Insurance Company Limited:

« Remaining unpaid dividend of Rs. 5,720,316 has been booked as payable and shown in Annexure 22, Current
Liabilities.

Everest Insurance Company Limited:

Thereis nodividend payable as on Ashad End 2079. The detail has been shown in Annexure 22, Current Liabilities.
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m. Disclosure on purchase and sale of property as per clause 141: None.
n. Disclosure on transaction between associated companies as per clause 175: None.
0. Any other details to be disclosed in the report as per the companies act and existing laws:

During the year company had a market share of 8.39% (Approx) in the General Insurance Industry of the country.
p. Disclosure on the provision of the directive 86 as per Companies Directives, 2072:
The company has been aonly abiding by the provision made in the Company's Directives 2072.

g. Other issues: None.
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HIMALAYAN GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED ASHAD 32, 2079 (JULY 16, 2022)
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Amount in NRs.

For the year ended

Notes Ashad 32, 2079 Ashad 31, 2078
(July 16, 2022) (July 15, 2021)
ASSETS
Intangible assets 4 9,090,559 6,701,583
Property, plant and equipment 5 175,103,649 79,175,041
Investment properties 6 = -
Deferred tax assets 7 53,241,535 38,124,779
Investment in subsidiaries 8 = -
Investment in associates 9 - -
Investments 10 1,843,736,972 1,861,879,716
Loans 1l = -
Reinsurance assets 12 2,054,311,737 1,284,917,823
Current tax assets (net) 21 59,549,584 51,200,983
Insurance receivables 13 221,972,587 196,631,045
Other assets 14 28,635,772 56,731,138
Other financial assets 15 146,941,880 92,393,337
Cash and cash equivalents 16 347,328,744 66,345,464
TOTAL ASSETS 4,939,913,019 3,734,100,909
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital 17(a) 1,173,509,100 1100,336,700
Share application money pending allotment 17(b) - -
Share premium 17(c) - -
Insurance fund 17(d) 677,723,176 616,982,169
Catastrophe reserves 17(e) 26,049,183 19,009,262
Retained earnings 17(f) 68,434,242 82,972,081
Other equity 17(g) 14142177 125,243,440
TOTAL EQUITY 2,059,857,878 1,944,543,652
LIABILITIES
Provisions 18 8,481,680 21,631,380
Gross insurance contract liabilities 19 2,430,289,758 1,566,232,439
Deferred tax liabilities 7 - -
Insurance payables 20 200,305,095 32,459,771
Current tax liabilities (net) 21 - -
Loans and borrowings 22 = 39,244,567
Other financial liabilities 23 102,300,158 46,883,444
Other liabilities 24 138,678,450 83,105,656
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,880,055,141 1,789,557,257
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 4,939,913,019 3,734,100,909
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
For and on behalf of Himalayan General Insurance Company Limited.
Mahendra Krishna Shrestha  Vijit Krishna Shrestha Ajaya Ratna Sthapit Hem Raj Thapa As per our Report of even date
Chairman Director Director Director
CA Nem Lal Amatya
Bhubal Rai Ram Prasad Khanal Vijaya Bahadur Shah Bikash Upadhaya Partner
Director Director Chief Executive Officer  Head-Finance Dept. N. Amatya & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Place : Kathmandu
Date: 2079/09/26
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HIMALAYAN GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED ASHAD 32, 2079 (JULY 16, 2022)

Amount in NRs.

For the year ended
Notes Ashad 32, 2079 Ashad 31, 2078
(July 16, 2022) (July 15, 2021)
INCOME
Gross earned premiums 25 1,734,572,615 1,357,597,816
Premiums ceded 26 (1,395,856,787) (1,088,854,596)
Net earned premiums 27 338,715,828 268,743,220
Commission income 28 165,278,713 108,557,832
Investment income 29 148,700,893 151,636,718
Net gains/ (losses) on fair value changes 30 - -
Net realised gains/ (losses) 31 1,020,612 33,190,977
Other income 32 3,811,451 6,201,903
TOTAL INCOME 657,527,497 568,330,650
EXPENSES
Cross claims paid 33 764,811,051 1,754,324,256
Claims ceded 34 (594,279,499) (1,555,561,462)
Gross change in contract liabilities 35(a) 523,298,064 (810,401,904)
Change in contract liabities ceded to reinsurers 35(b) (491,322,200) 826,823,266
Net claims paid 202,507416 215,184,156
Commission expenses 36 28,681,699 15,602,037
Service fees 37 5,182,852 3,469,114
Employee benefits expenses 38 115,156,619 119,210,294
Depreciation and amortization expenses 39 10,383,752 8,191,577
Impairment losses 40 = -
Other expenses 41 80,094,596 57,338,622
Finance cost 42 737,577 2,640487
TOTAL EXPENSES 442,744,511 421,636,287
Net profit/(loss) for the year before share of net profits of associates 214,782,986 146,694,363
accounted for using equity method and tax
Share of net profit of associates accounted using equity method 9 - -
Profit before tax 214,782,986 146,694,363
Income tax expense 43 64,027,533 47,602,857
Net profit/ (loss) for the year 150,755,453 99,091,506
Earning per share 50
Basic EPS 12.85 9.01
Diluted EPS 12.85 9.01
Restated basic EPS 8.44

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
For and on behalf of Himalayan General Insurance Company Limited

Mahendra Krishna Shrestha
Chairman

Bhubal Rai
Director

Place : Kathmandu
Date: 2079/09/26

Vijit Krishna Shrestha
Director

Ajaya Ratna Sthapit

Director Director

Ram Prasad Khanal
Director

Vijaya Bahadur Shah
Chief Executive Officer

Hem Raj Thapa

Bikash Upadhaya
Head-Finance Dept.

As per our Report of even date

CA Nem Lal Amatya
Partner

N. Amatya & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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HIMALAYAN GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED ASHAD 32, 2079 (JULY 16, 2022)
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Amount in NRs.

For the year ended
Ashad 32, 2079 Ashad 31, 2078
(July 16, 2022) (July 15, 2021)

Net profit/ (loss) for the year 150,755,453 99,091,506
Other Comprehensive Income
a. Iltems that are or may be Reclassified to Profit or Loss

Changes in fair value of FVOCI Debt Instruments - -

Cash flow hedge - effective portion of changes in fair value - -

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operation - -

Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted = -

for using the equity method

Income tax relating to above items reclassified to profit or loss = -
b. Items that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss

Changes in fair value of FVOCI equity instruments (45128,634) 18,960,823

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment/ intangible assets = -

Remeasurement of post-employment benefit obligations = 4,998,608

Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted = -

for using the equity method

Income tax relating to above items 13,538,586 (7187,829)
Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (31,590,048) 16,771,602
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 119,165,405 115,863,108
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
For and on behalf of Himalayan General Insurance Company Limited
Mahendra Krishna Shrestha  Vijit Krishna Shrestha Ajaya Ratna Sthapit Hem Raj Thapa As per our Report of even date
Chairman Director Director Director

CA Nem Lal Amatya

Bhubal Rai Ram Prasad Khanal Vijaya Bahadur Shah Bikash Upadhaya Partner
Director Director Chief Executive Officer  Head-Finance Dept. N. Amatya & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Place : Kathmandu
Date: 2079/09/26
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HIMALAYAN GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED ASHAD 32, 2079 (JULY 16, 2022)

Amount in NRs.

For the year ended

Ashad 32, 2079 Ashad 31, 2078

(July 16, 2022)

(July 15, 2021)

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received

Gross premium received

Commission received

Claim recovery received from reinsurers
Foreign exchange income other than on cash and cash equivalents
Other income

Cash paid

Gross claims paid

Reinsurance premium paid

Commission paid

Service fees paid

Employee benefits expenses paid

Other expenses paid

Others

Income tax paid

2,040,396,434
197,988,595
568,937,957
3,326,153
2,626,496

(744,580,090)
(1,490,512,711)
(32,145,232)
(13,354,399)
(122,281,11)
(44,142,967)

(73,954,304)

1,273,702,106
114,307,201
1455,581,031
277,635
2,108,210

(1,746,216,500)
(1492,502,831)
(11,270,737)
(13,977,530)
(125,394,529)
79,142,362

(86,030,032)

Total cash flow from operating activities 292,304,821 (550,273,614)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of intangible assets (4,708,372) (2,256,320)

Proceeds from sale of intangible assets
Acquisitions of investment properties

Proceeds from sale of investment properties
Rental income received

Acquisitions of property, plant & equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment
Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries/ investment in subsidiaries
Investment in associates

Receipts from sale of investments in subsidiaries
Receipts from sale of investments in associates
Purchase of equity instruments

Proceeds from sale of equity instruments
Purchase of mutual funds

Proceeds from sale of mutual funds

Purchase of preference shares

Proceeds from sale of preference shares
Purchase of debentures

Proceeds from sale of debentures

Purchase of bonds

Proceeds from sale of bonds

Investments in deposits

Maturity of deposits

(95,872,190)
7,964,181

(139,249,170)
14,920,994
(4,625,100)

(2,000,000)

(1,508,512,000)
1,613,500,000

(45,393,947)
103,495

(10,409,034)
79,367,399
(5,000,000)

(7,.898,000)
(1,099,500,000)
1,270,000,000
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Proceeds from finance lease - -

Loans paid - -
Proceeds from loans B R
Interest income received 141,037,321 151,188,312
Dividend received 9,708,487 1,683,906
Other income =

Total cash flow from investing activities 32,164,151 331,885,811

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest paid (737,577) (2,640,487)
Payment of finance lease = -
Proceeds from issue of share capital = -

Proceeds from loans and borrowings (39,244,567) 39,244,567
Share issuance cost paid = -
Dividend paid (505,766) (34,096,634)
Dividend distribution tax paid (3,851,179) (3,605,475)
Others = -
Total cash flow from financing activities (44,339,089) (1,098,029)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash & cash equivalents [a+b+c] 280,129,883 (219,485,832)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 66,345,464 285,439,474
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 853,397 391,822
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 347,328,744 66,345,464

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cashin hand 492,907 384,137
Cheques in hand @ -
Term deposit with banks (with initial maturity up to 3 months) 268,946,840 28,738,408
Balance with banks 77,888,997 37,222,919
Total 347,328,744 66,345,464

For and on behalf of Himalayan General Insurance Company Limited

Mahendra Krishna Shrestha  Vijit Krishna Shrestha Ajaya Ratna Sthapit Hem Raj Thapa As per our Report of even date
Chairman Director Director Director

CA Nem Lal Amatya

Partner

N. Amatya & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Bhubal Rai Ram Prasad Khanal Vijaya Bahadur Shah Bikash Upadhaya
Director Director Chief Executive Officer Head-Finance Dept.

Place : Kathmandu
Date: 2079/09/26
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended on Ashad 32, 2079 (July-16, 2022)

1. Company overview

Himalayan General Insurance Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) is a public limited
liability company incorporated as per the laws of Nepal. The Company obtained the license (License number 04/050)
from Beema Samiti on Srawan 6, 2050 and finally got approval from Beema Samiti to carry on business from

% ANNUAL
REPORT 2078-079

Srawan 13, 2050 under Insurance Act 2049. The Company started its commercial operation from Mangsir 16, 2050.

The registered office of the Company and the principal place of business is located at HGI House, Babar Mahal,

Kathmandu, Nepal.

The Company is engaged in the business of underwriting non-life insurance. There were no significant changes

in the nature of principal activities in the company during the financial year.

The Company does not have any holding company and neither have any interest in subsidiary and associate

companies.

The company merged with Everest Insurance Company Limited, on commenced joint operation in the name of
the merged entity, Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited from Srawan 1, 2079 (July 17, 2022)

These financial statements were approved for issue by the Company’s board of directors on Poush 26, 2079.

2, Basis of preparation of financial statements

21 Statement of compliance

These financial statements, which comprise the statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss,
statement of other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows and notes
thereto have been prepared in all material aspects in accordance with requirements applicable Nepal Financial

Reporting Standards (NFRS) and the relevant presentation requirements thereof as laid down by the Institute

of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN), and comply with requirements of Company Act, 2063 of Nepal and
applicable directives issued by Insurance Board of Nepal. The Company adopted NFRS from Srawan 1, 2074 (July 16, 2017).

2.2 Basis of measurement

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention, except for certain

items as follows:

a. Investment in equity instruments and units of mutual fund are measured at fair value.

b. Liability for defined benefit obligations is recognised at present value of the defined benefit obligation as

determined by actuary.

C. Insurance contract liabilities are actuarial determined values, and these have been measured at higher

of such actuarial determined values under liability adequacy test and regulatory requirements as per the

circular dated Ashwin 12, 2075 (September 28, 2018) of the Insurance Board of Nepal.

Historical cost is generally fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between

market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or

estimated using another valuation technigue.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categarized into Level 1, or 2, or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the

inputs used for fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1- Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 - Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or

liability, either directly or indirectly; and
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Level 3 - Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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The Company presents its statement of financial position broadly in the order of liquidity.
2.3 Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with NFRS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements,
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period;
they are recognised in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Critical accounting estimates / judgements Disclosure note
Unexpired risk reserve (URR) Note 3.11(a)

Provision for gross outstanding claims (OCR) Note 3.11(b)

Provision for incurred but not reported claims (IBNR) Note 3.11(c)

Employee benefits Note 3.12(a), (b) and (c)
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment Note 3.1(d)

Useful lives of intangible assets Note 3.2(c)

a. Insurance contract liabilities

For insurance contracts, estimates have to be made both for the expected ultimate cost of claims reported at
the date of statement of financial position and for the expected ultimate cost of claims incurred, but not yet
reported (IBNR). It can take significant period of time before the ultimate claims cost can be established with
certainty. The main assumption underlying estimating the amounts of outstanding claims is the past claims
development experience.

b. Defined benefit obligation

The defined benefit obligation liability of the Company is based on the actuarial valuations carried out by an
independent actuary. The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, expected rates
of return on assets, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the
underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is very sensitive to changes in
these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

C. Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

As described in the significant accounting palicies, the Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each reporting period.

24  Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (Rs.), which is the functional and presentation
currency of the Company. Amounts in the financial statements are rounded off to the nearest rupee.

2.5 Going concern

The board of directors have made assessment of the Company's ability to continue as going concern and
are satisfied that it has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, the
management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as going concern and accordingly, the financial statements continue to be prepared on the
basis of going concern.
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2.6  Materiality and aggregation
Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the financial statements. Items of dissimilar
nature or function are presented separately unless that are material.

2.7 Changes in accounting policy
Accounting policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by the Company
in preparing and presenting financial statements. The Company changes its accounting policy only if the change
is required by a standard or interpretation; or results in the financial statements providing reliable and more
relevant information about the effects of transactions, other events or conditions on the company’s financial
position, financial performance, or cash flows.

2.8 New standard issued but not yet effective
New standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have been issued by ICAN with
varying effective dates. Those become applicable from the financial year beginning from Srawan 1, 2078 (July 16,
2021).
Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the financial statements are set out below.
The Company will adopt these standards from their effective dates.

a. NFRS 17 - Insurance Contract
NFRS 17 and will replace NFRS 4 - Insurance Contract. Under the NFRS 17 model, insurance contract liabilities
will be calculated as the present value of future insurance cash flows with a provision for risk. The discount rate
will reflect current interest rates. NFRS 17 requires an entity to recognise profit as it delivers insurance services,
rather than when it received premium and to provide information about insurance contract profit that an entity
expects to recognise in the future period.
NFRS 17 becomes effective from financial year commencing from Srawan 1, 2081 (July 16, 2024). The management
of the Company is assessing the potential impact in its financial statements from the application of this
standard.

3. Significant accounting policies
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

3.1 Property, plant and equipment

a. Recognition of property, plant and equipment
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as assets if and only if:
= It is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow the Company; and
= The cost of the item can be measured reliably.

b. Initial recognition
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation, and impairment loss, if any.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of an item of property, plant
and equipment.

C. Subsequent recognition
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to statement of profit or
loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

d. Depreciation method, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over their useful lives. The estimated useful lives of

41



._.“:\‘\h“l't':!!////

: X .
Insurance Limited

property, plant and equipment is as follows:
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Class of property, plant and equipment Useful life
Building 60 years
Leasehold property 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Computers 5 years
Office equipment 5 years
Other assets 10 years
Vehicles 10 years

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if
appropriate.

e. Disposals and derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from the continued use of asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment and is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

f Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the
cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

g. Capital work-in-progress

These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings, major plant and machinery
and system development which are to be capitalized. Capital work-in-progress are capitalised to relevant asset
when it is available for use. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

3.2  Intangible assets
a. Initial recognition

An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that future economic benefits that are attributable to the
asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible asset acquired
separately are measured at cost. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of an
item of intangible assets. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

b. Subsequent recognition

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in statement of profit or loss as incurred.

C. Amortisation

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. An item of intangible asset is
regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on an analysis of all of the relevant factors, there is no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected generate net cash inflow for the Company.

The useful economic life of an intangible asset is considered finite where the right to such asset is limited
to a specified period of time by contract or by the likelihood of technological obsolescence. Intangible assets
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with finite lives are amortised using the straight-line method to write down the cost over its estimated useful

economic lives and is recognised in statement of profit or loss.
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Class of intangible assets

Useful life

Capitalised software

5 years

The amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted

if appropriate.

d. Derecognition

Intangible assets are derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its

use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset, is recognised in statement of profit or loss in the year

the asset is derecognised.

e. Impairment

The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that intangible assets may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to determine the extent
of impairment, if any. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss to the extent, asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s fair value less
cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their
present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money

and risk specific to the assets.

3.3  Investment properties

Property that is held for rental income or for capital appreciation or both, is classified as investment property.
Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including related transaction cost. It is subsequently carried

at cost less accumulated depreciation. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company
and the cost can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

Land is carried at historical cost however, buildings are depreciated over their estimated useful lives as mentioned above.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of, or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any
gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognised in the statement of profit

or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from
investment property to PPE, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of change
in use. If PPE becomes an investment property, the Company accounts for such property in accordance with the

policy stated under PPE up to the date of change in use.

3.4 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, balances with banks and financial institutions in current

and short-term deposits that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value.

3.5 Financial instruments, financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes party to the contractual

provisions of the relevant instrument and are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly

attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from

the fair value on initial recognition of financial assets or financial liabilities.

a. Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

Ll those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through

profit or loss), and

. those measured at amortised cost.
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The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.
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For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recorded in statement of profit or loss or other
comprehensive income.

The Company reclassifies financial assets when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.
b. Financial assets

Financial assets include loans, advances, insurance receivables and cash and cash equivalents. Such assets are initially
recognised at transaction price when the Company becomes party to contractual obligations. The transaction price
includes transaction costs unless the asset is being measured at fair value through statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

i Subsequent measurement

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income
or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of both (a) the entity’s business model for managing the financial
assets and (b) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Financial assets are classified as those:
L] Measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost, if it is held solely for collection of cash flows arising
from payments of principal and interest. Interest income in these financial assets is measured using the
effective interest rate method.

Fixed deposits with banks and financial institutions, advances, insurance receivables and cash and cash
equivalents are classified for measurement at amortised cost.

. Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

A financial asset is measured at FVOCI, if it is held with an objective to collect contractual cash flows and
selling such financial asset and the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding. It is subsequently measured at fair value with fair value movements recognised
in the other comprehensive income (OCI), except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains or losses. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in investment income using the effective interest method.

However, in respect of particular investments in equity instruments that would otherwise be measured
at fair value through profit or loss, an irrevocable election at initial recognition may be made to present
subsequent changes in fair value through other comprehensive income.

] Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit
or loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in investment income.

ii. Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised when the right to receive cash flows from the assets has expired, or has been
transferred, and the Company has transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership. Financial
assets are also derecognised upon write off. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of financial asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and its carrying amount and is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

ii. Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset (or a group of financial assets) held at
amortised cost and financial assets that are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
impaired based on evidence or information that is available without undue cost or effort. Loss allowances is
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3.6

3.7

3.8

recognised for all financial assets which are considered as doubtful of recovery. Losses arising from impairment
are recognised in statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Insurance payables, sundry creditors and other financial liabilities are initially recognised at the value of the
respective contractual obligations.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any discount or
premium on redemption / settlement is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as finance cost over the life
of the liability using the effective interest method and adjusted to the liability figure disclosed in the statement
of financial position.

Derecognition

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability is extinguished, that is, when the contractual obligation is
discharged, cancelled or expired.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Reinsurance assets

The Company cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business to recognise reinsurers through formal
reinsurance arrangements. Reinsurance assets include balance due from reinsurer for unexpired premium reserve
and for outstanding claim reserve. Amount recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent
with the ratio of unexpired premium reserve to gross premiums that have been ceded and with the ratio of
outstanding claim reserve recoverable from reinsurers in accordance with the related reinsurance contract.

Reinsurance assets is measured in gross in the statement of financial pasition unless a right to offset exits.
Where the right to offset exits, these are measured at net basis.

Reinsurance assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date, or more frequently, when an indication
of impairment arises during the reporting period. Impairment occurs, when there is objective evidence as a result
of an event that occurred after initial recognition of reinsurance asset that the Company may not receive all
outstanding amounts due under the terms of the contract and the event has a reliably measurable impact on
the amount that the Company will receive from the reinsurers.

The impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Reinsurance assets are derecognised when the contractual rights are extinguished or expire or when the contract
is transferred to another party.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities

Current tax assets of the company include the amount of advance income tax paid to the Inland Revenue
Department and tax deducted at source. Similarly, current tax liabilities include the tax provision made for the
year.

Current tax assets and liabilities consist of amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to Inland Revenue
Department in respect of the current year, using the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted on
the reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are shown in net in statement of financial position of the company
as there exist condition to set off both assets and liabilities.

Other assets
Deferred fees and commission expenses

Fees and commission expenses incurred during the financial year arising from writing or renewing of insurance
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contracts are deferred and amortised over the period in which the related revenues are earned. All other costs are
recognised as expenses when incurred.
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3.9  Share capital

Financial instruments issued by the Company are classified as equity only to the extent that they do not meet
the definition of a financial liability.

310 Reserve and funds
a. Share premium

It represents amount collected in excess of the face value of shares on auction of unsubscribed right shares. This
amount may be utilised for issuing fully paid bonus shares to the ordinary shareholders.

b. Capital reserve

It represents funds used for contingencies or to offset capital losses. It is derived from the accumulated capital surplus
of a company, created out of capital profit.

C. Insurance fund

Represents appropriation of 50% of profit for the year as per Insurance Act, 2049 to categories based on the
weight of their contribution to revenue. The fund maintained for one category cannot be utilized to bear the
liabilities relating to other category of Insurance Business. During the year, the amount appropriated to the fund
is based on the profit for the year as per the financial statement prepared under regulator’s directive.

d. Catastrophe reserves

Represents appropriation of 10% of profit for the year remaining after appropriation to insurance fund,
segregated for significant insurance claims that might have adverse impact on financial stability. This reserve is
not available for distribution to the ordinary shareholders.

e. Insurance reserves
Represents all the reserves created before financial year 2064-65.
f Fair value reserves

Represents the cumulative gains (net of losses) arising on the revaluation of equity Instruments and units of
mutual fund measured at FVOCI.

g. Regulatory reserves

Represents excess amount of retained earnings as on Srawan 1, 2073 and profit reported under financial
statement prepared under NFRS compared to retained earnings as on Srawan 1, 2073 and profit reported
together with accumulated profit under GAAP.

h. Actuarial reserves

Represents the cumulative gains / (losses) arising on actuary valuation of gratuity, a defined benefit plan
resulting from experience adjustment (the effects of differences between the previous actuarial assumptions
and what has occurred; and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions.)

Revaluation reserves

Represents unrealised gain on revaluation adjustment to carrying amount of assets and cannot be used for
distribution.

. Cash flow hedge reserve

Represents investment position taken by the company to offset the potential impact of a particular risk on the
cash flows of an asset, liability, or another sort of exposure.

k. Other Reserves

Represent amount appropriated from retained earnings for an amount equal to deferred tax assets recognised
and amount set aside for corporate social responsibility as per the regulator’s directive
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3.1

3.12

Insurance contract liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities include outstanding claim reserve (OCR) including liability recognised for incurred
but not reported (IBNR) claims and provision for unearned risk premiums (UPR). Insurance contract liabilities are
derecognised when the obligation to pay a claim expires, is discharged or is cancelled.

Unearned risk reserve (URR)

Unearned risk reserve includes a provision for unearned premium and any additional provision for premium
deficiency. Unearned risk premiums represent premiums received for risks that have not yet expired and is
generally released over the term of the insurance contract and is recognised as earned premiums.

As required by NFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts, the Company performed liability adequacy test (LAT) with respect
of URR on general insurance contracts with the assistance of an external actuary. Liability for URR is recognised
at higher of the liability assessed by actuary in LAT or liability required under regulatory requirements at 50% of
net premium received.

Outstanding claim reserve (OCR)

Outstanding claim reserve is based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred but not settled at
the reporting date, whether reported or not, together with related claim handling cost and reduction for the
expected value of salvage and other recoveries. Delays are experienced in notification and settlement of certain
types of claims; therefore, the ultimate actual cost of the claims cannot be ascertained with certainty as at the
date of statement of financial position.

As required by NFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts, the Company performed liability adequacy test (LAT) with respect
of OCR on general insurance contracts with the assistance of an external actuary. Liability for OCR is recognised
at higher of the liahility assessed by actuary in LAT or liability required under regulatory requirements.

Incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims

Incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims are actuarially computed as required by NFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts.
Liability of IBNR is recognised at higher of the liability assessed by actuary in LAT or liability required under
regulatory requirements at 15% of net outstanding claims.

Liability Adequacy

At each reporting date, the Company reviews its unexpired risk and a liability adequacy test is performed to
determine whether there is any overall excess of expected claims and deferred acquisition costs over unearned
premiums. The calculation uses current estimates of future contractual cash flows after taking account of the
investment return expected to arise on assets relating to the relevant non-life insurance technical provisions.

If these estimates show that the carrying amount of the unearned premiums is inadequate, the deficiency is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss by setting up a provision for liability.

Employee benefits
Short-term obligations

Expenses in respect of short-term benefits are recognised on the basis of amount paid or payable during which
services are rendered by the employees. Liabilities for salary and allowances that are expected to be settled
wholly within 12 months after the end of the financial year in which the employees render the related services
are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

Post-employment obligations
Defined contribution plan

These are plans in which the Company pays pre-defined amounts to publicly administered funds as per local
regulations and does not have any legal or informal obligation to pay additional sums. These comprise of
contributions to the social security fund with the government on account of provident fund. The Company'’s
payments to the defined contribution plans are recognised as employee benefit expenses when they are due.

Defined benefit plan

The Company's defined benefit plans comprise of gratuity. The liability or asset recognised in the statement of
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financial position in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually
by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.
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Service costs and net interest expense or income is reflected in the statement of profit or loss. Remeasurement
gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised
in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in OCl reserve as
actuarial reserve in the statement of changes in equity and in the statement of financial position. Gratuity is
funded and deposited with Citizens Investment Trust, towards meeting the gratuity obligation.

C. Long-term employee benefits

The liabilities for earned leaves are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the
period in which the employees render the related service. Leave Encashment has been computed using actuarial
assumptions and these are measured at the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect
of services provided by employees up to the end of the year using the projected unit credit method. The benefits
are discounted using the market yields at the end of the year that have terms approximating to the terms of
assumptions. This benefit is unfunded.

d. Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the normal retirement
date, or when an employee accepts voluntary retirement in exchange of these benefits. The Company recognises
termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates:

- when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and

- when the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of NAS 37 and involves the
payment of termination benefits.

The termination benefits are measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer in case
of voluntary retirement scheme.

3.13 Revenue recognition

a. Gross premiums

Gross premiums comprise the total premium received or receivable for the whole period of cover provided by
insurance contract entered during the financial year. Gross premium is generally recognised upon inception of the
insurance contract policy. Upon inception of the contract, premiums are recorded as and are earned primarily on
a pro-rate basis over the term of the coverage of related insurance contract.

Unexpired risk reserve are those proportions of premiums written in a financial year that relate to periods of risks
after the reporting date. Unexpired premiums are calculated on 365 days basis for all insurance contracts having
an insurance coverage period of one year. However, in the case of marine cargo policies, having an insurance
coverage period of less than one year, unearned premiums are calculated on 365 days basis of the insurance
contract and where the insurance coverage is for a period of more than one year or in the absence of data
required, unearned premiums are calculated at 50% of the gross premiums.

The proportion attributable to subsequent periods is deferred as provision for unexpired risk reserve which is
included under liabilities.

b. Premiums ceded to reinsurers

Cross reinsurance premiums on insurance contracts are recognised as an expense on the earlier of the date when
the premiums are payable or when the policy becomes effective. Reinsurance premiums are based on the rates
agreed with reinsurers.

Unearned reinsurance premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of risk
afterthe reporting date. Unearned reinsurance premiums are deferred over the term of the underlying direct insurance
policies for risks- attaching contracts and over the term of the reinsurance contract for losses occurring contracts.

Reinsurance premiums and claims on the face of the statement of profit or loss have been presented as negative
items within premiums and net claims, respectively, because this is consistent with how the business is managed.
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3.14

3.15

Fees and commission income

Fees and commission income earned during the financial year arising on premium ceded to reinsurers are
recognised when the related service is performed in accordance with the insurance contract. The portion of fees
and commission income for which the insurance contact is not expired is deferred and amortised over the period
in with the related revenues are earned.

Investment income

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues, using the effective interest method.
Dividend income

Dividend income from investments in equity instruments and from investment in units of mutual funds is
recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.

Net realized gains and losses

Net realised gains and losses recorded in the statement of profit or loss include gains and losses on financial
assets and properties. Gains and losses on the sale of investments are calculated as the difference between net
sales proceeds and the original or amortised cost and are recorded on occurrence of the sale transaction.

Benefits and claims

Gross benefits and claims

Claims include all claims occurring during the financial year, whether reported or not together with claims handling
costs that are directly related to the processing and settlement of claims, a reduction for the value of salvage
and other recoveries, and any adjustments to claims outstanding from previous years. Claims outstanding are
assessed by review of individual claim files and estimating changes in the ultimate cost of settling claims.

The provision in respect of claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) is actuarially determined based on the past
experience and trends. The provisions for claims are fairly stated based on the information currently available,
the ultimate liability will vary as a result of subsequent information and events which may result in adjustments
to the amount reported. Such amounts are recarded and reflected in such subsequent periods.

Claims recovered from reinsurers

Claims recovered from reinsurers are recognised when the related gross insurance claim is recognised according
to the terms of the relevant insurance contract.

Product classification

Insurance contracts are those contracts when the Company has accepted significant insurance risk from the
policyholders by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a specified uncertain future event (the insured
event) adversely affects the policyholders. As a general guideline, the Company determines whether it has
significant insurance risk by comparing benefits paid with benefits payable if the insured event did not occur.
Insurance contracts can also transfer financial risk. The Company has following portfolios under which it operates
its business:”

Fire portfolio

Fire insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out contracts of insurance, otherwise than
incidental to some other class of insurance business, against loss or damage to property due to fire, explosion,
storm and other occurrences customarily included among the risks insured against in the fire insurance business.

Motor portfolio

Motor insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out contracts of insurance against loss
of, or damage to, or arising out of or in connection with the use of motor vehicles, inclusive of third-party risks
but exclusive of transit risks.

Marine portfolio

Marine insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out contracts of insurance against loss
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of consignment of goods during transit.
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d. Engineering portfolio

Engineering insurance business means the insurance that provides economic safeguard to the risks faced by the
ongoing construction project, installation project, and machines and equipment in project operation.

e. Micro portfolio

Micro Insurance protects against loss of or damage to crops or livestock. It has great potential to provide value to
low-income farmers and their communities, both by protecting farmers when shocks occur and by encouraging
greater investment in crops.

f Aviation portfolio

Aviation Insurance provides coverage for hull losses as well as liability for passenger injuries, environmental and
third-party damage caused by aircraft accidents.

g. Cattle and crop portfolio
Cattle and Crop Insurance provides insurance against loss of or damage to cattle and crops.
h. Miscellaneous portfolio

All the insurance business which does not fall in above categaries fall under miscellaneous insurance business.
Group personal accidents, medical insurances, professional indemnity insurance etc. fall under this category of
business.

3.16 Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
3.17 Cash flow statement

Cash Flows are reported using the direct method, whereby major classes of cash receipts and cash payments are
disclosed as cash flows.

3,18 Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if it conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Company as lessee

Right-of-Use (ROU) assets are recognised at inception of a contract or arrangement for significant lease components
at cost less lease incentives, if any. ROU assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses, if any. The cost of ROU assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct cost
incurred and lease payments made at or before the lease commencement date. ROU assets are generally amortised
over the shorter of the lease term and estimated useful lives of the underlying assets on a straight-line basis. Lease
term is determined based on consideration of facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise
an extension option, or not to exercise a termination option. Lease payments associated with short-term leases and
low value leases are charged to the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. The Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made on the
date of recognition of the lease. Such lease liabilities do not include variable lease payments (that do not depend on
an index or a rate), which are recognised as expense in the periods in which they are incurred. Interest on lease liability
is recognised using the effective interest method.

Lease liabilities are subsequently increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
The carrying amount of lease liabilities is also remeasured upon modification of lease arrangement or upon change in the
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assessment of the lease term. The effect of such remeasurements is adjusted to the value of the ROU assets.

3.19 Income tax

a. Current tax

Current tax in the statement of profit or loss is provided as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable
income for the period using tax rates and tax laws applicable during the period, together with any adjustment to

tax payable in respect of previous years.

b. Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period
and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax

liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is

probable that the future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the statement of profit or loss is recognized outside statement

of profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to

offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset
to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

3.20 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

a. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount
can be reliably estimated. The carrying amounts of provisions are reviewed at each date of statement of financial

position and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to

settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.
b. Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities are recognized only when there is a possible obligation arising from past events due
to occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of resources or where a
reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made. Obligations are assessed on an ongoing basis and only those

having a largely probable outflow of resources are provided for.

C. Contingent Assets

Contingent assets where it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company are not recognized

but are disclosed in the financial statements.

3.21 Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the date
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange

rates are recognised in statement of profit or loss.
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3.22 Dividend distribution

Dividends paid are recognised in the period in which the interim dividends are approved by the board of directors,
or in respect of the final dividend when approved by shareholders.

3.23 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the company by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

3.24 Operating Segment

Operating segmentsare reportedinamanner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker (CODM). The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the management team of the Company comprising of the chief
executive officer and various department heads.

The Company has identified the following line of insurance business as separate segment

= Fire

Ll Marine

. Motor

Ll Engineering

= Aviation

" Miscellaneous
= Agriculture and
. Micro

Segments are organised based on business which have similar economic characteristics as well as which exhibit
similarities in nature of products and services offered, the type and class of customer and distribution methods.

Segments includes total profit distribution of the Company to all its line of businesses. The premium income,
reinsurance premium expenses, gross claims and claims recovered from reinsurers, outstanding claims, other
direct expenses and income, fees and commission income, other operating and administrative expenses are
allocated to each line of business as per the existing GAAP.

“Unallocated corporate expenses” include revenue and expenses that relate to initiatives / costs attributable to
the enterprise as a whole and are not attributable to segments.
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HIMALAYAN GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED ASHAD 32, 2079 (JULY 16, 2022)

4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS Amount in NRs.

Particulars Software Licenses Others Total

Gross carrying amount

Balance as at Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021) 9,077,320 - - 9,077,320
Additions 4,708,372
Disposals

Revaluation

Balance as at Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022) 9,077,320 - - 13,785,692

Accumulated amortization and impairment

Balance as at Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021) 2,375,737 - - 2,375,737
Additions 2,319,396
Disposals

Impairment losses

Impairment reversal

Balance as at Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022) 2,375,737 - - 4,695,133

Net carrying amount

Balance as at Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021) 6,701,583 - - 6,701,583

Balance as at Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022) 6,701,583 - - 9,090,559
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HIMALAYAN GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED ASHAD 32, 2079 (JULY 16, 2022)

6. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES Amount in NRs.
Particulars Land Building Total

Gross carrying amount

Balance as at Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021) - - -
Additions - - -
Disposals - - -
Transfer/ adjustments - - -
Balance as at Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022) - - -

Depreciation and impairment

Balance as at Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021) - - -
Depreciation charge - - -
Disposals - - -
Impairment losses - - -
Impairment reversal - - -
Transfer/ adjustments - - -
Balance as at Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022) - - -

Capital work-in-progress

Balance as at Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021) - - R
Additions - - -
Capitalization - - -
Disposals - - -
Impairment losses - - -
Impairment reversal - - -
Balance as at Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022) - - -

Net Carrying Amount
Balance as at Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021) - - -
Balance as at Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022) - - -

(i) Amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss for investment properties
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Rental income - -
Direct operating expenses from property that generated rental income - -
Direct operating expenses from property that didn't generated rental income - -
Profit from investment properties before depreciation - -
Depreciation charge - -
Profit from investment properties - -

(ii) Fair value of investment properties:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Land - -

Building - -

Total - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED ASHAD 32, 2079 (JULY 16, 2022

7. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/ (LIABILITIES)

Insurance Limited

Amount in NRs.

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment

Fair value gains/ (losses)

Provision for leave encashment

Provision for gratuity

Provision for unrealised premium
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment
Impairment loss on financial assets
Impairment loss on other assets

Rent equalization

Income tax losses

Other

Unearned premiums

Premium deficiency

IBNR and IBNER

Outstanding claims

Margin for adverse deviation

Reinsurance asset on Unearned premiums
Reinsurance asset on Premium deficiency
Reinsurance asset on IBNR and IBNER Claim

Reinsurance asset on Outstanding claims

190,004
(774,310)
8,251,988
2,544,504
16,894,448

253,928
(2.439,153)
6,069,493
42,446,871
4,434,010
3,415,867
(4,817,910)
(41,110,243)

146,696
(1,257,360)
(5,311,925)

2,737445
23,685,438

450,005

4,146,689
14,204,590
44,832,902

3,571,328
(3,494,866)
(13,893,417)

(42,599,909)

Reinsurance asset on Margin for adverse deviation (4,067132) (3,220,154)
Deferred fee and commission expenses (5,007434) (3,016,322)
Deferred commission income 26,956,604 17143,639
Total 53,241,535 38,124,779

Movements in deferred tax assets/ (liabilities)

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Balance as at Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Charged/(credited) to statement of profit or loss (1,552,847) (2,382,760)
Charged/(credited) to other comprehensive income (13,538,586) 7187,829
Balance as at Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022) (15,091,433) 4,805,069
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED ASHAD 32, 2079 (JULY 16, 2022

8. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Amount in NRs.

Investment in quoted subsidiaries = -
Investment in unquoted subsidiaries = -
Less: impairment losses = -
Total - -

Investment in quoted subsidiaries

i Current Year Previous Year
Particulars - .
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
...... shares of Rs. ... eachof ...... Ltd. - - - -
...... shares of Rs. ... eachof ... Ltd. = = - -
Total - - - -
Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries
Current Year Previous Year
Particulars
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

...... shares of Rs...... eachof ..... Ltd. = S - -
...... shares of Rs. ... eachof ...... Ltd. = S - -
Total - - - -
Information relating to subsidiaries: The Company does not have any subsidiary companies.

9. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Investment in quoted assaociates - -
Investment in unguoted associates = -

Less: Impairment Losses = -

Total - -

Investment in quoted associates

Current Year Previous Year
Particulars (or) (or)
Cost Fair value Equity Cost Fair value Equity
method method
...... shares of Rs. ... eachof ..... Ltd - - - - - -
...... shares of Rs. ... eachof ..... Ltd - - - - - -
Add: share of profit or loss for earlier years = - - - - -
Add: share of profit or loss for current year = - - - - -
Total - - - - - -
Investment in unquoted associates
Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Cost Fair value Equit\fcr,\:)ethod Cost Fair value Equit\:?\:)ethod
...... shares of Rs. ... eachof ...... Ltd. - - - - - _
...... shares of Rs. ... eachof ...... Ltd. - - - - - _

Add: share of profit or loss for earlier years - - - - - -

Add: share of profit or loss for current year - - - - - -

Total - - - - - -

Information relating to associates: The Company does not have any associates
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10. INVESTMENTS

Insurance Limited

Amount in NRs.

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investments measured at amortised cost
i) Investment in preference shares of bank and financial institutions
ii) Investment in debentures

iii) Investment in bonds (Nepal Government/NRB/Guaranteed by Nepal Government)

iv) Fixed Deposit of “A” Class Financial Institutions
v) Fixed Deposit of Infrastructure Banks

vi) Fixed Deposits in “B” Class Financial Institutions
vii) Fixed Deposits in “C" Class Financial Institutions
viii) Others

Less: Impairment Losses

Investments measured at FVTOCI

i) Investment in equity instruments (quoted)

ii) Investment in equity instruments (unguoted)

iii) Investment in mutual funds

iv) Investment in debentures

v) Others

Advance for investment in equity instruments
Investments measured at FVTPL

i) Investment in equity instruments

ii) Investment in mutual funds

26,898,000

1,339,012,000
138,500,000
18,500,000

126,497,089
164,011,800
30,318,083

24,898,000

1,525,000,000
63,000,000
13,000,000

37430,231
163,011,800
34,539,685

1,000,000

i) Others - -
Total 1,843,736,972 1,861,879,716
a. Details of Impairment Losses

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Investment in preference shares of bank and financial institutions

Investment in debentures

Investment in bonds (Nepal Government/NRB/Guaranteed by Nepal Government)
Fixed Deposit with “A" Class Financial Institutions

Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Bank

Fixed Deposits with “B” Class Financial Institutions

Fixed Deposits with “C" Class Financial Institutions

Others

Total

b. Investments having expected maturities less than 12 months:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investment in equity instruments (quoted)
Investment in equity instruments (unquoted)
Investment in mutual funds

Investment in preference shares of bank and financial institutions
Investment in debentures

Investment in bonds

Fixed Deposit with “A” Class Financial Institutions
Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Bank

Fixed Deposits with “B” Class Financial Institutions
Fixed Deposits with “C" Class Financial Institutions
Others

1,392,500,000

63,000,000
13,000,000

1,172,000,000

68,500,000
7,500,000

Total

1,468,500,000

1,248,000,000

¢. The Company has earmarked investments amounting to Rs. 965,500,000 (2077-78: Rs. 711,000,000 ) with banks.
d. The rate of interest on fixed deposits ranges from 6.5% to 11.1% (2077-78: 5.6% to 11.5%) for deposits with commercial

banks, 7.5% to 11.5% (2077-78: 6.25% to 8.5%) for deposits with development banks and 7.5% to 11.1% (2077-78: 7.25% to 9.5%) for

deposits with finance companies.
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11. LOANS
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Amount in NRs.

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Loan to associates
Loan to employees
Loan to agents
Others

Less: Impairment losses

Total

a. Expected recovery period within 12 months:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Loan to associates
Loan to employees
Loan to agents

Others

Total

12. REINSURANCE ASSETS

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Reinsurance Assets on:
Unearned premiums
Premium deficiency

IBNR and IBNER Claim
Outstanding claims

Margin for adverse deviation

Less: Impairment losses

836,969,027
16,059,699
274,080,894
913,645,009
13,557,108

558,897,313
46,311,391
210,735,654
458,239,617
10,733,848

Total

2,054,311,737

1,284,917,823

13. INSURANCE RECEIVABLES

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Receivable from reinsurers 162,395,671 164,344,684
Receivable from other insurance companies 222,756,926 195,466,371

Others

Less: Impairment losses

(163,180,010)

(163,180,010)

Total

221,972,587

196,631,045

a. Expected recovery period within 12 months:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Receivable from reinsurers 1,092,023 3,041,036
Receivable from other insurance companies 220,880,564 193,590,009
Others = -
Total 221,972,587 196,631,045
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14. OTHER ASSETS

Amount in NRs.

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Capital advances

Prepaid expenses

Claim advance

Advanzce to suppliers

Staff advances

VAT receivable

Deferred expenses

Deferred agent commission expenses
Finance lease receivable
Stamp stock

Printing and stationery stock
Lease equalization receivable
Others

Advance to NMB Capital Ltd.
Other advances

Less: Impairment losses

5,162,704

16,691,447

200,305

5,720,316
861,000

14,900,000

25,393,665

10,054,406

156,985

6,226,082

Total

28,635,772

56,731,138

a. Expected to be recovered/ settled within 12 months:

Amount in NRs.

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Capital advances

Prepaid expenses

Claim advance

Advance to suppliers

Staff advances

VAT receivable

Deferred expenses

Deferred agent commission expenses
Finance lease receivable
Stamp stock

Printing and stationery stock
Lease equalisation receivable
Others

Advance to NMB Capital Ltd.

Other advances

5,162,704

16,691,447

200,305

5,720,316
861,000

14,900,000

25,393,665

10,054,406

156,985

6,226,082

Total

28,635,772

56,731,138
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15. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
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Amount in NRs.

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Security deposits

Accrued interest 1,852,471 3,937,386
Other receivables = -
Sundry debtors 121,966,293 88,195,951
Other deposits 3,839,125 260,000
Other = -
Advance for expenses 1,387,025 -
Balance of plan asset with CIT gratuity fund 17,856,966 -
Less: Impairment losses (unrealized cheque) = -
Total 146,941,880 92,393,337
a. Expected maturities within 12 months: Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Security deposits = -
Accrued interest 1,892,471 3,937,386
Other receivables - -
Sundry debtors 1,313,252 1,313,252
Other deposits = -
Other = -
Total 3,205,723 5,250,638

16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Amount in NRs.

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Cash in hand 492,907 384137
Chegues in hand s -
Bank balances

i) Balance with "A” Class financial institutions 74,223,275 34,914,703
ii) Balance with “B” Class financial institutions 2,617,386 2,308,216
i) Balance with “C" Class financial institutions 1,048,336 -
Less: Impairment losses = -
Deposit with initial maturity up to 3 months 268,946,840 28,738,408
Others = -
Less: Impairment losses = -
Total 347,328,744 66,345,464
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17(A). SHARE CAPITAL Amount in NRs.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Ordinary shares

As at Ashadh 31, 2078 100,336,700 1,068,288,000
Additions during the year

i) Bonus share issued 73172,400 32,048,700
ii) Share issued = -
As at Ashadh 32, 2079 1,173,509,100 1,100,336,700

Convertible preference shares (equity component only)

As at Ashadh 31, 2078 - -
Additions during the year S -
As at Ashadh 32, 2079 - -
Irredeemable Preference Shares (equity component only)

As at Ashadh 31, 2078 = -
Additions during the year - -
As at Ashadh 32, 2079 - -
Total 1,173,509,100 1,100,336,700

i. Ordinary Shares

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Authorised Capital:

20,000,000 nos. of ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each 2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
Issued Capital:
11,735,091 nos. of ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each 1,173,509,100 1,100,336,700

(2077-78: 11,003,367 nos. of ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each)

Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:

11,735,091 nos. of ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each 1,173,509,100 1,100,336,700
(2077-78: 11,003,367 nos. of ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each)

Total 1,173,509,100 1,100,336,700

ii. Preference Share Capital

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Authorised capital

...... nos. of convertible preference shares of Rs. .... each = -
...... nos. irredeemable preference shares of Rs. .... each = -
Issued Capital

...... nos. of convertible preference shares of Rs. .... each - -
...... nos. irredeemable preference shares of Rs. .... each = -
Subscribed and Paid Up Capital

...... nos. of convertible preference shares of Rs. .... each = -

...... nos. irredeemable preference shares of Rs. .... each = -

Total - -
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Amount in NRs.

Number of Shares Percentage
Particulars
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Promoters

Government of Nepal = - 0.00% 0.00%
Nepalese organized institutions = - 0.00% 0.00%
Nepalese citizen 5,984,896 5,611,717 51.00% 51.00%
Foreigner = - 0.00% 0.00%
Others = - 0.00% 0.00%
Total (A) 5,984,896 5,611,717 51.00% 51.00%
Other than Promotors

General public 5,750,185 5,391,650 45.00% 49.00%
Others = - 0.00% 0.00%
Total (B) 5,750,195 5,391,650 49.00% 49.00%
Total (A+B) 11,735,091 11,003,367 100.00% 100.00%

Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 1% of the aggregate shares in the Company:

Number of Shares Percentage
Particulars
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Shree Raj Krishna Shrestha 1,167,235 1,101,918 9.95% 10.01%
Shree Shubarna Krishna Shrestha 1,190,685 1,114,576 10.15% 10.13%
Shree Bikram Krishna Shrestha 1,394,737 1,305,905 11.89% 11.87%
Shree Mahendra Krishna Shrestha 1,621,203 1,518,249 13.82% 13.80%
Shree Binod Krishna Shrestha 1,192,474 1,116,253 10.16% 10.14%

17(B). SHARE APPLICATION MONEY PENDING ALLOTMENT

Particulars Current Year

Previous Year

Share application money pending allotment

Total - -
17(C). SHARE PREMIUM Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

As at Ashadh 31, 2078

Increase due to issue of shares at premium
Decrease due to issue of bonus shares
Transaction costs on issue of share

Others

As at Ashadh 32, 2079
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Insurance Limited

17(D). INSURANCE FUND Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
As at Ashadh 31, 2078 616,982,169 561,934,372
Additions 60,741,007 55,047,797
Utilizations - R
As at Ashadh 32, 2079 677,723,176 616,982,169
17(E). CATASTROPHE RESERVES Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
As at Ashadh 31, 2078 19,009,262 51,157,286
Additions 7,039,921 5,191,508
Utilizations = (37,339,532)
As at Ashadh 32, 2079 26,049,183 19,009,262
17(F).RETAINED EARNINGS Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
As at Ashad 31, 2078 82,972,081 77,981,175
Net profit or loss 150,755,453 99,091,506
Items of OCl recognised directly in retained earnings = -
Remeasurement of post-employment benefit obligations = -
Transfer (to) / from reserves - -
Capital reserves - R
Insurance fund (60,741,007) (55,047,797)
Catastrophe reserves (7,039,921) 32,148,024
Regulatory reserves (19,615,240) -
Fair value reserves = -
Actuarial reserves 1,931,617 -
Revaluation reserves = -
Deferred tax reserves (1,552,847) (2,382,760)
CSR fund (1,311,402) -
Compulsory reserve fund

Depreciation on revaluation of property, plant and equipment = -
On disposal of revalued property, plant and equipment = -
On disposal of equity instruments measured at FVTOCI 84,410 4,702,047
Tax on disposal of equity instruments measured at FVTOCI (25,323) (1,410,614)
Transaction costs on issue of share = -
Issue of bonus shares (73,172,400) (32,048,700)
Dividend paid (3,851179) (40,060,800)
Dividend distribution tax = -
Others = -
As at Ashad 32, 2079 68,434,242 82,972,081
17(G). OTHER EQUITY

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Capital reserves = -
Insurance reserves 30,000,000 30,000,000
Regulatory reserves 56,268,033 36,652,793
Fair value reserves (19,254,644) 12,394,491
Actuarial reserves = 1,931,617
Revaluation reserves = -
Cash flow hedge reserves - -
Other reserves 47128,788 44,264,539
Total 114,142,177 125,243,440
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18. PROVISIONS

Amount in NRs.

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Provisions for employee benefits

i) Provision for leave 8,481,680 9,124,818
ii) Defined benefits plan (gratuity) - 12,506,562
i) Termination benefits - -
iv) Other employee benefit obligation = -
Provision for tax related legal cases - -
Provision for non-tax legal cases = -
Others = -
Total 8,481,680 21,631,380
a. Additional disclosure under of provisions
Description Opening Additions . Beversed Unv.vinl:ling of Closing
balance during the Year during the Year during the Year discount balance

Provision for tax related

legal cases
Provision for non-tax legal

cases

b. Provision with expected payouts within 12 months:

Amount in NRs.

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Provisions for employee benefits
i) Provision for leave
ii) Defined benefits plan (gratuity)

i) Termination benefits

iv) Other employee benefit obligation
Provision for tax related legal cases
Provision for non-tax legal cases

Others

2,032,536
12,506,562

1,216,632
12,506,562

Total

14,539,098

13,723,194

19. GROSS INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Amount in NRs.

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Unearned premiums
Premium deficiency
IBNR and IBNER

Outstanding claims

Margin for adverse deviation

1,046,208,608
20,231,643
298,999,992
1,050,069,482

14,780,033

705,449,354
47,348,634
234,497,834
567,032,189

11,904,428

Total

2,430,289,758

1,566,232,439
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED ASHAD 32, 2079 (JULY 16, 2022

20. INSURANCE PAYABLES Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Payable to reinsurers 180,799,919 23,513,994
Payable to other insurance companies 19,505,176 8,945,777
Others = -
Total 200,305,095 32,459,771

Payable within 12 months:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Payable to reinsurers 180,799,919 23,513,994
Payable to other insurance companies 19,505,176 8,945,777
Others - -
Total 200,305,095 32,459,771

21. CURRENT TAX (ASSETS)/ LIABILITIES (NET)

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Income tax liabilities

Income tax assets

65,279,201
(124,828,785)

47,843,584
(99,044,567)

Total

(59,549,584)

(51,200,983)

22. LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Bond
Debenture

Term loan - bank and financial institution

Bank overdraft - 39,244,567
Others = -
Total - 39,244,567

Payable within 12 months:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Bond
Debenture

Term loan - bank and financial institution

Bank overdraft - 39,244,567
Others - -
Total - 39,244,567
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23. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
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REPORT 2078-079

Amount in NRs.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Redeemable preference shares = -
Irredemable cumulative preference shares = -
Payable to agents 11,517,975 8,344,467
Refundable share application money = -
Payable to insured = -
Lease liability = -
Sundry creditors 61,689,347 13,850,583
Retention and deposits 221,654 221,654
Short-term employee benefits payable

i) Salary payable - -
ii) Bonus payable 20,751,246 16,299,374
iii) Other employee benefit payable 1,573,336 -
Audit fee payable 482,650 482,650
Dividend payable 5,720,316 6,226,082
Others

i) Refund premium payable 343,634 1458,634
Total 102,300,158 46,883,444

Payable within 12 months:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Redeemable preference shares

Irredemable cumulative preference shares

Payable to agent 11,517,975 8,344,467
Refundable share application money = -
Payable to insured = -
Lease liability = -
Sundry creditors 61,689,347 13,230,779
Retention and deposits - -
Short-term employee benefits payable = -
i) Salary payable - -
ii) Bonus payable 20,751,246 16,299,374
iii) Other employee benefit payable 1,573,336 -
Audit fee payable 482,650 482,650
Dividend payable 5,720,316 6,226,082
Others

i) Refund premium payable 343,634 1,458,634
Total 102,078,504 46,041,986
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED ASHAD 32, 2079 (JULY 16, 2022

24. OTHER LIABILITIES

Amount in NRs.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
TDS payable 8,302,235 5,976,691
VAT payable 17,493,750 4,146,739
Deposit premium = -
Insurance service fee payable 20,753,438 13,354,518
Lease equilisation payable 846,426 1,500,018
Deferred income 89,855,346 57145464
Others
i) Staff vehicle deposit 1,427,255 982,226
Total 138,678,450 83,105,656
Payable within 12 months: Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
TDS payable 8,302,235 5,976,691
VAT payable 17,493,750 446,739
Deposit premium = -
Insurance service fee payable 20,753,438 13,354,518
Lease equilisation payable 846,426 1,500,018
Deferred income 89,855,346 57145464
Others = -
Total 137,251,195 82,123,430
25. GROSS EARNED PREMIUMS Amount in NRs.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Direct premiums
Premiums on reinsurance accepted

Cross change in unearned premiums

1,956,497,704
118,834,165
(340,759,254)

1,261,382,412
74,258,463
21,956,941

Total

1,734,572,615

1,357,597,816

Portfolio-wise details of gross earned premiums

Direct premiums

Facultative inward

Gross change in

Gross earned premiums

Particulare premiums unearned premiums
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Pr;\:iiiorus Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Fire 236,331127 150,437,022 93,675 222,504 (23,682,528) (18,050,007) 212,742,274 132,609,518
Motor 279,085,680 240,654,088 110,883,977 45,361,912 (51,976,829) (26,530,439) 337992,829 259,485,561
Marine 24,246,128 20,527,779 360,734 - 5,093,897 1,049,676 29,700,759 21,577,455
Engineering 176,905,896 61,629,065 247,500 - (55,726,864) 56,833,913  121426,532 118,462,978
Micro 5,223 23,397,835 - 28,674,047 26,032,677 (10,585,038) 26,037,900 41,486,904
Aviation 473,324,756 293,748,813 = - (89,787,972) (119,099,787) 383,536,785 174,649,026
Cattle and crop 131,662,736 96,431,857 = - (16,897364)  (36,574,31) 14,765,372 59,857,546
Miscellaneous 634,936,158 374,555,893 7,248,279 - (133,814,272) 174,912,934 508,370,165 549,468,827
Total 1,956,497,704 1,261,382,412 118,834,165 74,258,463 (340,759,254) 21,956,941 1,734,572,615 1,357,597,816
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26. PREMIUMS CEDED

Amount in NRs.

Particulars Current Year

Previous Year

1,673,928,502
(278,071,715)

Premiums ceded to reinsurers

Reinsurer’s share of change in unearned premiums

1,057,628,765
31,225,831

Total 1,395,856,787

1,088,854,596

Portfolio-wise detail of premiums ceded to reinsurers

Reinsurer’s share of change in

Particulars Premiums ceded to reinsurers unearned premiums Premium ceded
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Fire 189,897,592 120,123,600 (14,536,876) (3,885,387) 175,360,716 116,238,213
Motor 17,980,972 14,452,626 (10,591,085) (39,633,609) 7,389,887 (25,180,983)
Marine 169,045,581 147,863,410 5,278,203 573,044 174,323,784 148,436,454
Engineering 168,366,974 57,733,957 (53,205,425) 55138,575 115,161,549 12,872,532
Micro 473,192,438 293,356,988 12,208,074 (3,471,290) 485,400,512 289,885,698
Aviation 550,114,216 322,536,238 (89,917,725) (119,266,425) 460,196,491 203,269,813
Cattle and crop 105,330,189 77,145,486 (13,517,892) (29,259,449) 91,812,297 47,886,037
Miscellaneous 540 24,416,460 (113,788,989) 171,030,372 (113,788,449) 195,446,832
Total 1,673,928,502 1,057,628,765 (278,071,715) 31,225,831 1,395,856,787 1,088,854,596
27. NET EARNED PREMIUMS Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

1,734,572,615
1,395,856,787

Cross earned premiums

Premiums ceded

Total 338,715,828

1,357,597,816
1,088,854,596
268,743,220

Portfolio-wise detail of net earned premiums

Gross earned premiums Premiums ceded

Net earned premiums

Particulars
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Fire 212,742,274 132,609,519 175,360,716 116,238,213 37,381,558 16,371,306
Motor 337,992,829 259,485,561 7,389,887 (25,180,983) 330,602,942 284,666,544
Marine 29,700,759 21,577,455 174,323,784 148,436,454 (144,623,025) (126,858,999)
Engineering 121,426,532 118,462,978 15,161,549 112,872,532 6,264,983 5,590,446
Micro 26,037,900 41,486,904 485,400,512 289,885,698 (459,362,612) (248,398,794)
Aviation 383,536,785 174,649,026 460,196,491 203,269,813 (76,659,707) (28,620,787)
Cattle and crop 14,765,372 59,857,546 91,812,297 47,886,037 22,953,075 1,971,509
Miscellaneous 508,370,165 549,468,827 (113,788,449) 195,446,832 622,158,614 354,021,995
Total 1,734,572,615 1,357,597,816 1,395,856,787  1,088,854,596 338,715,828 268,743,220
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28. COMMISSION INCOME

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Amount in NRs.

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Reinsurance commission income 172,323,437 108,942,709
Deferred commission income (89,855,346) (57145,464)
Profit commission 25,665,158 5,364,492
Others

Amortization of deferred income 57145464 51,396,095
Total 165,278,713 108,557,832
Portfolio-wise detail of Commission Income Amount in NRs.

Reinsurance commission Deferred commission . - L
Barticulare income income Profit commission Commission income

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Fire 36,434,833 29,231,625 (4,389,331)  (5,738,454) 13,324,152 3,554,523 45,369,654 27,047,694
Motor 4,399,654 3,725/493 (2,607751)  (2,496,343) 58,390 85,482 1,850,293 1,314,632
Marine 23,393,754 18,650,683 (146,147) (1177,037) 337,531 490,009  23,585138 17,963,655
Engineering 15,206,570 7220,508  (8,081,026) 3,316,111 3,420,966 224,915 10,546,510 10,761,534
Micro 17452,369 3,833,037 (614) 305,273 = - 17451,755 438,310
Aviation 57,529,115 31,559,718 = 327483 8,524119 1,009,348  66.053.234 32,896,549
Cattle and Crop 17906,132 13,766,824  (1,931,608) (5409,390) = - 15,974,524 8,357434
Miscellaneous 1,010 954,821 (15,553,406) 522,988 = 215 (15,552,396) 6,078,024
Total 172,323,437 108,942,709 (32,709,882) (5,749,369) 25,665,158 5,364,492 165,278,713 108,557,832
29. INVESTMENT INCOME Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Interest income from financial assets measured at amortised costs

i) Fixed deposit with “A” class financial institutions 118,549,657 139,943,900
ii) Fixed deposit with Infrastructure Bank - -
iii) Fixed deposit with “B” class financial institutions 8,981,246 5,561,352
iv) Fixed deposit with “C” class financial institutions 1,293,181 1,201,857
v) Debentures 2,479,210 2,062,734

vi) Bonds (Nepal Government / NRB / Guaranteed by Nepal Government) = -
vii) Preference shares of bank and financial institutions = -
viii) Bank deposits other than fixed deposit 2,874,226 1,182,969
ix) Policyholder loan - -
x) Agent loan - -
xi) Employee loan = -
xii) Other Interest Income 4,814,886 -
Financial assets measured at FVTOCI

i) Interest income on debentures - -
ii) Dividend income 9,708,487 1,683,906
iii) Other interest income - -
Financial assets measured at FVTPL

|) Dividend income - -
ii) Other interest income - -
Rental income = -
Others = -
Total 148,700,893 151,636,718
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30. NET GAINS/ (LOSSES) ON FAIR VALUE CHANGES
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Amount in NRs.

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Changes in fair value of financial assets measured at FVTPL

i) Equity instruments

ii) Mutual fund

i) Others

Changes in fair value on investment properties

Changes in fair value on hedged items in fair value hedges
Changes in fair value on hedging instruments in fair value hedges
Gains/(losses) of ineffective portion on cash flow hedge

Others

Total

31. NET REALISED GAINS/ (LOSSES)

Amount in NRs.

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Realised gains/(losses) on derecognition of financial assets measured at FVTPL

i) Equity instruments 1,020,612 33,190,977
ii) Mutual fund - -
i) Others - -
Realised gains/(losses) on derecognition of financial assets at amortised costs

i) Debentures - -
ii) Bonds - -
i) Others - -
Total 1,020,612 33,190,977
32. OTHER INCOME Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Unwinding of discount on financial assets at amortised cost

i) Employee loan - -
ii) Bonds - -
i) Others - -
Foreign exchange income = 669,457
Interest income from finance lease = -
Profit from disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,184,955 77,287
Stamp income 2,009,031 1,893,210
Allowances written back = 1,743,508
Others

Liabilities written back = 1,603,441
Others 617465 215,000
Total 3,811,451 6,201,903
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33. GROSS CLAIMS PAID

Amount in NRs.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Gross claims paid 764,811,051 1,754,324,256
Total 764,811,051 1,754,324,256
34. CLAIMS CEDED

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Claims ceded to reinsurers 594,279,499 1,555,561,462
Total 594,279,499 1,555,561,462

Portfolio-wise detail of gross claims paid and claims Ceded

Net claims paid before change in

Particulars Gross claims paid Claims ceded contract liabilities

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Fire 146,800,515 97186,492 139,590,477 90,474,554 7,210,038 6,711,938
Motor 12,586,393 3,491,998 9,617,151 2,705,839 2,969,242 786,159
Marine 131,618,817 76,218,432 42,786,715 19,394,640 88,832,102 56,824,792
Engineering 4,303,973 1,066,841,982 3,295,631 1,065,804,686 1,008,342 1,037,296
Micro 241,515,588 - 241,272,236 - 243,352 -
Aviation 121,484,992 128,519,758 70,169,518 80,466,031 51,315,474 48,053,727
Cattle and crop 94,559,202 30,093,010 75,647,362 24,074,408 18,911,840 6,018,602
Miscellaneous 11,941,571 351,971,584 11,900,409 272,641,304 41162 79,330,280
Total 764,811,051 1,754,324,256 594,279,499 1,555,561,462 170,531,552 198,762,794
35. CHANGE IN CONTRACT LIABILITIES Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

(a) Gross change in contract liabilities

Change in contract outstanding claim (483,037,292) 784,306,792
Change in IBNR and IBNER (64,502,158) 67,991,772
Change in margin for adverse deviation (MAD) (2,875,605) 3,016,516
Change in provision for premium deficiency 27116,991 (44,913,176)
Total gross change in contract liabilities (523,298,064) 810,401,904
(b) Change in reinsurance assets

Change in reinsurance assets created on outstanding claim provisions (455,405,392) 810,309,235
Change in reinsurance assets created on IBNR and IBNER (63,345,240) 60,060,909
Change in reinsurance assets created on margin for adverse deviation (MAD) (2,823,260) 2,805,979
Change in reinsurance assets created on provision for premium deficiency 30,251,692 (46,352,857)
Total change in reinsurance assets (491,322,200) 826,823,266

Net change in contract liabilities

(1,014,620,264)

1,637,225,170
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Portfolio-wise detail of net change in contract liabilities

% ANNUAL

REPORT 2078-079

Gross change in contract liabilities

Change in reinsurance assets

Net change in contract liabilities

Particulars
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Fire 109,148,140 (130,661,017) 114,889,851 (128,050,381) 224,037,991 (258,711,398)
Motor (20,037,584) (38,875,519) (6,135,804) (32,581,669) (26173,388) (71,457188)
Marine 2,258,177 (5,723,269) 316,374 (2,091,353) 2,574,551 (7,814,622)
Engineering (70,266,569) 1,165,611,290 (67,736,401) 166,163,487 (138,002,970) 2,331,774,777
Micro (110,344,932) (188,928,924) (11,952,577) (190,850,167) (222,297,509) (379,779,091)
Aviation (432,545,567) (7,764,443) (432,655,872) (7,693,528) (865,201,439) (15,457,971)
Cattle and crop (54,576,205) (30,374,745) (43,293,168) (24,470,262) (97.869,373) (54,845,007)
Miscellaneous 53,066,476 47118,531 55,245,397 46,397,139 108,311,873 93,515,670
Total (523,298,064) 810,401,904 (491,322,200) 826,823,266 (1,014,620,264) 1,637,225,170

36. COMMISSION EXPENSES

Amount in NRs.

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Commission expenses on direct insurance contracts
Commission expenses on reinsurance accepted

Deferred commission expenses

32,054,029

(16,691,446)

18,077,936
156,603
(10,054,405)

3,264,711

Others

Amortization of deferred commission on direct insurance contract expenses 9,982,812 7,307,853
Amortization of deferred commission on reinsurnace accepted 71,593 114,050
Total 28,681,699 15,602,037

Portfolio-wise detail of Commission Expenses

Commission expenses on

Commission expenses on

Changes in deferred

Particulars insurance contracts reinsurance accepted commission expenses Commission expenses
Current Year Previous Year CurrentYear Previous Year CurrentYear Previous Year CurrentYear Previous Year
Fire 1,810,115 1,480,658 22,397 54,737 18,416 (274,792) 1,851,928 1,260,603
Motor 1,451,503 1,225,058 3,128,092 101,866  (1,464,509) 211,084 3,115,086 1,538,008
Marine 94,610 96,252 72,147.00 - (29,497) (14,342) 137,260 81,910
Engineering 480,041 171,983 42,075 - (231,528) 501,417 290,588 673,400
Micro 135 165 = - (85) 71127 50 71,292
Aviation 3,236,124 - = - = - 3,236,124 -
Cattle and crop 19,213,014 13,546,430 = - (2,761,053) (4,972,419) 16,451,961 8,574,011
Miscellaneous 5,768,487 1,557,390 - - (2169,785) 1,845,423 3,598,702 3,402,813
Total 32,054,029 18,077,936 3,264,711 156,603 (6,637,041) (2,632,502) 28,681,699 15,602,037
37. SERVICE FEES Amount in NRs.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Gross service fees 20,753,319 13,356,409
Reinsurer’s share of service fees (15,570,467) (9,887,295)
Total 5,182,852 3,469,114
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Portfolio-wise detail of service fees

Gross service fees

Reinsurer’s share of service fees

Net service fees

Particulars
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Fire 2,364,248 1,506,595 1,897,619 1,447,693 466,629 58,302
Motor 3,899,697 2,860,160 528,652 795,220 3,371,045 2,064,940
Marine 246,069 205,278 176,204 144,526 69,865 60,752
Engineering 1,771,534 616,291 1,681,195 577340 90,339 38,951
Micro 52 520,719 8 11,016 44 509,703
Aviation 4,733,248 2,937488 4,731,924 2,933,570 1,324 3,918
Cattle and crop 1,316,627 964,319 1,053,302 771,455 263,325 192,864
Miscellaneous 6,421,844 3,745,559 5,501,563 3,206,475 920,281 539,084
Total 20,753,319 13,356,409 15,570,467 9,887,295 5,182,852 3,469,114
38. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Salaries 58,041,633 52,201,041
Bonus 20,751,246 16,299,374
Defined benefit plans
i) Gratuity (15,111,785) 8,733,347
ii) Others - -
Defined contribution plans
i) Provident fund 6,578,730 5,033,989
ii) Others - -
Leave encashments 2,352,737 4,083,006
Termination benefits - -
Dashain allowance 4,552,157 4,216,638
Other allowance 32,803,692 257126129
Training expenses 2,818,117 1,267,039
Uniform expenses = -
Medical expenses = -
Staff insurance expenses 2,181,808 2,189,065
Amortization of deferred employee expenses = -
Others (gift and novelties) 188,284 60,666
Total 115,156,619 119,210,294
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39. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES
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Amount in NRs.

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 5) 8,064,356 6,710,705
Depreciation on investment properties (Refer Note 6) = -
Amortization of intangible assets (Refer Note 4) 2,319,396 1,480,872
Total 10,383,752 8,191,577
40. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Impairment losses on PPE, investment properties and intangible assets
i) Property, plant and equipment

ii) Investment properties

i) Intangible assets

Impairment losses on financial assets
i) Investment

ii) Loans

iii) Other financial assets

iv) Cash and cash equivalent

v) Others

Impairment losses on other assets

i) Reinsurance assets

ii) Insurance receivables

iii) Lease receivables

iv) Others - -
Total - -
41. OTHER EXPENSES Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Rent expenses

Electricity and water

Repair and maintenance

i) Building

ii) Vehicle

i) Office equipment

iv) Others

Telephone and communication
Printing and stationary
Office consumable expenses
Fuel

Travelling expenses

i) Domestic

ii) Foreign

Agent training

20,030,971
2,258,881

841402
1,708,522
879,446
4,322,415
4,075114
3,061,056
2,918,879

1,278,621
82,590
570,546

18,433,580
1,963,053

715,91
86,653
1,104,926
5,204,832
3,268,214
1,435,895
2,465,423

612,674

3,960

77



|l
:.“:\‘\:]‘Iﬂ'l'l!,'/'////

Y .
Insurance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED ASHAD 32, 2079 (JULY 16, 2022

JI%
(g

Other agent expenses - -

Insurance premium 618,250 480,274
Security expenses 5,785,253 1,227,898
Legal and consulting expenses 5,016,093 6,417,016
Newspapers, books and periodicals 55,765 61,520
Advertisement and promotion expenses 3,090,855 2,644,643

Business promotion = -
Cuest entertainment 3,627,789 979,433
Gift and donations = -
Board meeting fees and expenses

i) Meeting allowances 1,018,500 721,000
ii) Other allowances 19,837 -

Other committee/ sub-committee expenses - -

i) Meeting allowances 560,000 462,000
ii) Other allowances - -
Annual general meeting expenses 881187 226,974
Audit related expenses

i) Statutory audit 375,000 350,000
ii) Tax audit - -
iii) Long form audit report 40,000 140,000
iv) Other fees 100,000 -
v) Internal audit 400,000 350,000
vi) Others - 25,225
Bank charges 470,177 611,066
Fee and charges 2,227,346 1,852,774
Postage charges 1,193,647 964,290
Assets written off = -
Direct expenses 2,728,578 2,805,524
Others

Share related expenses 451,040 501,731
CSR activities 566,070 543,690
Foreign exchange loss 4,179,550 -
Merger expenses 1,184,905 -

Aviation summit expenses = -
Silver jubilee celebration = -
Digital marketing = -
Micro expenses other direct expenses 21,432 678,443
Motor TPL expenses other direct expenses = -

VAT expenses on propotional VAT claim 3,454,879 -

Total 80,094,596 57,338,622
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED ASHAD 32, 2079 (JULY 16, 2022

42. FINANCE COST

Amount in NRs.

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Unwinding of discount on provisions

Unwinding of discount on financial liabilities at amortised costs

Interest expenses - on financial liabilities at amortised costs 737,577 2,640,487
Interest Expenses - lease - -
Others = -
Total 737,577 2,640,487
43. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

A. INCOME TAX EXPENSE Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Current tax

i) Income tax expenses for the year 65,253,878 46,432,970
ii) Income tax relating to prior periods 326,502 3,552,647
Deferred tax for the year

i) Originating and reversal of temporary differences (1,552,847) (2,382,760)
ii) Changes in tax rate - -
i) Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses = -
iv) Write-down or reversal - -
v) Others - -
Income tax expense 64,027,533 47,602,857
B. RECONCILIATION OF TAXABLE PROFIT & ACCOUNTING PROFIT Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Accounting profit before tax 214,782,986 146,694,363
Applicable tax rate 30.00% 30.00%
Tax at the applicable rate on accounting profit 64,434,896 44,008,309
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible / (included) for tax purpose

i) Provision for unrealized cheque written back = -
i) Provision for investment written back - -
iii) Donation - -
iv) Share related expenses 135,312 150,519
Less: Tax effect on exempt income and additional deduction

i) Bonus on Income from dividend 96,573 7257
i) Dividend (965,750) (72,571)
i) Capital gain tax on diposal of investment after acquisition - (43,304)
Less: Adjustments to current tax for prior periods

i) Taxes pertaining to prior period 326,502 3,552,647
ii) = -
Add / (less): others

)] - -
ii) = -
Income tax expense 64,027,533 47,602,857
Effective tax rate 29.81% 32.45%
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44, EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Company provides defined contribution plan, defined benefit plan and other long-term employee benefit plan
to its employees. Under contribution plan the Company pays pre-determined amounts to publicly administered
funds as per the local regulation and does not have any legal or informal obligations to pay additional amounts.
These comprise of contribution on account of provident fund. The Company'’s defined benefit plan comprise of
gratuity plan and long-term benefit plan comprise of earned leave.

The gratuity plan provides alump sum payment tovested employees, at retirement or termination of employment,
of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and years of employment with the Company. Gratuity
is funded and deposited with Citizen Investment Trust towards meeting the gratuity obligation.

Citizen Investment Trust is a public financial organization established under the Citizen Investment Trust Act,
2047. The major shareholders of Citizen Investment Trust are Nepal Government, Nepal Rastra Bank, Nepal Stock
Exchange Ltd., Rastriya Beema Sansthan. Its shares are listed on Nepal Stock Exchange. Citizen Investment
Trust operates and manages various types of retirement schemes / programs.

The Gratuity Fund Scheme is operated by a committee of Citizen Investment Trust in accordance with terms and
conditions of Gratuity Scheme Operation Procedure, 2055 as approved by board of Citizen Investment Trust.

Up to the financial year ending on Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022) the company started contribution for new
employees who joined the company during the financial year. In respect of other employees gratuity, was paid
to the employees as per the gratuity policy of the Company. However, from the financial year commencing from
Srawan 1, 2079, the company started contribution of its overall employees with the social security fund. The
contribution so made consists of 10% of provident fund, 8.33% of gratuity and 1.67% of medical insurance. The
liability on account of gratuity as per the previous gratuity policy up to Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022) has been
computed and provided in the accounts. The liability so computed has been funded with Citizen Investment
Trust.

The above change in gratuityis considered as a defined contribution plan from the next financial year from defined
benefit plan and accordingly the laibility for gratuity has not been determined by external independent actuary.
The excess liability on account of gratuity of Rs. 24,635,596 has been written back during the year by reversal to
gratuity expense in Note 38: Employee Benefit Expenses. Similarly, actuarial reserve for remeasurement effects
recognised through statement of other comprehensive income of Rs. 1,931,617 has been transferred to retained
earnings.

The earned leave plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees, at retirement or termination of
employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and number of unused accumulated
leaves balances of annual leave and sick leave. Earned leave is unfunded.

The value of the long-term employee benefit plan on account of earned leave is determined by external
independent actuary as at the reporting dated, using the projected unit credit method. The actuarial valuation
involves making assumptions about the discount rates, salary increment rate, employees’ attrition rate and
balance service period of employees. Due to long term nature of the plans, such estimates are subject to
significant uncertainties.

a.Post employment benefit - Defined contribution plan

For the year ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022) the company has recognised Rs. 6,578,730 (2077-78:
Rs. 5,033,989) as an expenses under the defined contribution plans in the statement of profit or loss.

b.Post employment benefit - Defined benefit plan and long-term benefit plan

For long-term benefit plan, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method,
based on the actuarial valuations.
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Amount in NRs.

Particulars

Gratuity plan

Earned leave

Current Year

Current service cost

Past service cost

Net interest cost

a. Interest expense on defined benefit obligation (DBO)
b. Interest (income) on plan assets

c. Total net interest cost

Net Actuarial losses/(gains) recognized during the period

Defined benefit cost included in statement of profit or loss

Previous Year

= 7,880,241

= 3,474,439
= (2,721,333)
= 753,106

- 8,733,347

Current Year Previous Year

999,381 887455
450,810 371,921
450,810 371,921
902,546 2,823,630
2,352,737 4,083,006

d. Remeasurement effects recognised in statement of other comprehensive income (0Cl)

Amount in NRs.

Particulars

Gratuity plan

Earned leave

Current Year Previous Year

Current Year Previous Year

a. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to financial assumption changes in

DBO

b. Actuarial (Gain) / Loss - demographic assumptions - 114,961 - -
c. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to experience on DBO - (656,448) - -
d. Return on plan assets (greater)/ less than discount rate - (4,457121) - -
Total actuarial (gain)/ loss included in OCI - (4,998,608) - -

e. Total cost recognised in Comprehensive Income

Amount in NRs.

Particulars

Gratuity plan

Earned leave

Current Year Previous Year

Current Year Previous Year

Cost recognised in statement of profit or loss = 8,733,347 2,352,737 4,083,006
Remeasurements effects recognised in OCI - (4,998,608) - -
Total cost recognised in comprehensive income - 3,734,739 2,352,737 4,083,006

f. Change in defined benefit obligation

Amount in NRs.

Gratuity plan

Earned leave

Particulars

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year - 68,534,039 9,124,818 7582,348
Service cost - 7,980,241 999,381 887455
Interest cost = 3,474,439 450,810 371,921
Benefits paid by the employer - - (2,995,875) (2,540,536)
Benefit payments from plan assets - (495,772) - -
Actuarial (gain)/ loss - financial assumptions - - 902,546 2,823,630
Actuarial (gain)/ loss - demographic financial assumptions = 114,961 = -
Actuarial (gain)/ Loss - experience - (656,448) - -
Defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year - 78,951,460 8,481,680 9,124,818
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g. Change in fair value of plan assets

Amount in NRs.

Gratuity plan

Earned leave

Particulars
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Fair value of plan assets at end of prior year = 54,426,654 - -
Expected return on plan assets = 2,721,333 - -
Employer contributions = 5,335,562 - -
Participant contributions = - - -
Benefit payments from plan assets - (495,772) - -
Transfer in/ transfer out = - = -
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets - 4457121 - -
Fair value of Plan Assets At End of Year - 66,444,898 - -

h. Net defined benefit asset/(liability)

Amount in NRs.

Gratuity plan

Earned leave

Particulars

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Defined benefit obligation - 78,951,460 8,481,680 9,124,818
Fair value of plan assets - (66,444,898) - -
(Surplus)/deficit recognised in statement of financial position - 12,506,562 8,481,680 9,124,818

i. Expected company contributions for the next year

Amount in NRs.

Gratuity plan

Earned leave

Particulars
Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Expected company contributions for the next year =

21,476,034

j- Reconciliation of amounts in statement of financial position

Amount in NRs.

Gratuity plan

Earned leave

Particulars
Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Net defined benefit liability/(asset) at prior year end 12,506,562 14,107,385 9,124,818 7,582,348
Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit or Loss = 8,733,347 2,352,737 4,083,006
Total remeasurements included in OCI - (4,998,608) - -
Acquisition/ divestment - - = -
Employer contributions - (5,335,562) - -
Benefits Payouts - - (2,995,875) (2,540,536)
Net defined benefit liability/(asset) 12,506,562 12,506,562 8,481,680 9,124,818
k. Reconciliation of statement of other comprehensive income
Gratuity plan Earned leave

Particulars
Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss, beginning of period (2,759,452) 2,239,156 - -
Total remeasurements included in OCI - (4,998,608) - -
Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss (2,759,452) (2,759,452) - -
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Amount in NRs.

Gratuity plan

Earned leave

Particulars

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Current Liability 12,506,562 12,506,562 2,032,536 1,216,632
Non - Current Liability = - 6,449,144 7,908,186
Total 12,506,562 12,506,562 8,481,680 9,124,818

m. Expected future benefit payments

Amount in NRs.

Gratuity plan

Earned leave

Particulars

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Within 1 year 9,604,777 6,220,691 = -
Between 1-2 years 9,684,293 8,071,877 = -
Between 2-5 years 16,018,909 17,882,996 = -
From 6 to 10 34,084,886 30,380,228 = -
Total 69,392,865 62,555,792 -

n. Plan assets

Amount in NRs.

Particulars

Gratuity plan

Earned leave

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

(% Invested)

(% Invested)

(% Invested)

(% Invested)

Government securities 0% 0% 0% 0%
Corporate bonds (including public sector bonds) 0% 0% 0% 0%
Mutual funds 0% 0% 0% 0%
Deposits 0% 0% 0% 0%
Cash and bank balances 0% 0% 0% 0%
Retirement fund 100% 100% 0% 0%
Others 0% 0% 0% 0%
Total 100% 100% 0% 0%

o. Sensitivity analysis

Amount in NRs.

Particulars

Gratuity plan

Earned leave

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Effect in defined benefit obligation due to 1% increase in
discount rate

Effect in defined benefit obligation due to 1% decrease in
discount rate

Effect in defined benefit obligation due to 1% increase in
salary escalation rate

Effect in defined benefit obligation due to 1% decrease in
salary escalation rate

Effect in defined benefit obligation due to 1% increase in
attrition rate

Effect in defined benefit obligation due to 1% decrease in
attrition rate
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p- Assumptions Amount in NRs.

Particulars Gratuity plan Earned leave

Discount rate 0.00% 5.00%

Escalation rate (rate of increase in compensation levels) 0.00% 5.00%

Attrition rate (employee turnover) 0.00% 12.00%
Nepali Assured Nepali Assured

Mortality rate during employment Lives Mortality Lives Mortality
(2009) (2009)
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45,  Risk management framework
45.1 Governance framework

The primary objective of the Company'’s risk and financial management framework is to ensure that it will
be above to continue as a going concern so that can continue to provide returns to the shareholders through

sustainable achievement of financial performance objective. Key management recognizes the critical importance

of having efficient and effective risk management systems in place.

The board of directors and senior management manages the risks through various committees and delegated
authorities. As part of the important activity within the Company, the risks are reviewed on regular basis and

strategies are timely adopted to manage these risks. The risks are identified with clear understanding of market

environment, regulatory environment and economic changes.
45.2  Insurance risks

The principal risk the Company is subjected under insurance contract is that actual claims and benefits payments

or the timing thereof, may differ from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of the claims, severity of

claims, actual benefits paid and subsequent development of long-term claims. The objective of the Company, is

therefore, to ensure that sufficient reserves are available to cover these liabilities.

The risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across portfolio of insurance contracts. The risk is also mitigated
by careful selection and implementation of underwriting guidelines as well as use of reinsurance arrangements.

The Company considers insurance risk to be a combination of the following components:

= Product design risk
Ll Underwriting risk
. Reinsurance risk
- Claim risk
a. Product design risk

The Company issues general insurance contracts such as fire, marine, motor, marine, engineering, micro,

aviation, cattle and crop and miscellaneous. The significant risks arising under general insurance portfolio are
from changes in the climate leading to natural disasters, behavioral trends of peoples due the change in their

lifestyles and steady escalation of costs in respect of motor industry.

The above risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts and

geographical areas. Variability of risk is improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting
strategies, which are designed to ensure that risks are diversified in the term of type of risk.

The Company's insurance risk based on the line of business concentration is as follows:

For the year ended
Line of business Ashad 32, 2079
(July 16, 2022)

For the year ended
Ashad 31, 2078
(July 15, 2021)

Gross written premium Concentration Gross w.ritten Concentration

Percentage premium Percentage
Fire 236,424,802 1% 150,658,526 1%
Motor 389,969,657 19% 286,016,000 21%
Marine 24,606,862 1% 20,527,779 2%
Engineering 177153,396 9% 61,629,065 5%
Micro 5,223 0% 52,071,942 4%
Aviation 473,324,756 23% 293,748,813 22%
Cattle and crop 131,662,736 6% 96,431,857 7%
Miscellaneous 642,184,437 31% 374,555,893 28%
Total 2,075,331,869 1,335,640,875
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Underwriting involves measuring risk exposure and determining the premium that needs to be charged to
undertake the insurance risk. Underwriting risk generally arise either from an inaccurate assessment of the risks
entailed in writing and insurance policy or from factors wholly out of the underwriter’s control.

The majority of underwriting risk to which the Company is exposed is of a short-term nature, and generally does
not exceed 12 months. The company’s underwriting strategy aims to ensure that the underwritten risks are well
diversified in terms of the type, amount of risk, and geography in order to ensure that the Company minimises
the volatility of its insurance result.

The above risk exposure is mitigated by improving the knowledge and skills of the underwriting staffs. Further,
statistical database is maintained to enable proper decisions are taken during underwriting of insurance
risks undertaken. Also, financial authority limits are in place for underwriting, clearly prescribing the limits to
underwrite based on the sum insured and risk undertaken. Pricing is done by modelling all identified risks, using
appropriate methodologies depending on the complexity of the risks and available data. Adequate buffers are
kept in the premiums to cushion against the risk that actual experience may turn out to be worse than expected.

C. Reinsurance risk

Reinsurance risk refers to the inability of the Company to obtain insurance from reinsurers at the right time and
at the appropriate cost.

The above risk exposure is mitigated by choosing globally highly trusted reinsurance companies for reinsurance
placements. The company has reinsurance treaty with the following reinsurance companies:

Name of reinsurers Rating Issuing agency
General Insurance Corporation of India, India B ++ AM Best
Oman Re BB+ Fitch
Zep Re (PTA Reinsurance Company) Nairobi, Kenya B ++ AM Best
East Africa Reinsurance Corporation Ltd., Nairobi, Kenya B AM Best
Hannover reinsurance A+ AM Best
Abu Dhabi National Insurance Company B ++ S&P
Saudi Re B++ AM Best
The New India Assurance Company Limited B ++ AM Best
Asian Reinsurance Company Limited B+ AM Best
Sirius International A AM Best
d. Claim risk

Claim risk refers to risk that the actual claims or the timing thereof may differ from expectation and sufficient
reserves may not be available to cover these liahilities.

The above risk exposure is mitigated by implementing strict claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing
claims. Regular detailed review of claims handling procedure and frequent investigation of possible fraudulent
claims are put in place to reduce the risk exposure of the Company. The Company further enforces a policy
of actively managing and promptly pursuing claims in order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future
developments that may negatively impact the business.

The Company seeks to reduce its claim risk through the use of experience actuaries who estimates actuarial
indication of the required reserves to be made based on claims experience, business volume, anticipated change
in the claim environment and claims cost.

i. Sensitivities
The Company'’s claim liahilities are sensitive to key assumptions as mentioned in the table below. The following

analysis is performed for possible movements in key assumptions with all other assumptions held constant,
showing the impact on gross and net liabilities, profit before tax and profit after tax. The correlation of
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assumptions will have a significant effect in determining the ultimate claims liabilities, but to demonstrate the
impact due to changes in assumptions, assumptions had to be changed on an individual basis.

For the year ended on Ashad 32, 2079 (2078-79)
Amount in NRs.

Increase/ Increase/

Particulars Changesl in (Decrease) on (Decrease) on Net Increas.e/ (Decrease) - Increas?/ (Decrease)
Assumptions PR PR Profit Before Tax - Profit After Tax
Gross Liabilities Liabilities
Average claim cost +10% 138,408,115 1,667,384 (93,154,949) (65,208,464)
Average number of claims +10%  (52,329,807) 3,197,587 (3,197,587) (2,238,31)
Average claim cost -10% (138,408,115) (1,667,384) 93,154,949 65,208,464
Average number of claims -10% 52,329,807 (3,197.587) 3,197,587 2,238,311

For the year ended on Ashad 31, 2078 (2077-78)
Amount in NRs.

Changesin Increase/ (Decrease) Increase/ (Decrease) Increase/ (Decrease) Increase/ (Decrease)

Particulars Assumptions on Gross Liabilities on Net Liabilities - Profit Before Tax - Profit After Tax
Average claim cost +10% 86,078,309 1,347,626 (188,908,683) (132,236,078)
Average number of claims +10% 81,040,190 1,642,136 (1,642,136) (1149,495)
Average claim cost -10% (86,078,309) (1,347,626) 188,908,683 132,236,078
Average number of claims -10% (81,040,190) (1,642,136) 1,642,136 1,149,495

ii. Claim development table

The following tables show the estimates of cumulative incurred claims, including both claims notified and IBNR
for each successive accident year at each reporting date, together with cumulative payments to date.

Gross insurance contract outstanding claim provision
Amount in NRs.

Year of Incident >PY4 PY 4 PY3 PY 2 PY1 Current Year Total
At end of incident year 1,284,393,972 1,284,393,972
One year later 456,455,632 456,455,632
Two year later 27112,544 27112,544
Three year later 46,918,384 46,918,384

Four year later - _

More than Four years - -

Current estimate of

) i - - 46,918,384 272,544 456,455,632 1,284,393,972 1,814,880,532
cumulative claims

At end of incident year 501,197,965 501,197,965
One year later 202,778,707 202,778,707
Two year later 16,149,794 16,149,794
Three year later 44,684,584 44,684,584

Four year later - -

More than Four years - -

Cumulative payments to

date - - 44,684,584 16,149,794 202,778,707 501,197,965 764,811,051
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Year of Incident >PY4 PY 4 PY3 PY 2 PY1 Current Year Total
Gross insurance contract - - 2233800 10962750 253676925 783196007 1,050,069482
outstanding claim provision
Net insurance contract outstanding claim provision

Amount in NRs.

Year of Incident >PY4 PY 4 PY 3 PY 2 PY1 Current Year Total
At end of incident year 226,155,038 226,155,038
One year later 66,958,391 66,958,391
Two year later 13,380,009 13,380,009
Three year later 20,926,255 20,926,255
Four year later - 2,694,843
More than four years - -
Current estimate of - - 20926255 13,380,009 66958391 226155038 327419693
cumulative claims
At end of incident year 97,770,773 97,770,773
One year later 46,079,684 46,079,684
Two year later 7,510,949 7,510,949
Three year later 19,170,145 19,170,145
Four year later - -
More than four years - -
S;t”;“'a“ve payments to - 19170145  7510,949 46,079,684 97770773 170,531,552
CGross insurance contract
outstanding claim - - 1,756,110 5,869,060 20,878,707 128,384,265 156,888,141
provision

e. Reserving

Insurance contract liabilities are created to cover this risk based on the actuarial valuation report.

The table below sets out the concentration of risk associated with above mentioned products. Risk as at year

end has been measured as insurance contract liabilities and disclosed as below:
Amount in NRs.

Current Year Previous Year

Particulars f . .
Gros.s |r.1§|..|rance Reinsurance assets Net liabilities Gros.s ||:1§tfrance Reinsurance Net liabilities
liabilities liabilities assets

Fire 195,701,794 156,390,021 39,311,773 273,317,757 249,871,559 23,446,198
Motor 362,045,967 140,179,024 221,866,943 290,031,554 123,452,134 166,579,420
Marine 46,500,295 34,263,926 12,236,369 55,129,272 41,433,125 13,696,147
Engineering 178,419,399 168,717,847 9,701,552 52,425,967 47,776,022 4,649,945
Micro 305,564,499 305,555,036 9,463 221,252,244 205,810,533 15,441,711
Aviation 734,647,478 734,094,078 553,400 212,313,940 211,520,481 793,459
Cattle and Crop 175,447,779 140,221,645 35,226,134 100,315,378 80,999,165 19,316,213
Miscellaneous 431,962,547 374,850,160 57,072,387 351,214,748 316,346,570 34,868,178
Total 2,430,289,758 2,054,311,737 375,978,021 1,556,000,860 1,277,209,589 278,791,271
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46. Fair value measurement
46.1 Financial instruments by category and hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial
Instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which
fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has

classified its financial instruments into three levels as prescribed by the applicable NFRS.
Amount in NRs.

Current Year Previous Year
Particulars tevel e FvoCl Amortised  cyurp Fvoc Amortised
Cost Cost

Investments

Investment in equity Instruments 1 - 290,508,889 - - 200,442,031 -
Investment in mutual funds 1 - 30,318,083 - - 34,539,685 -
Investment in debentures 3 - - 26,898,000 - - 24,898,000
Fixed deposits 3 - - 1496,012,000 - - 1,601,000,000
ﬁdsxéf;;eeiotrsinvestment in equity 3 ) ) ) ) 1,000,000 )
Other financial assets 3 - - 146,941,880 - - 92,393,337
Cash and cash equivalents 1 - - 347,328,744 - - 66,345464
Total financial assets - 320,826,972 2,017180,624 - 235981716 1,784,636,801
Other financial liabilities 3 - - 102,300,158 - - 47135,778
Total financial liabilities - - 102,300,158 - - 47135,778

An explanation of each level is provided below:

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed
equity instruments and units of mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity
instruments and units of mutual fund which are traded on the stock exchanges is valued using the
closing price as at the reporting date.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation technigues which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible
on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3.

There is no transfer of financial instruments between different levels as mentioned above during the year.
46.2  Valuation technique used to determine fair value

In respect of investment in equity instruments that are listed in the Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd. the quoted price
of the instrument has as at the date of statement of financial position has been used. In respect investment in
unguoted equity instruments, the cost of such instrument has been deemed to be the fair value.

Fair value of remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.
46.3  Valuation process

The finance and accounts department of the Company performs the valuation of financial assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes. Discussion on valuation processes and results are held at least once in
a year.
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. Discount rate is arrived at considering the internal and external factors.

= Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current, and the impact of the
discounting is material.

46.4  Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost
Amount in NRs.

Current Year Previous Year
Particulars
Carrying Amount  FairValue  Carrying Amount  Fair Value

Investments

Investment in debentures 26,898,000 26,898,000 24,898,000 24,898,000
Fixed deposit 1,496,012,000  1496,012,000 1,601,000,000 1,601,000,000
Other financial assets 146,941,880 146,941,880 92,393,337 92,393,337
Total financial liabilities at amortised cost 1,669,851,880  1,669,851,880 1,718,291,337 1,718,291,337
Other financial liabilities 102,300,158 102,300,158 46,883,444 46,883,444
Total financial liabilities at amortised cost 102,300,158 102,300,158 46,883,444 46,883,444

The carrying amounts of other financial assets, insurance receivables, cash and cash equivalents, insurance
payables and other financial liabilities are same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

47. Financial risk management
47.1  Creditrisk

Credit risk is counter-party default risk and includes the risk of failure of financial institutions with which the
Company have placed deposits / investment to meet its contractual obligations, and the failure of reinsurers to
meet claims when they fall due. It also includes risk of default by policyholders on premium receivables.

The Company's placement in debt instruments is primarily in fixed deposit with commercial banks, development
banks and other financial institutions that are held at amortised cost of Rs. 1,496,815,734 (2077-78: Rs.
1,603,947,642) and in debentures issued by listed companies Rs. 27.986,737 (2077-78: Rs. 25,887,744) which are
managed and monitored by the investment committee of the Company. The Company carries other financial
assets, such as balances with banks, advance to employees and other receivables. Bank deposits in fixed and
other short-term deposit accounts are held with commercial banks, development banks and other financial
institutions having a strong financial position and considering the experience of the Company over time, the
counter party risk attached to such assets is considered insignificant.

Advance to employees and other receivables are monitored on regular basis and is recovered on timely basis.
Allowance for impairment is made for loss incurred assets if any.

Credit risk to external reinsurers appears when insurance exposures are transferred by the Company to external
reinsurance companies to mitigate insurance risks. Potential losses can arise due to non-recoverability of
reinsurance receivables that are under reinsurance treaties in force. The Company has selected its reinsurers
with high credit rating and reviews their rating periodically. The information of the reinsurers is provided in 45.2
(c) above. The Company'’s exposures to reinsurance risk are placed with highly rated reinsurers and considering
the experience of the Company over time, the counter party risk attached to insurance receivables is minimal
except for receivable of Rs. 161,303,648 (2077-78: Rs. 161,303,648) due from Aviation Assets Management Ltd,
which has since been liquidated and has not been recovered. The company also has receivable of Rs. 1,876,362
(2077-78: Rs. 1,876,362) recoverable from local insurance company under facultative arrangement which has not
been recovered. Allowance for impairment for these amounts have been made in the financial statements.

The Company does not have a policy of providing credit facility against issued policy document as per regulatory
restrictions. However, in respect of agriculture insurance, 25% of the premium amount is recovered at the time
of issue of the policy and balance 75% is guaranteed by the Government of Nepal as subsidy to the farmers
which it paid to the Company through the Nepal Insurance Authority of Nepal. Similarly, in respect of insurance
for COVID-19 and certain property insurance, 50% of the premium amount is recovered at the time of issue of
the policy and balance 50% if guaranteed by the Government of Nepal, which is paid to the Company through
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the Nepal Insurance Authority of Nepal. Accordingly, the counter party risk attached to the amount due from

The Company uses the incurred loss model for impairment of financial assets. The detail of allowance for

financial assets recognised is as follows:

Amount in NRs.

Particulars Current Year Previous year

Balance of loss allowance as at Ashad 31, 2078 163,180,010 164,923,518
Add: Loss allowance recognised during the year - -
Less: Loss allowance written back during the year - (1,743,508)
Balance of loss allowance as at Ashad 32, 2079 163,180,010 163,180,010

Loss allowance has been recognised for receivable from reinsurance Company and local insurance company.

47.2  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial

instruments as they fall due.

The Company maintains investment in accordance with the investment policy issued by the Nepal Insurance
Authority of Nepal. The Company has also invested in highly marketable securities that can be liquidated in the
event of unforeseen contingencies. Further, the investment committee reviews the liquidity level of investments

and takes appropriate actions to improve the liquidity position.

Insurance receivables includes amount receivables from local insurance businesses under local facultative
arrangement and from reinsurers under reinsurance arrangement for paid losses. These are recognised and

measured at fair value of the considerations to be received.

Insurance receivables also includes sundry debtors which are recognised when due and are initially measured at
fair value on the consideration receivable. This receivable represents agriculture insurance policy, insurance for
COVID-19 and certain property insurance which are subsidized by the government of Nepal to the extent of 50%
to 75% of the premium invoiced amount. Collectability of premiums is reviewed on an ongoing basis.

The following table represents the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities

As at Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Amount in NRs.

No Stated

Particulars Notes 0-3 Months  3-12 Months 1-2 Years Over 2 Years Maturity Total
Financial assets

;t:a:r:”gzt:'géézzsg:z:: 10 499,500,000 909,512,000 87,000,000 26,898,000 - 1522,910,000
at FVOCI 10 - - - - 320,826,972 320,826,972
Other financial assets 15 146,941,880 - - - - 146,941,880
Insurance receivables 13 - 221,972,587 - - - 221,972,587
Cash and cash equivalent 16 347328744 - - - - 347,328,744
Total financial assets 993,770,624  1131,484,587 87,000,000 26,898,000 320,826,972  2,559,980,183
Financial liabilities

Insurance payables 20 - 200,305,095 - - - 200,305,095
Other financial liabilities 23 - 102,300,158 - - - 102,300,158
Total financial liabilities - 302,605,253 - - - 302,605,253
Excess liquidity 993,770,624 828,879,334 87,000,000 26,898,000 320,826,972  2,257374,930
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As at Ashad 31, 2078 (July 16, 2021)
Amount in NRs.

Particulars Notes 0-3 Months 3-12 Months 1-2 Years Over 2 Years No Sta'ted Total
Maturity

Financial assets

Financial assets

measured at amortised 10 598,500,000 870,000,000 132,500,000 24,898,000 - 1,625,898,000
cost

Financial assets

measured at FVOC 10 - - - - 234,981,716 234,981,716
Other financial assets 15 92,393,337 - - - - 92,393,337
Insurance receivables 13 - 196,631,045 - - - 196,631,045
Cash and cash equivalent 16 66,345,464 - - - - 66,345,464
Total financial assets 757,238,801 1,066,631,045 132,500,000 24,898,000 234,981,716  2,216,249,562
Financial liabilities
Insurance payables 20 - 32,459,771 - - - 32,459,771
Other financial liabilities 23 - 46,883,444 - - - 46,883,444
Total financial liabilities - 79,343,215 - - - 79,343,215
Excess liquidity 757,238,801 987,287,830 132,500,000 24,898,000 234,981,716  2,136,906,347

473 Market risk

Market risk is the risk of possible adverse movements in the value of financial instrument due to change in
market factors, such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and equity prices, and will affect the Company’s
income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. Market risk is the aggregation of:

L] Interest rate risk
Ll Foreign currency risk
L] Price risk

i Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of future cash flows of the financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in interest rates.

The Company’s expasure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s fixed
deposits and short-term deposits with banks and financial institutions and investment in debentures issued by
listed companies. The company monitors its interest rate risk on a periodic basis by analyzing the movement in
interest rate and manages its cash flows.

ii. Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates.

The Company faces minimal risk due to foreign currency since it does not have material assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currency. The Company maintains dollar account with commercial banks the balance of
which is USS 87,512.76 equivalent to Rs. 364,518,321 (2077-78: US$ 2,388.88 equivalent to Rs. 284,372).

iii. Price risk
Price risk is the risk that the value of financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in the price of the

securities or portfolio of securities.

The Company classifies its investment portfolio into debt securities, equity instruments and units of mutual
fund. The debts securities are predominantly held in fixed deposits with commercial banks and other financial
institutions and debentures issued by listed companies. Fixed deposits and debentures are not traded in the
market and the price risk on these securities is negligible. In respect of investment in equity instrument and units
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of mutual funds, which are listed and traded in the market through Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd., the management
follows the guidelines as mentioned in the investment policy and monitors the price of these securities on a
regular basis.

The Company holds investment in quoted equity instruments of Rs. 126,497,089 (2077-78: Rs. 37430,231) and in
units of mutual fund of Rs. 30,318,083 (2077-78: Rs. 34,539,685). Changes in the fair value of these instruments
are recognised through OCI.

Increase/decrease in the prices of these securities by 100 basis points with all other variables held constant,
would result a gain / loss of Rs. 1,568,152 (2077-78: Rs. 23,498,172) in other comprehensive income.

48. Operational risk

This is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the Company’s
processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure and from external factors other than credit, market and
liquidity risks, such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standard
of corporate governance. Operational failures could result in producing misleading financial information, loss of
return, financial penalties from regulators or damage to the reputation of the Company.

The Company has controls of effective segregation of duties, access controls, authorisations, training and
assessments procedures. Corporate governance standards are strictly implemented by the board of directors.
Risks from change in regulatary environment, technology are monitored in its strategic planning and processes.

49. Capital management

The Company manages its capital with the following management objectives and approaches:

Ll To maintain the minimum paid up capital as required by its regulator, Nepal Insurance Authority of Nepal.
Ll To maintain required level of stability for providing a degree of security to the policyholders.
= To allocate capital efficiently that supports the development of the Company’s business so that it can

continue to provide returns to the shareholders.

Ll To maintain financial strength to support new business growth and to satisfy the requirements of the
policyholders, regulators and stakeholders.

Operation of the Company are also subject to regulatory requirements of the Nepal Insurance Authority of Nepal.
The Nepal Insurance Authority has prescribed minimum paid up capital of Rs. 2,500,000,000 to be maintained by
non-life insurance companies by Chaitra 2079. The company’s current paid up capital after merger with Everest
Insurance Company Limited is Rs. 2,239,936,664 and has submitted it's capital plan to meet the minimum
capital requirement with the Nepal Insurance Authority.

Further, Nepal Insurance Authority has prescribed solvency margin and investment policy to minimise risk of
insolvency on the part of the insurance companies to meet unforeseen liabilities that may arise.

The Company maintains solvency and investment as per the regulations prescribed. It maintains a solvency ratio
of as per the regulatory requirement.

a. Dividend
Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Previous Year
Year
(i) Dividends recognized
Final cash dividend for the year ended Ashad 31, 2078 of Rs. 0.35 per fully paid share 3,851,179 40,060,800
Bonus share for the year ended Ashad 31, 2077 of Rs. 6.65 per fully paid share 73,172,400 32,048,700
(if) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period
In addition to the above dividends, for the year ended the directors have
recommended the payment of a final cash dividend of Rs. 0.14 per fully paid share 3.242,016 3.851179

(2077-78: Rs. 0.35 per fully paid share). This proposed dividend is subject to the
approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting
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Particulars Current Previous Year

Year
In addition to the above dividends, for the year ended the directors have
e, 555 per ull pid ehae). i roposed didend s Subfect 1o e approvl of S5 A8 73172400
shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting
Earnings per share (EPS)

Amount in NRs.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Profit for the year 150,755,453 99,091,506
Add: Interest saving on convertible bonds -
Profit for the year used for calculating diluted earnings per share 150,755,453 99,091,506
\e/\;i]gi:;dpi\r/esﬁagreenumberof equity shares outstanding during the year for basic 1.735,091 11.003.367
Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share:
i) Dilutive shares - -
ii) Options - -
iii) Convertible bonds - -
\e/\éfi]gig:;dp.:\rlirhaagreenumberof equity shares outstanding during the year for diluted 11.735,091 11.003.367
Nominal value of equity shares 100.00 100.00
Basic earnings per share 12.85 9.01
Diluted earnings per share 12.85 9.01
Restated earnings per share 8.44

Segment reporting

Segment information is presented in respect of the Company’s business segments. Management of the
Company has identified portfolio as business segment and the Company's internal reporting structure is also
based on portfolio. Performance is measured based on segment profit as management believes that it is most
relevant in evaluating the results of segment relative to other entities that operate within these industries.

Segment asset is disclosed below based on total of all asset for each business segment.

The Company operates predominantly in Nepal and accordingly, the management of the Company is of the view
that the financial information by geographical segments of the Company’s operation is not necessary to be

presented.

Business segments of the company are:

i Fire

iil Motor

iii. Marine

iv. Engineering
V. Micro

vi. Aviation

vii.  Cattle and Crop

viii.  Miscellaneous
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a. Segmental Information for the year ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)
Amount in NRs.

Inter
Particulars Fire Motor Marine Engineering Micro Aviation Catct:.;:nd Miscellaneous e|5ifngi:1:t?¢:n Total
Income
Gross earned premiums 212,742,274 337992829 29700759 121426532  26,037900 383,536,785 114,765,372 508,370,165 - 1734572615
Premiums ceded (175.360.716)  (7389,887) (174,323,784) (115161,549) (485400512) (460196491) (91,812,297) 113,788,449 - (1,395,856,787)
Inter-segment revenue - - - - - - - - - -
Net earned premiums 37,381,558 330,602,942 (144,623,025) 6,264,983 (459,362,612) (76,659,707) 22,953,075 622,158,614 - 338,715,828
Commission income 45369655 21123534 4311897 10,546,510 396 17452,369 15,974,524 50,499,828 - 165,278,713
Investment income 6234426 17772488 1246289 1700455 - 813,093  1420,043 7700151 - 36,886,945
Net gains/ (losses) on fair B B . . . . B . . .
value changes
Net realised gains/ (losses) - - - - - - - - - -
Other income 280458 1364,562 57,856 31,861 180 9,896 293,812 217515 - 2456142
Total segmental income 89,266,097 370,863,526 (139,006,983) 18,543,810  (459,362,036) (58,384,349) 40,641,454 680,776,108 - 543,337,628
Expenses
Gross claims paid 146,800,515 12586393 131,618,817 4,303,973 241515588 121484,992 94553202 11,941,571 - 764,811,051
Claims ceded (139,590,477) (9617151 (42.786715)  (3,295,631) (241,272,236) (70,169,518) (75,647362)  (11,900,409) - (594,279.499)
ﬁ;gflftf::”ge incontract 109148140) 20,037,584  (2258177) 70266569 10344932 432,545,567 54,576,205 (53,066476) 523,298,064
Change in contract
liabilities ceded to 114,889,851  (6,135,804) 316374 (67736401 (1M,952,577) (432,655,872) (43,293168) 55245397 (491,322,200
reinsurers
Net claims paid 12,951,749 16,871,022 86,890,299 3,538,510 (1,364,293) 51,205,169 30,194,877 2,220,083 - 202,507,416
Commission expenses 1851928 3115086 137,260 290,588 50 3236724 16451961 3,598,702 28,681,699
Service fees 466629 3,371,045 69,865 90,339 44 1324 263325 920,281 - 5182852
E;‘;E‘:;’:: benefits 12630134 14951995 1,300,681 9501418 274 25316634 6055982 33,883,839 - 103,640,957
gipgftf;zt;;zi'lienses 1138,868  1348,232 17,283 856,749 25 2,282,818 546,072 3,055,329 - 9345377
Impairment losses - - - - - - - - - -
Other expenses 8782255 10,396,741 904417 6,606,729 21623 17603703 4,210975 23,560,836 - 72087280
Finance cost 80,896 95,767 8331 60,856 2 162,153 38,789 217,026 - 663,819
Total segmental expenses 37,902,459 50,149,888 89,428,136 20,945,191 (1,342,276) 99,807,925 57,761,981 67,456,096 - 422,109,400
Total segmental results 51,363,638 320,713,638 (228,435118)  (2,401,381) (458,019,760) (158192,274) (17,120,527) 613,320,013 - 121,228,228
Segment assets 157,218,300 142,182,463 34,343,378 168,972,906 305,555,121 734,094,078 150,594,930 378,042,005 - 2,071,003,181
Segment liabilities 218,192,419 372,427,711 48,624,342 187,519,157 305,565,136 734,647,478 185,115,467 468,053,395 - 2,520,145,104
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b. Segmental Information for the year ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

=

Amount in NRs.

Line of Business

Inter
Particulars Fire Motor Marine Engineering Micro Aviation Cat;:eD:nd Miscellaneous e|5i:1gir::t?;n Total
Income
Gross earned premiums 132609519 253485561 21577455 18462978 41486304 174643026 59857546 549468827 - 135/597816
Premiums ceded (623823  (0822980)  (50256M)  (1287253)  (094570) (74090569  (47886037)  (493566600) - (10888545%)
Inter-segment revenue - - - - - - - - - -
Net earned premiums 16,371,306 151255760 6551785 5590446 20,541,734 558,463 1971509 55902217 - 268,743,220
Commission income 7047634 16544349 2633938 07615% 1260309 46050 83743 37692054 108557832
Investment income 3960721 6836137 1287220 99,062 - 300586 1278950 4843263 - 29502938
Net gains/ (losses) on fair . . . . . . B . . .
value changes
Net realised gains/ (losses) 866942 3685175 281753 218023 - 65,794 278943 106017 - 6457746
Other income 7722 58722 1200246 35303 40 15391 20501 3028 - 2731523
Total segmental income 48,522,384 188,935043 1,954,942 17601368 21,802,083 5239323 22128336 99,809,680 - 415993259
Expenses
Gross claims paid 97185452 76219432 3491998 1066841982 351971584 - 3003300 1859758 - 175432425
Claims ceded (Q04755)  (9394640) (705839 (1065804686  (272641304) - (40M408)  (3046603) - (1555561482
ﬁ:’hfﬁtit::”ge in contract BOEEI0T 38875519 573269 (I656M2%0) 188928924 TAAR 3037475 (@mes3) (810401904)
E:;gdgio':ecl‘;':]’i?s liabilities o0 0cn3g)  (32581669) (2091353 166163487 (190850767) (633528 (4470262) 4639739 - 806823266
Net claims paid 9322574 63118642 4,418,075 1589493 77,408,037 70915 11,923,085 47332335 - 215,184,156
Commission expenses 1260603 1538008 81910 673400 7292 - 857401 3402813 - 15,602,037
Service fees 53902 2064940 60752 33951 509703 3918 192864 539084 - 346974
S;E:’SV:: benefits 1334728 2410969 1919207 5869046 278703 28725051 Qa7 35200540 B 107289265
Efnp.ff}f‘f;t'ffn ae:'(‘;enses 1675 1539978 Bgm 403294 191539 19382 (046M) 241887 - 737241
Impairment losses - - - - - - - - - -
Other expenses 634743 10651844 2191 27895%4 2003299 BER903  (1415299) 6730677 - 51672604
Finance cost 295805 496399 2250 179998 174 636255 (65356) 779686 - 2376438
Total segmental expenses 31557736 101,820,780 7566524 TA97T 83034046 45062894 16026385 106403951 - 402,966,033
Total segmental results 16964648 87114363 4383418 6107651  (61231963)  (3982357) 6101951  (6594.272) - 1B,027226
Segment assets 257500689 123991064 39908458 47799554 205810533 211520481 91022818 317328632 - 1294972229

Segment liabilities 299,268,699 297,805,547 55,830,268 53,444,699 221,252,267 212,313,340 11,710,290 371752193 - 1,623,377903
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Amount in NRs.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Segmental profit 121,228,228 13,027,226
Less: Depreciation and amortization (1,038,375) (819,158)
Less: Non-cash expenses other than depreciation and amortization = -
Less: Un-allocable corporate expenditures (19,522,978) (17.587.047)
Add: Un-allocable other income 114,189,869 152,337,391
Less: Finance cost (73,758) (264,049)
Profit before tax 214,782,986 146,694,363

Reconciliation of assets

Amount in NRs.

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Segment assets

Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Deferred tax assets
Investments

Loans

Current tax assets (Net)

Other assets

2,071,003,181
9,090,559
175,103,643
53,241,535
1,843,568,152
59,548,584
728,187,538

1,294,972,229
6,701,583
79,175,041
38,124,779
1,861,879,716
51,200,983
402,046,578

Total assets

4,939,744,199

3,734,100,909

Reconciliation of liabilities

Amount in NRs.

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Segment liabilities
Provisions

Deferred tax liabilities
Current tax liabilities (Net)
Loans and borrowings
Other financial liabilities

Other liabilities

2,520,145,104
8,481,680

200,305,095
102,300,158
48,823,104

2,449,987,381
21,689,733

523,507,383
49,114,434

Total liabilities

2,880,055,141

3,044,298,931

Related party disclosure

The Company does not have any holding, subsidiary and associate companies.

Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling
the activities of the Company. Key management personnel include the board of directors and chief executive

officer of the Company as follows:
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Name of key management personnel Designation

Mr. Mahendra Krishna Shrestha Chairman

Mr. Bikram Krishna Shrestha Director (up to Ashad 27, 2079)
Mr. Vijit Krishna Shrestha Director

Mr. Bhubal Rai

Mr. Ram Prasad Khanal
Mr. Hem Raj Thapa

Mr. Ajaya Ratna Sthapit

Director (from Shrawan 1, 2079)

Director (from Shrawan 1, 2079)

Director (from Shrawan 1, 2079)

Public Director

Mrs. Nura Kumari Sharma Public Director (up to Ashad 27, 2079)

Mr. Dashrath Lal Shrestha Independent Director
Chief Executive Officer (up to Magh 29, 2078)

Chief Executive Officer (from Falgun 1, 2078)

Mr. Sushil Bajracharya
Mr. Vijaya Bahadur Shah

b. Key management personnel compensation
Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Short-term employment benefit 6,826,647 5,209,480
Post-employment benefit 3,940,613 -
Total 10,767,259 5,209,480
C. Payment to chief executive officer
Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Annual salary and allowances 4,503,2101 3,896,550
Performance based allowances
i) Employee bonus 734,707 1,300,015
ii) Benefits as per prevailing provisions 15,393 12,915
i) Incentives 1,573,336 -
Insurance related benefits
i) Life Insurance - -
ii) Accident insurance - -
iii) Health insurance (including family members) 38,736 34,074
Total 6,865,383 5,243,554
53. Leases
The Company’s significant leasing arrangements are in respect of operating leases for building premises.
These arrangements generally range between one year and ten years. The lease arrangements have extension
/ termination options exercisable by either party which may make the assessment of lease term uncertain.
While determining the lease term, all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an
extension option, or not to exercise a termination option are considered.
Lease expenses an account of shart-term leases recognized on straight line basis amounts to Rs. 20,030,971
(2077-78:18,433,580), and Rs. 846,426 (2077-78:1,500,018) has been booked for lease equalization.
54. Commitment and contingencies

The amount of capital commitments and as on the date of statement of financial position is Rs. 62,182,685

(2077-78: Rs. 117446,468).
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55. Staff bonus

Staff bonus has been calculated based on lower of profit before bonus and tax as per GAAP and profit before
bonus and tax as per NFRS. For the year ended Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022), profit before bonus and tax as per
GAAP of Rs. 207,512,462 is lower than profit before bonus and tax as per NFRS of Rs. 235,703,052. Accordingly,
bonus of Rs. 20,751,246 as per GAAP has been provided as staff bonus.

56. Liability adequacy test

The Company has engaged TransValue Consultants of Mumbai, India, an external independent actuary, to
actuarially determine the amount of outstanding claims reserves (OCR), incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims,
unexpired risk reserve (URR) as part of liability adequacy test (LAT). This test is done by the Company annually
and the required reserves are recognised as per the amount determined under liability adequacy test and
regulatory requirements of the Nepal Insurance Authority of Nepal. IBNR is calculated using Basic Chain Ladder
Method. Liahility is recognized at higher of the two estimated liabilities.
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EVEREST INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 32 Ashad 2079

Amount in NRs.

Note FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Assets
Intangible Assets 4 3,219,044 3,621,425
Property, Plant and Equipment 5 70,422,380 96,534,390
Investment Properties 6 = -
Deferred Tax Assets 7 20,182,696 7,280,086
Investment in Subsidiaries 8 = -
Investment in Associates 9 = -
Investments 10 1,736,387,774 1,517,703,401
Loans n 1,685,472 1,881,315
Reinsurance Assets 12 1,453,270,769 1,222,356,937
Current Tax Assets (Net) 21 77,659,079 17,453,829
Insurance Receivables 13 326,482,993 302,661,549
Other Assets 14 87,100,937 80,961,618
Other Financial Assets 15 22,075,235 22,088,132
Cash and Cash Equivalents 16 194,416,385 404,839,559
Total Assets 3,992,902,764 3,677,382,241
Equity & Liabilities
Equity
Share Capital 17 (a) 1,254,620,664 183,604,400
Share Application Money Pending Allotment 17 (b) - -
Share Premium 17(c) - 8,358,970
Insurance Fund 17(d) 416,724,705 412,114,576
Catastrophe Reserves 17(e) 19,328,046 18,867,033
Retained Earnings 17(f) 1,330,505 71,030,248
Other Equity 17(g) 46,425,316 63,340,053
Total Equity 1,738,429,236 1,757,315,280
Liabilities
Provisions 18 14,329,100 14,273,538
Cross Insurance Contract Liabilities 19 2,039,777,207 1,613,994,126
Deferred Tax Liabilities 7 = -
Insurance Payables 20 27,743,756 93,584,275
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 21 - -
Borrowings 22 = -
Other Financial Liabilities 23 29,034,660 69,836,973
Other Liahilities 24 143,588,805 128,378,048
Total Liabilities 2,254,473,528 1,920,066,960
Total Equity and Liabilities 3,992,902,764 3,677,382,241
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
Mahendra Krishna Shrestha  Vijit Krishna Shrestha Ajaya Ratna Sthapit Hem Raj Thapa As per our Report of even date
Chairman Director Director Director

Dhruba Adhikari, FCA
Bhubal Rai Ram Prasad Khanal Vijaya Bahadur Shah Bikash Upadhaya Partner
Director Director Chief Executive Officer ~ Head-Finance Dept. ForM.C.5. & Associates

Chartered Accountants
20-10-2079
Kathmandu
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EVEREST INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Year ended 32 Ashad 2079

% ANNUAL
REPORT 2078-079

Amount in NRs.

Note FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Income
Cross Earned Premium 25 1,132,083,116 960,442,041
Premiums ceded 26 (684,693,316) (556,734,376)
Net Premiums 27 447,389,799 403,707,666
Commission income 28 160,738,452 129,944,840
Investment income 29 139,083,021 113,491,047
Net Gains/ (Losses) on Fair Value Changes 30 - -
Net Realised Gains/ (Losses) 31 3,963,854 70,759,206
Other income 32 128,448,528 7,831,195
Other revenue 432,233,855 322,026,287
Total Revenue 879,623,654 725,733,953
Expenses
Cross claims paid 33 1,023,708,312 894,367,763
Claims ceded 34 (610,476,953) (620,694,618)
Gross Change in Contract Liabilities 35(a) 356,529,316 60,438,488
Change in Contract Liabities Ceded to Reinsurers 35(b) (163,558,032) (60,419,812)
Net Claims Paid 606,202,643 273,691,821
Commission Expenses 36 25,913,343 21,757118
Service Fees 37 4,492,878 4,205,204
Employee Benefits Expenses 38 143,054,140 141,770,236
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 39 5,928,418 4,947,158
Impairment Losses 40 = -
Other Expenses 4 74,714,099 50,945,989
Finance Cost 42 = -
Other expenses 254,102,877 223,625,704
Total Expenses 860,305,520 497,317,525
:c\lljertul'-‘srit;ﬁgtE/‘(lll_jci:ts;)Nl::trh'(l;lsjea\'l]eda;::fore Share of Net Profits of Associates Accounted 19,318.134 228,416,428
Share of Net Profit of Associates accounted using Equity Method = -
Profit Before Tax 19,318,134 228,416,428
Income Tax Expense 43 9,753,278 69,049,236
Net Profit/ (Loss) For The Year 9,564,856 159,367,192
Earning Per Share 50
Basic earnings per share 0.80 14.52
Diluted earnings per share 0.80 14.52

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Mahendra Krishna Shrestha  Vijit Krishna Shrestha Ajaya Ratna Sthapit
Chairman Director Director

Bhubal Rai Ram Prasad Khanal Vijaya Bahadur Shah
Director Director Chief Executive Officer
20-10-2079

Kathmandu

Hem Raj Thapa
Director

Bikash Upadhaya

Head-Finance Dept.

As per our Report of even date

Dhruba Adhikari, FCA

Partner

For M.G.S. & Associates
Chartered Accountants
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EVEREST INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
Year ended 32 Ashad 2079
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Amount in NRs.

FY 2078-79

FY 2077-78

Cash Flow From Operating Actvities:

Cash Received

1,974,769,226

1,798,460,247

Gross Premium Received

Commission Received

Claim Recovery Received from Reinsurers

Realised Foreign Exchange Income other than on Cash and Cash Equivalents
Other Direct Income

Interest Income

1192,074,331
181,378,283
595,404,758

5,911,854

1,031,338,395
140,827,588
620,694,618

5,598,636

Cash Paid (2,222,207,025) (1,934,081,437)
Cross Claims Paid (1,018,340,223) (894,367,763)
RI Premium Paid (809,855,844) (610,818,989)
Commission Paid (39,518,459) (15,213,134)
Service Fees Paid (10,248,103) (9183452)
Employee Benefits Expenses Paid (170,920,223) (145,824,029)
Other Expenses Paid (66,067,965) (46,813,909)
(Increase)/Decrease in Current Assets (14,848,605) (191,388,315)
Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liability (15,057,742) 68,004,587
Income Tax Paid (77,349,863) (88,476,432)
Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities [1] (247,437,799) (135,621,190)
Cash Flow From Investing Activities

Acquisitions of Intangible Assets - (3,150,000)
Proceeds From Sale of Intangible Assets = -
Acquisitions of Investment Properties ° -
Proceeds From Sale of Investment Properties = -
Rental Income Received 7,994,880 7,856,080
Acquisitions of Property, Plant & Equipment - (3,785,023)
Proceeds From Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 135,371,529 3,290,746
Payment for acquisition of Subsidiaries/ Investment in Subsidiaries = -
Investment in Associates = -
Receipts from Sale of Investments in Subsidiaries = -
Receipts from Sale of Investments in Associates S -
Purchase of Equity Instruments = -
Proceeds from Sale of Equity Instruments (4,345,259) 81,813,258

Purchase of Mutual Funds

Proceeds from Sale of Mutual Funds
Purchase of Preference Shares

Proceeds from Sale of Preference Shares
Purchase of Debentures

Proceeds from Sale of Debentures
Purchase of Bonds

Proceeds from Sale of Bonds
Investments in Deposits

(34,492,000)

(202,550,000)

(36,685,000)
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Maturity of Deposits = 161,400,000
Proceeds from Finance Lease = -
Loans Paid (72,354) (7998,063)
Proceeds from Loans = -
Interest Income Received 128,226,336 104,811,854
Dividend Received 6,015,916 823,113
Other Direct Income 4,597,006 1,382,110
Total Cash Flow From Investing Activities [2] 40,746,055 309,759,075

Cash Flow From Financing Activities

Interest Paid - R
Proceeds from Borrowings = -
Repayment of Borrowings - R
Payment of Finance Lease - R
Proceeds From Issue of Share Capital - -
Proceeds From Share Premium - R

Share Issuance Cost Paid - (793,911)
Dividend Paid = -
Dividend Distribution Tax Paid (3,731,430) (4,614,442)
Total Cash Flow From Financing Activities [3] (3,731,430) (5,408,353)
Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash & Cash Equivalents [1+2+3] (210,423,174) 168,729,531
Cash & Cash Equivalents At Beginning of The Year/Period 404,839,559 236,110,027
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents = -
Cash & Cash Equivalents At End of The Year/Period 194,416,385 404,839,559

Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents:

Cash In Hand 657,606 657133
Chegues In Hand = -
Term Deposit with Banks (with initial maturity upto 3 months) - -
Balance With Banks 193,758,779 404,182,426

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Mahendra Krishna Shrestha  Vijit Krishna Shrestha Ajaya Ratna Sthapit Hem Raj Thapa As per our Report of even date
Chairman Director Director Director
Dhruba Adhikari, FCA
Bhubal Rai Ram Prasad Khanal Vijaya Bahadur Shah Bikash Upadhaya Partner
Director Director Chief Executive Officer ~ Head-Finance Dept. For M.G.5. & Associates
Chartered Accountants
20-10-2079
Kathmandu
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EVEREST INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Year ended 32 Ashad 2079

JI@
(g

Amount in NRs.

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Net Profit/ (Loss) For The Year 9,564,856 159,367,192

Other Comprehensive Income

a) Items that are or may be Reclassified to Profit or Loss

Changes in Fair Value of FVOCI Debt Instruments = -
Cash Flow Hedge - Effective Portion of Changes in Fair Value = -
Exchange differences on translation of Foreign Operation = -
Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for using the equity method = -
Income Tax Relating to Above Items = -

Reclassified to Profit or Loss - -

b) Items that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss

Changes in fair value of FVOCI Equity Instruments (30,224,477) 9,811,681
Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment/ Intangible Assets = -
Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligations = -
Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for using the equity method = -
Income Tax Relating to Above Items 9,067,343 (2,943,504)

Total Other Comprehensive Income For the Year, Net of Tax (21,157,134) 6,868,176
Total Comprehensive Income For the Year, Net of Tax (11,592,278) 166,235,369

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Mahendra Krishna Shrestha  Vijit Krishna Shrestha Ajaya Ratna Sthapit Hem Raj Thapa As per our Report of even date
Chairman Director Director Director
Dhruba Adhikari, FCA

Bhubal Rai Ram Prasad Khanal Vijaya Bahadur Shah Bikash Upadhaya Partner

Director Director Chief Executive Officer ~ Head-Finance Dept. ForM.G.5. & Associates
Chartered Accountants

20-10-2079
Kathmandu
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EVEREST INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 32 Ashad 2079

1 General Information

% ANNUAL
REPORT 2078-079

Former Everest Insurance Company Limited (herein after referred to as the ‘Company’) was incorporated on
2048/08/17 (3 Dec 1991) and operated as general insurance company after obtaining license on 2051/02/17

(31 May 1994) under the Insurance Act 2049. The registered office of the Company was located at Hattisar,

Kathmandu. The Company’s shares are listed on Nepal Stock Ecxhange (NEPSE) .

The company has now merged with Himalayan General Insurance Company Limited and has started a joint
operation since 17 July 2022 in name of Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited. The financial statements are
approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 19th Magh 2079 (2nd February 2023).

2 Basis of Preparation

(@) Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRS) issued by the Nepal Accounting Standards Board (ASB), as per the provisions of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Nepal Act, 1997. These canfirm, in material respect, to NFRS as issued by the Nepal Accounting

Standards Board. The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The term NFRS,

includes all the standards and the related interpretations which are consistently used.

(b) Basis of Measurement

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for following Assets & Liabilities

which have been measured at Fair Value amount:

i. Certain Financial Assets & Liabilities which are required to be measured at fair value

ii. Defined Employee Benefits

iii. Insurance Contract Liabilities which are required to be determined using actuarial valuation for Liability

Adequacy Test (LAT).

Historical cost is generally Fair Value of the consideration given in exchange for goods & services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable

or estimated using another valuation technique.

In addition, for Financial Reporting purposes, Fair Value measurements are categorized into Level 1, or 2, or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the Fair Value measurements are observable & the significance of
the inputs to the Fair Value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1- Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical Assets or Liabilities that

the entity can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 - Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the

Asset or Liability, either directly or indirectly; and
. Level 3 - Inputs are unaobservable inputs for the Asset or Liability.

() Use of Estimates

The preparation of these Financial Statements in conformity with NFRS requires management to make

estimates, judgements and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the reported
balances of Assets & Liabilities, disclosures relating to Contingent Liabilities as at the date of the Financial

Statements and the reported amounts of Income & Expenses for the years presented. Actual results may differ
from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Changes in

estimates are reflected in the Financial Statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material,

their effects are disclosed in the Notes to the financial statements.
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(d) Functional and Presentation Currency

These Financial Statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is the Company’s functional currency.
All financial information presented in NPR has been rounded to the nearest rupee except where indicated
otherwise.

(e) Going Concern

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis. The Board of Directors have considered a wide
range of information relating to present and future conditions, including future projections of profitability, cash
flows and capital resources while assessing the going concern basis. Furthermore, Board is not aware of any
material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon Company’s ability to continue as a going concern
and they do not intend either to liguidate or to cease operations of it.

(f) Changes in Accounting Palicies

Accounting policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by the Company in
preparing and presenting financial statements. The Company is permitted to change an accounting policy only
if the change is required by a standard or interpretation; or results in the financial statements providing reliable
and more relevant information about the effects of transactions, other events or conditions on the entity’s
financial position, financial performance, or cash flows.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the significant policies adopted in the preparation of these Financial Statements.
a) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
i) Recognition

Freehold land is carried at historical cost and other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation when, it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and it can be used for more than one year and the cost can be
measured reliably.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
onlywhenit meets the recognition criteriaas mentioned above. The carrying amount of any component accounted
for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or
loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

i) Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment other than Freehold Land i.e. the Company’s Freehold Building,
Plant & Machinery, Vehicles & QOther Assets is provided on “Straight Line Method (SLM)/ Diminishing Balance
Method (DBM)” based on Useful Life estimated by technical expert of the management.

The Assets Useful Life/ Rate of Depreciation and Residual Values are reviewed at the Reporting date and the
effect of any changes in estimates are accounted for on a prospective basis.

Useful Life of Property, Plant and Equipment based on SLM/DBM is categorised as stated below:

Useful Life Rate of Depreciation

List of Asset Categories (In Years) for SLM (In %) for DBM

Land Not Applicable Not Applicable

Buildings 40.00 -
Leasehold Improvement = Lease Period
Furniture & Fixtures = 8.33%
Computers and IT Equipments - 10.00%
Office Equipment - 10.00%
Vehicles - 20.00%

Other Assets - 10.00%
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An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no Future Economic Benefits
are expected to arise from the continued use of the Asset. Any Gain or Loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the Asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

iv) Impairment

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the Asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of
disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present
value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk
specific to the assets. Assets that suffer an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
the end of each reporting period. In case of such reversal, the carrying amount of the asset is increased so as not
to exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had there been no impairment loss.

V) Capital Work-In-Progress

These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings, major plant and machinery
and system development which are to be capitalized. Capital Work in Progress would be transferred to the

relevant asset when it is available for use. Capital Work in Progress is stated at cost less any accumulated

impairment losses.

Capital work in Progress of Rs. 14,011,399.00 includes:

1. The company has been operating on land with Kitta numbers 1710 and 1711, as well as building built there
under joint ownership of businesses including Everest Insurance Company Limited. Applicable taxes and rates
are being paid to the local authorities as per existing laws. However, the construction of this building has
not yet been approved by Insurance Board and Kathmandu Metropolitant City. Capital expenditure of NPR
12,066,955.00 has been made till now for construction of the same which has been classified as wark in

progress.

2. Advance of NPR 1,944,444.00 paid on 30 June 2011 to Dream Tekis Software Pvt. Ltd., Banglore, India for

Installation and operation of ‘SochamGeni’ Insurance Software has not been installed within the stipulated

time and the capital expenditure on the same has been classified as work in progress.

b. Intangible Assets

i) Recognition

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.
Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and the related

expenditure is reflected in statement of profit or loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits

embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

i) Amortization

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. An intangible asset shall be
regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on an analysis of all of the relevant factors, there is no

foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected generate net cash inflow for the entity

Amoartisation is recognised in income statement on straight line method over the estimated useful life of the
intangible assets or diminishing balance methaod from the date that it is available for use since this most closely
reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of
future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets

with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Useful Life of Intangible Assets based on DBM is categorised as stated below:
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List of Asset Categories Useful Life Rate of Depreciation

(In Years) for SLM (In %) for DBM
Softwares 10.00
Licences Licence Period

iii) Derecognition

An Intangible Asset is derecognised when no Future Economic Benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the Asset. Any Gain or Loss arising on the derecognition is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the Asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

iv) Impairment of Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that Intangible Assets may
be impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to determine the
extent of impairment, if any. An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss to the extent,
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s fair
value less cost of dispasal and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted
to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and risk specific to the assets.

c. Investment Properties
Cost Model:

Property that is held for rental income or for capital appreciaiton or both, is classified as investment property.
Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including related transaction cost. It is subsequently carried
at cost less accumulated depreciation. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company
and the cost can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

Land is carried at historical cost, however, buildings are depreciated over their estimated useful lives as
mentioned above.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of, or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any
gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from
investment property to PPE, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of change
in use. If PPE becomes an investment property, the Company accounts for such property in accordance with the
policy stated under PPE up to the date of change in use.

d. Cash & Cash Equivalent

For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash Flows, Cash & Cash Equivalents includes Cash In Hand,
Bank Balances and short term deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

e. Financial Assets

i) Initial Recognition & Measurement

Financial Assetsarerecognized when, and onlywhen, the Company becomesapartytothe contractual provisions of
the Financial Instrument. The Company determines the classification of its Financial Assets at initial recognition.
When Financial Assets are recognized initially, they are measured at Fair Value, plus, in the case of Financial
Assets not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisation of the
Financial Asset. Transaction costs of Financial Assets carried at Fair Value through Profit or Loss are expensed in
the Statement of Profit or Loss.
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A Financial Asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the Financial Asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. Interest income in these financial assets is measured using effective interest rate method.

b) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

A Financial Asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by
both collecting contractual cash flows and selling Financial Assets and the contractual terms of the Financial
Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. These financial assets are measured at fair value and changes are taken to statement of

other comprehensive income.

) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

A Financial Asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL. These financial
assets are measured at fair value and changes are taken to statement of profit or loss.

iii) De-Recognition

A Financial Asset is derecognized only when the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from
the Financial Asset. Where the Company has transferred an Asset, the Company evaluates whether it has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the Financial Asset. In such cases, the Financial
Asset is derecognized. Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
of the Financial Asset, the Financial Asset is not derecognized. Where the Company retains control of the
Financial Asset, the Asset is continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing involvement in the Financial

Asset.

iv) Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group
of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred since the initial recognition
of the asset (anincurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event has animpact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment mayinclude
indications that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinguency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganization and observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

f. Financial Liabilities

i) Initial Recognition & Measurement

FinancialLiabilitiesarerecognizedwhen,andonlywhen,theCompanybecomesapartytothecontractualprovisionsof
theFinancialInstrument. The Companydeterminestheclassificationofits Financial Liabilities atinitial recognition.
All Financial Liabilities are recognized initially at Fair Value, plus, in the case of Financial Liabilities not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the issue of the Financial Liability.

i) Subsequent Measurement

After initial recognition, Financial Liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the Effective
Interest Method. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the date of Statement of Financial
Position, the carrying amounts approximate Fair value due to short maturity of these instruments.

i) De-Recognition

A Financial Liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing Financial Liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective

carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.
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g. Offsetting financial instruments
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Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Statement of Financial Position
where there is legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankrupcy of the Company or the counterparty.

h. Reinsurance Assets

Reinsurance assets are the assets which are created against insurance contract liabilities of the amount which are
recoverable from the reinsurer. These assets are created for the resinsurer’s share of insurance contract liabilities.
A reinsurance asset is impaired if there is objective evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after the initial
recognition of the reinsurance asset, that the Company may not receive all amounts due to it under the terms of
the contract, and the event has a reliably measurable impact on the amount that the company will receive from
the re-insurer. If a reinsurance asset is impaired, the company reduces the carrying amount accordingly and is
recognized in statement of profit or loss.

i Equity

Financial Instruments issued by the Company are classified as Equity only to the extent that they do not meet
the definition of a Financial Liability or Financial Asset.

j- Reserves and Funds

i) Share Premium: If the Company issues share capital at premium it receives extra amount other than share
capital such amount is transferred to share premium. The amount in share premium is allowed for distribution
of bonus shares.

i) Insurance Fund: The Company has allocated insurance fund for the amount which is 50% of the net profit every
year as per Regulator’s Directive.

iii) Catastrophe Reserves: The Company has allocated catastrophe reserve for the amount which is 10% of the
distributable profit for the year as per Regulator's Directive. Catastrophe reserveis not allocated on a distributable
profit carried forward from previous years as the reserve is already created previously on those amounts.

iv) Fair Value Reserves: The Company has policy of creating fair value reserve equal to the amount of Fair Value Gain
recognized in statement of other comprehensive income as per regulator’s directive.

v) Regulatory Reserves: Reserve created out of net profit in line with different circulars issued by Insurance
Board.

vi) Actuarial Reserves: Reseserve against actuarial gain or loss on present value of defined benefit obligation
resuting from, experience adjustments (the effects of differences between the previous actuarial assumptions
and what has actually occurred); and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions.

vii)  Cashflow Hedge Reserves: Is the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to a particular risk
associated with all or a component of a recognized asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction,
and could affect profit or loss. Reserve represent effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument
recognized in other comprehensive income.

viii)  Revaluation Reserves: Reserve created against revaluation gain on property, plant & equipments & intangible
assets, other than the reversal of earlier revalaution losses charged to profit or loss.

ix) Deferred Tax Reserve : Reserve created against deferred tax income recognized in SOPL and SOCI.
k. Insurance Contract Liabilities
i) Provision for unearned premiums

Unearned premiums reserve represents the portion of the premium written in the year but relating to the
unexpired term of coverage. Change in reserve for unearned insurance premium represents the net portion of
the gross written premium transferred to the unearned premium reserve during the year to cover the unexpired
period of the palices.
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Outstanding claims provisions

Outstanding claims provisions are based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred but not settled at
the statement of financial position date, whether reported or not, together with related claims handling costs.

Provision for claim incurred but not reported (IBNR)

Significant delays are experienced in the notification and settlement of certain types of claims, the
ultimate cost of which cannot be known with certainty at the statement of financial position date.
The liability is calculated at the reporting date using a range of standard actuarial claim projection techniques,
based on empirical data and current assumptions that may include a margin for adverse deviation.

Liability adequacy

At each reporting date, the Company reviews its unexpired risk and a liability adequacy test is performed to
determine whether there is any overall excess of expected claims and deferred acquisition costs over unearned
premiums. The calculation uses current estimates of future contractual cash flows after taking account of the
investment return expected to arise on assets relating to the relevant non-life insurance technical provisions.
If these estimates show that the carrying amount of the unearned premiums is inadequate, the deficiency is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss by setting up a provision for liability.

Employee Benefits

Short Term Obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within
12 manths after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect
of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be
paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the
Statement of Financial Position.

Post - Employment Benefits
- Defined Contribution Plan

The Company pays Provident Fund contributions to publicly administered Provident Funds as per local regulations.
The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are
accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contribution are recognized as Employee Benefit Expense
when they are due.

- Defined Benefit Plan

For Defined Benefit Plan, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method,
with Actuarial Valuations being carried out at each Statement of Financial Position. Actuarial Gains & Losses
on liability towards leave availment are recognized through statement of Profit or Loss and any other Actuarial
Gains & Losses are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income in the period in which they occur. Past service
cost is recognized immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested and otherwise is amortized on
a Straight Line Basis over the average period until the benefits become vested. The retirement benefit obligation
recognized in the Statement of Financial Position represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation
as adjusted for unrecognized past service cost, as reduced by the Fair Value of plan Assets (If Any). Any Asset
resulting from this calculation is limited to past service cost, plus the present value of available refunds and
reductions in future contributions to the plan.

Long Term Employee Benefits

The liabilities for un-availed earned leaves are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end
of the period in which the employees render the related service. Leave Encashment has been computed using
Actuarial Assumptions and these are measured at the present value of expected future payments to be made
in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the year using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the year that have terms approximating to the
terms of assumptions.

Termination

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the normal retirement
date, orwhen an employee accepts voluntary retirement in exchange of these benefits. The Company recognises
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termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates:

J-I/./}/‘,&
(g
(R

a) when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and

b) when the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of NAS 37 and involves
the payment of termination benefits. The termination benefits are measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer in case of voluntary retirement scheme.

n. Revenue Recognition

) Gross Earned Premiums

GrossEarnedPremiumsarearrivedatafterdeductingunearnedpremiumreservesfromDirectPremiumandFaculative
Inward Premium. Direct premiums comprise the total premiums receivable for the whole period of cover provided by
contractsenteredintoduring the reporting period. They are recognised on the date on which the policy commences.
Unearned premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of risk after
the reporting date. Unearned premiums are calculated on a daily pro rata basis. The proportion attributable to
subsequent periods is deferred as a provision for unearned premiums.

i) Reinsurance Premium

Direct Reinsurance premiums comprise the total premiums payable for the whole cover provided by contracts entered
into the period and are recognized on the date on which the policy incepts. Premiums include any adjustments arising
in the accounting period in respect of reinsurance contracts incepting in prior accounting periods.

Unearned reinsurance premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of
risk after the reporting date. Unearned reinsurance premiums are deferred over the term of the underlying direct
insurance policies for risks- attaching contracts and over the term of the reinsurance contract for losses occurring
contracts.

Reinsurance premiums and claims on the face of the statement of profit or loss have been presented as
negative items within premiums and net claims, respectively, because this is consistent with how the business
is managed.

i) Commission Income

Commission Income is recognised on accrual basis. If the income is for future periods, then they are deferred and
recognised over those future periods.

iv) Investment income

Interest income is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as it accrues and is calculated by using the
EIR method. Fees and commissions that are an integral part of the effective yield of the financial asset are
recognised as an adjustment to the EIR of the instrument. Investment income also includes dividends when the
right to receive payment is established.

V) Net realised gains and losses

Net realised gains and losses recorded in the statement of profit or loss include gains and losses on financial
assets and properties. Gains and losses on the sale of investments are calculated as the difference between
net sales proceeds and the original or amortised cost and are recorded on occurrence of the sale transaction

o. Product Classification

Insurance contracts are those contracts when the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant insurance risk
from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a specified uncertain future
event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders. As a general guideline, the Company determines
whether it has significant insurance risk by comparing benefits paid with benefits payable if the insured event
did not occur. Insurance contracts can also transfer financial risk.

The Company has following portfolios under which it operates its business:

i) Fire Portfolio - Fire insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out contracts of insurance,
otherwise than incidental to some other class of insurance business against loss or damage to property due to
fire, explosion, storm and other occurrences customarily included among the risks insured against in the fire
insurance business.
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Motor Portfolio - Motor insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out contracts of
insurance against loss of, or damage to, or arising out of or in connection with the use of, motor vehicles, inclusive
of third party risks but exclusive of transit risks.

Marine Portfolio - Marine insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out contracts of
insurance against loss of consignment of goods during transit.

Engineering Portfolio - Engineering insurance business means the insurance that provides economic safeguard
to the risks faced by the ongoing construction project, installation project, and machines and equipment in
project operation.

Micro Portfolio - Micro Insurance protects against loss of or damage to crops or livestock. It has great potential
to provide value to low-income farmers and their communities, both by protecting farmers when shocks occur
and by encouraging greater investment in crops.

Aviation Portfolio - Aviation Insurance provides coverage for hull losses as well as liability for passenger injuries,
environmental and third-party damage caused by aircraft accidents.

Cattle and Crop Portfolio - Cattle and Crop Insurance provides insurance against loss of or damange to Cattle
and crops.

Miscellaneous Portfolio - All the insurance business which doesn't fall in above categories fall under
miscellaneous insurance business. Group Personal Accidents, Medical Insurances, Professional indemnity
insurance etc. fall under this category of business.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
Cash Flow Statement

Cash Flows are reported using the direct method, whereby major classes of cash receipts and cash payments are
disclosed as cash flows.

Leases
Finance Leases

Leases in which the Company has substantial portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
Finance Leases. Assets acquired under Finance Leases are capitalised at the lower of the Fair Value of the Leased
Assets at the inception of the Lease Term & the Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments. Lease Payments
are apportioned between the Finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The Finance Charge
is allocated to periods during the Lease Term at a constant periodic Rate of Interest on the remaining balance of
the liability.

Operating Lease

Leases in which the Company doesn’t have substantial portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as Operating Leases. Payment made under Operating Leases are charged to Statement of Profit &
Loss on a Straight Line Basis.

Income Taxes
Income Tax Expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable & Deferred Tax.
Current Tax

Current Tax Expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and expenses relate. Provision for
Current Income Tax is made for the Tax Liability payable on Taxable Income after considering tax allowances,
deductions and exemptions determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the prevailing tax laws.
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i) Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of Assets & Liabilities in the Statement
of Financial Position and their Tax Base. Deferred tax Assets & Liabilities are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary
differences arising between the tax base of Assets & Liabilities and their carrying amount in Financial Statements, except
when the Deferred Income Tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill, an Asset or Liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable Profits or Loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred Tax Assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible Temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilized.

Deferred Tax Liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable Temporary differences. The carrying amount of
Deferred Tax Assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the Deferred Tax Asset to be utilized.

t. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets
(i) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.
Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate to determine the present
value is a Pre-Tax Rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.
Provisions for Contingent Liability are recognized in the books as a matter of abundant precaution and
conservative approach based on management’s best estimate. However, Management believes that chances of
these matters going against the company are remote and there will not be any probable cash outflow.

(i) Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities are recognized only when there is a possible obligation arising from past events due
to occurrence or non-occurrence of one or mare uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of resources or where a
reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made. Obligations are assessed on an ongoing basis and only those
having a largely probable outflow of resources are provided for.

(i) Contingent Assets
Contingent assets where it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company are not recognized
but disclosed in the Financial Statements.

u. Foreign Currency Transactions

The Financial Statements of the Company are presented in Nepalese Rupees, which is the Company’s Functional
Currency. In preparing the Financial Statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the
Company’s Functional Currency i.e. Foreign Currencies are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
dates of the transactions.

V. Earnings Per Share
Basic Earning per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the company by the Weighted
Average Number of equity shares outstanding during the Financial Year.

or diluted earning per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

wW. Operating Segment

Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM) as defined by NFRS 8, “Operating Segment”.

Company’s Income & Expenses including interest are considered as part of un-allocable Income & Expenses
which are not identifiable to any business segment. Company’s Asset & Liabilities are considered as part of un-
allocable Assets & Liabilities which are not identifiable to any business.
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EVEREST INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 32 Ashad 2079

4, Intangible Assets
Amount in NRs.

Software License Total

Gross Carrying Amount:

At Shrawan 12077 1,475,085 - 1,475,085
Additions :

Acquisition 3,150,000 - 350,000
Internal Development - - -
Disposals - - R

Revaluation - - -

At Shrawan 12078 4,625,085 - 4,625,085

Additions :

Acquisition - - R
Internal Development - - R
Disposals - B R
Revaluation - - -

At 32 Ashad 2079 4,625,085 - 4,625,085

Accumulated Amortization and Impairment -
At Shrawan 12077 601,280 - 601,280
Additions 402,381 - 402,381
Disposals B - -
Impairment losses - - -
Impairment reversal - - -

At Shrawan 12078 1,003,660 - 1,003,660

Additions 402,381 - 402,381
Disposals - - -
Impairment losses - - R

Impairment reversal - - -

At 32 Ashad 2079 1,406,041 - 1,406,041

Net book value:

At 31 Ashad 2077 873,805 - 873,805

At 31 Ashad 2078 3,621,425 - 3,621,425

At 32 Ashad 2079 3,219,044 - 3,219,044
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Insurance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 32 Ashad 2079

¢

6. Investment Properties )
Amount in NRs.

Gross carrying amount Land Building Total

At Shrawan 12077 - - -
Additions - - -
Disposals - - -
Transfer/ adjustments - R -
At Shrawan 12078 - - -
Additions - - _

Disposals - R -
Transfer/ adjustments - - R

At 32 Ashad 2079 - - -

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

At Shrawan 12077 - R -

Depreciation charge - - -
Disposals - R -
Impairment losses - - -
Impairment reversal - - -
Transfer/ adjustments - R -

At Shrawan 12078 - R -

Depreciation charge - - -
Disposals - R -
Impairment losses - - -
Impairment reversal - - -

Transfer/ adjustments - - -

At 32 Ashad 2079 - - -

Capital Work-In-Progress

At Shrawan 12077 - - -
Additions - - _

Capitalization - - -
Disposals - - -
Impairment losses - - _
Impairment reversal - - -
At Shrawan 12078 - - -
Additions - - _

Capitalization - - -
Disposals - - -
Impairment losses - - _
Impairment reversal - - -

At 32 Ashad 2079 - - -

Net Carrying Amount:

At 31 Ashad 2077 - - -

At 31 Ashad 2078 - - -

At 32 Ashad 2079 - R -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 32 Ashad 2079

(i) Amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss for investment properties Amount in NRs.

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Rental income S -
Direct operating expenses from property that generated rental income = -
Direct operating expenses from property that didn't generated rental income = -

Profit from investment properties before depreciation S -

Depreciation charge = R

Profit from investment properties

(ii) Contractual obligations: Refer note no. 54 For disclosure of contractual obligations relating to investment properties.

(iii) Fair Value of Investment Properties :

Particulars FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Land -
Building -
Total -
7. Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) Amount in NRs.
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Intangible Assets (161,490) (161,490)
Property, plant and equipment (4190,252) (5,297,315)
Financial Assets at FVTPL = -
Financial Assets at FVTOCI 9,061,453 (5,890)
Provision for Gratuity and Leave Encashment 3,789,923 3,615,826
Defined Benefits Plan = -
Impairment Loss on Financial Assets = -
Impairment Loss on Other Assets = -
Tax Losses = -
Loss on Investment 91,456 91,456
Provision for bad debt 7780,416 6,288,286
Provision for probable salary 692,091 692,091
Provision for unexpired risk reserve 3,119,098 2,057121
Total 20,182,696 7,280,086
7.1 Movements in deferred tax assets/(liablities) Amount in NRs.
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
At 1 Shrawan 2078 7,280,086 7,109,877
Charged/(Credited) to Statement of Profit or Loss 3,835,267 313,714
Charged/(Credited) to Other Comprehensive Income 9,067,343 (2,943,504)
Total 20,182,696 7,280,086
8. Investments in Subsidiaries Amount in NRs.
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Investment in Quoted Susidiaries
Investment in Unguoted Susidiaries
Less: Impairment Losses

Total
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 32 Ashad 2079

¢

Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries Amount in NRs.
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
........... Shares of Rs............ eachof ... Ltd = 9 - -
........... Shares of Rs............ eachof ... Ltd - - - -
Total - - - -

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Cost Cost
Information Relating to Subsidiaries Amount in NRs.

Percentage of Ownership

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
........... Shares of Rs.......... eachof ... Ltd = -
........... Shares of Rs........... eachof ... Ltd - -
........... Shares of Rs............ eachof ... Ltd. = -
........... Shares of Rs............ eachof ... Ltd. S -
Total - -
9. Investments in Associates

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Investment in Quoted Susidiaries - -
Investment in Unquoted Susidiaries = -
Less: Impairment Losses = -
Total - -
Investment in Quoted Associates

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Cost Cost
........... Shares of Rs........... eachof ... Ltd. = -
........... Shares of Rs............ eachof ... Ltd. - -
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years S -
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Current Year = -
Total - -

Investment in Unquoted Associates

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Cost Cost

. Shares of Rs.
. Shares of Rs.
........... Shares of Rs........... eachof ... Ltd. = -
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years = -

. eachof .. Ltd. = -

. eachof ..

Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Current Year - -

Total - -
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As at 32 Ashad 2079

Information Relating to Associates

% ANNUAL
REPORT 2078-079

Amount in NRs.

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Name = -
Place of Business = -
Accounting Method = -
% of Ownership = -
Current Assets = -
Non-Current Assets = -
Current Liabilities = -
Non-Current Liabilities - -
Income = -
Net Profit or Loss = -
Other Comprehensive Income = -
Total Comprehensive Income = -
Company's share of profits -
Net Profit or Loss -
Other Comprehensive Income -
10. Investments Amount in NRs.

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Investments measured at Amortised Cost
Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions = -
Investment in Debentures 124,487,641 86,442,648
Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government) = -
Fixed Deposit with “A” Class Financial Institutions 1,074,389,930 880,431,703
Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Bank = -
Fixed Deposits with “B” Class Financial Institutions 284,500,000 284,450,000
Fixed Deposits with “C" Class Financial Institutions 39,546,517 31,000,000
Less: impairment = -
Investments measured at FVTOCI
Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted) 198,324,086 212,962,475
Investment in Equity Instruments (Unguoted) 1,195,000 1,320,000
Investment in Mutual Funds 13,944,600 21,096,576

Investment in Debentures
Investments measured at FVTPL
Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)

Investment in Mutual Funds

Total

1,736,387,774

1,517,703,401
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a) Details of Impairment Losses Amount in NRs.

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions = -
Investment in Debentures = -
Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government) = -
Fixed Deposit with “A" Class Financial Institutions S -
Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Bank = -
Fixed Deposits with “B” Class Financial Institutions = -

Fixed Deposits with “C" Class Financial Institutions = -

Total - -

b) Investments having expected maturities less than 12 months FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted) - -
Investment in Equity Instruments (Unguoted) - -
Investment in Mutual Funds = -
Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions = -
Investment in Debentures = -
Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government) = -
Fixed Deposit with “A" Class Financial Institutions = -
Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Bank = -
Fixed Deposits with “B” Class Financial Institutions = -

Fixed Deposits with “C" Class Financial Institutions = -

Total - -
10.1 Investments on Debentures / Bonds Amount in NRs.
INVESTMENT AT AMOUNT RS. INTEREST RATE
10% Himalayan Bank Ltd Debenture 2083 5,000,000 10.00%
10% Nabil Debenture 2082 5,000,000 10.00%
10% Nepal SBI Bank Debenture 2086 2,000,000 10.00%
10% Prabhu Bank Debenture 2084 5,746,000 10.00%
10% Prime Debenture 2088 5,000,000 10.00%
10.25% Civil Bank Debenture 2088 4,020,000 10.25%
10.25% KBL Debenture 2086 2,500,000 10.25%
10.25% NIC Asia Debenture 2083/84 20,000,000 10.25%
10.25% SBL Debenture 2083 10,000,000 10.25%
10.25% Sunrise Debenture 2083 5,000,000 10.25%
10.50% Century Debenture 2088 2,500,000 10.50%
10.75% SBL Debenture 2089 9,726,000 10.75%
8.5% BOK Debenture 2086 2,963,000 8.50%
8.5% Everest Bank Debenture 2086 2,000,000 8.50%
8.5% Machhapuchchhre Debenture 2087 5,000,000 8.50%
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8.5% NMB Debenture 2087/88 2,542,000 8.50%
8.5% Sanima Bank Debenture 2087 4,000,000 8.50%
8.5% SBL Debenture 2084 9,754,000 8.50%
8.75% Muktinath Debenture 2084/85 1,768,000 8.75%
9% Jyoti Bikas Bond 2087 4,478,000 9.00%
9% KSBBL Debenture 2087 5,000,000 9.00%
9.5% Manjushree Finance Ltd Debenture 2085 6,680,000 9.50%
Total 120,677,000

10.2 Quoted Equity Shares

Amount in NRs.

No. of Shares Carrying value Fair value

Asian Life Insurance Co Ltd 1,250 717,500 717,500
Chhimek Laghubitta Bikas Bank Ltd 3,336 3,669,600 3,669,600
Citizen Bank International Ltd 15,807 3,200,918 3,200,918
Himalayan Bank Ltd 11,560 3,458,752 3,458,752
Infinity Laghubitta Bittaya Sanstha Ltd 3,362 3,328,380 3,328,380
Manjushree Finance Limited 2,800 1,251,600 1,251,600
Mirmire Microfinance Development Bank Ltd 1,994 2,093,700 2,093,700
Nerude Laghubitta Bikas Bank Ltd 3,000 2,640,000 2,640,000
National Life Insurance Co Ltd 4,760 2,746,520 2,746,520
Nepal Doorsanchar Company Limited 5,462 4,800,552 4,800,552
Nirdhan Utthan Bank Ltd 2,500 2,747,500 2,747,500
Shivam Cement Pvt Ltd 3495 2,656,200 2,656,200
Vijaya Laghubitta Bittaya Sanstha Ltd 3,400 3,196,000 3,196,000
Nepal Reinsurance Co. Ltd. 1,618,169 161,816,865 161,816,865

Total 1,680,895 198,324,086 198,324,086

10.3 Unquoted Equity Shares

Amount in NRs.

No. of Shares Carrying value Fair value
Insurance Institute Nepal 11,950 1,195,000 1,195,000
Total 11,950 1,195,000 1,195,000
10.4 Quoted Mutual Fund Shares
No. of Shares Carrying value Fair value
Siddhartha Investment Growth Schme 2 1,100,000 10,769,000 10,769,000
Nic Asia Balance Fund 110,000 1,178,100 1,178,100
Mega Mutual Fund-1 250,000 1,997,500 1,997,500
Total 1,460,000 13,944,600 13,944,600
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 32 Ashad 2079

Insurance Limited

11. Loans Amount in NRs.
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Loan to Associates = -
Loan and Advance to Employees 1,685,472 1,881,315
Loan to Agent = -
Less: Impairment Provisions - -
Total 1,685,472 1,881,315
a) Expected recovery period within 12 months:
FY 2078-79 FY 207778
Loan to Associates = -
Loan and Advance to Employees 1,685,472 1,881,315
Loan to Agent = -
Less: Impairment Provisions = -
Total 1,685,472 1,881,315
12. Reinsurance Asset Amount in NRs.
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Unearned Premiums 361,542,079 294,186,279
Premium Deficiency 22,309,503 30,836,964
IBNR and IBNER Claim 180,913,483 99,820,812
Outstanding Claims 879,332,699 792,521,842
Margin For Adverse Deviation 9,173,005 4,991,041

Less: Impairment Losses

Total

1,453,270,769

1,222,356,937

13. Insurance receivables

Amount in NRs.

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Receivable from Reinsurers 267,055,004 235,615,164
Receivable from Other Insurance Companies 18,164,356 35,045,301
Outstanding premium receivable- Nepal Insurance Authority 41,263,633 32,001,084
Less: Impairment provisions - -
Total 326,482,993 302,661,549
a) Expected recovery period within 12 months: Amount in NRs.

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Receivable from Reinsurers 267,055,004 235,615,164
Receivable from Other Insurance Companies 18,164,356 35,045,301
Outstanding premium receivable- insurance board 41,263,633 32,001,084
Less: Impairment provisions = -
Total 326,482,993 302,661,549
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As at 32 Ashad 2079
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Amount in NRs.

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Capital Advances = -
Prepaid Expenses 4,966,994 4,333,076
Claim Advance 19,000,000 24,500,000
Advance To Suppliers = -
Staff Advance - -
VAT Receivable - B
Printing and Stationery Stocks = -
Stamp Stocks = -
Deferred Expense - -
Deferred Reinsurance Commssion Expense 953,449 2,450,477
Deferred Agent Commssion Expense 12,420,031 10,855,646
Finance Lease Receivable = -
Gold Coins = -
Deposit For Utilities 61,000 61,000
Deposit For Corporate Tax 39,589,615 33,240,426
Advance for Bid Bond 412,000 1,378,000
Receivables on sale of Financial Instruments 7,572,848 4,142,994
Advance for Global Equity Fund 2,000,000 -
Advance for Multi Derivative Exchange Nepal Ltd 125,000 -
Other Advance = -
Less: Impairment Losses - -

Total 87,100,937 80,961,618
a) Expected to be recovered/ settled within 12 months

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Capital Advances - -
Prepaid Expenses 4,966,994 4,333,076
Claim Advance 19,000,000 24,500,000
Advance To Suppliers = -
Staff Advance - -
VAT Receivable - -
Printing and Stationery Stocks = -
Stamp Stocks = -
Deferred Expense - -
Deferred Reinsurance Commssion Expense 953,449 2,450,477
Deferred Agent Commssion Expense 12,420,031 10,855,646
Finance Lease Receivable = -
Cold Coins = -
Deposit For Utilities 61,000 61,000
Deposit For Corporate Tax 39,589,615 33,240,426
Advance for Bid Bond 412,000 1,378,000
Receivables on sale of Financial Instruments 7,572,848 4,142,994
Advance for Global Equity Fund 2,000,000 -
Advance for Multi Derivative Exchange Nepal Ltd 125,000 -
Other Advance - -
Less: Impairment Losses - -
Total 87,100,937 80,961,618
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15. Other Financial Assets Amount in NRs.

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Security Deposits = -
Accrued Interest = -
Other Receivables - -
Other Deposits = -
Sundry Debtors 22,075,235 22,088,132
Less: Impairment Losses = -
Total 22,075,235 22,088,132
a) Expected maturities within 12 months:
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Security Deposits = -
Accrued Interest - -
Other Receivables - -
Other Deposits = -
Sundry Debtors 1,688,521 1,701,418
Less: Impairment Losses - -
Total 1,688,521 1,701,418
16. Cash and cash Equivalent
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Cash In Hand 657,606 657133
Chegues In Hand - R
Bank Balances :
i) Balance with “A” Class Financial Institutions 161,287,840 306,761,757
ii) Balance with Infrastructure Bank - -
i) Balance with “B” Class Financial Institutions 23,602,733 63,449,757
iv) Balance with “C” Class Financial Institutions 9,173,057 34,275,764
Less: Impairment Losses = -
Deposit with initial maturity upto 3 months = -
Less: Impairment Provisions (304,852) (304,852)
Total 194,416,385 404,839,559
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As at 32 Ashad 2079

17. Equity
17 (a). Share Capital

% ANNUAL
REPORT 2078-079

Amount in NRs.

FY 2078-79

FY 2077-78

Ordinary Shares

Shares as at 1st Shrawan 2078

Additions during the year

i) Share Issue

ii) Bonus Share Issue

Shares as at 32nd Ashad 2079

Convertible Preference Shares (Equity Component Only)
Shares as at 1st Shrawan

Additions during the year

Shares as at 32nd Ashad 2079

Irredeemable Preference Shares (Equity Component Only)
Shares as at 1st Shrawan

Additions during the year

Shares as at 32nd Ashad 2079

1183,604,400

71,016,264
1,254,620,664

1,085,930,000

87,674,400
1,183,604,400

Total

1,254,620,664

1,183,604,400

(i). Ordinary Shares

Amount in NRs.

FY 2078-79

FY 2077-78

Authorised Capital:

30,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each
Issued Capital:

12,546,206 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each
Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:

12,546,206 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each

3,000,000,000

1,254,620,664

1,254,620,664

2,000,000,000

1,183,604,400

1183,604,400

Total

1,254,620,664

1,183,604,400

(ii). Preference Share Capital

FY 2078-79

FY 2077-78

Authorised Capital:

........ Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. ... each
........ Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. ... each
Issued Capital:

........ Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. ... each
........ Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. ... each
Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:

........ Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. ... each

........ Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. ... each
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Shareholding Structure of Share Capital

Number of Shares Percentage
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78 FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Promoters
Government of Nepal = - 0.00% 0.00%
Nepali Organized Institutions 953,525 1,750,551 7.60% 14.79%
Nepali Citizen 5,472,642 4,311,871 43.62% 36.43%
Foreigner = - 0.00% 0.00%
Total (A) 6,426,167 6,062,422 51.22% 51.22%
Other than Promotors
General Public 6,120,040 5,773,622 48.78% 48.78%

Total (B) 6,120,040 5,773,622 48.78% 48.78%

Total (A+B) 12,546,207 11,836,044 100% 100%

Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 1% of the aggregate shares in the Company:

Number of Shares Percentage

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78 FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Rajendra Kumar Khetan 1,879,403 1,773,022 0.00% 0.00%
Sneha Khetan 1,872,586 1,766,591 7.60% 14.79%
Laxmi Bank Limited 1180,369 1,750,578 43.62% 36.43%
Puja Agrawal Khetan 229,153 216,182 0.00% 0.00%
Ratan Lal Sanghai 168,756 159,204 51.22% 51.22%
Birendra Kumar Shah 167,209 157,745
Linu Tuladhar 146,072 137,970 48.78% 48.78%
0Om Prakash Sikariya 137,065 129,306 48.78% 48.78%
Narendra Kumar Agrawal 124,974 133,747 100% 100%
17 (b). Share Application Money Pending Allotment Amount in NRs.

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Share Application Money Pending Allotment = -

Total - -

17 (c). Share premium Amount in NRs.

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
As at Shrawan 1 8,358,970 96,033,370
Increase due to issue of shares at premium = -
Decrease due to issue of bonus sharess (8,358,970) (87.674,400)
Transaction costs on issue of share = -
As at Ashadh End 2079 - 8,358,970
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17 (d). Insurance Fund

Amount in NRs.

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
As at Shrawan 1 412,114,576 324,765,469
Additions 4,610,129 87,349,107
Utilizations = -
As at Ashadh End 2079 416,724,705 412,114,576
17 (e). Catastrophe Reserves Amount in NRs.

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
As at Shrawan 1 18,867,033 16,862,298
Additions 461,013 8,734,911
Utilizations - (6,730,176)
As at Ashadh End 2079 19,328,046 18,867,033
17 (f). Retained Earnings Amount in NRs.

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
As at Shrawan 1 71,030,248 11,897,535
Net Profit or Loss 9,564,856 159,367,192
Items of OCl recognised directly in retained earnings = -
Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligations 3 -
Transfer (to) / from reserves :
Capital Reserves = -
Insurance Fund (4,610,129) (87.349,107)
Catastrophe Reserves (461,013) (2,004,735)
Social Responsibility Fund (56,642) -
Insurance Reserves = -
Regulatory Reserves (344,598) 5,657,908
Fair Value Reserves = -
Actuarial Reserves = -
Revaluation Reserves = -
Deferred Tax Reserves (3,841,157) (10,813,853)

Compulsory Reserve Fund

Transfer of Depreciation :

On Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment

On Disposal of Revalued Property, Plant and Equipment
On Disposal of Equity Instruments Measured at FVTOCI
Issue of Bonus Shares

Transaction costs on issue of share

Dividend Paid

(62,657,294)

Dividend Distribution Tax (3,737.698) (4,614,442)
Expenses Related to Previous Year (3,556,068) (1,110,250)
As at Ashadh End 2079 1,330,505 71,030,248
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17 (g). Other Equity Amount in NRs.
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Capital Reserves = -
Insurance Reserve 52,376,627 52,376,627
Regulatory Reserve 4,014,197 3,669,598
Fair value reserve (21143,392) 13,742
Social Responsibility Fund 56,642 -

Actuarial reserve = -
Revaluation Reserves = -
Cash Flow Hedge Reserves = -
Deferred Tax Reserve 1,121,242 7,280,086
Total 46,425,316 63,340,053

18. Provisions

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Provisions for employee benefits :
i) Provision for Leave Encashment 1,206,279 10,625,956
ii) Defined Benefits Plan - -

i) Termination Benefits - -

iv) Staff Welfare Fund 121,184 121184
v) Defined Contribution Plan (PF Payable) - 2,099,600
vi) Gratuity/Pension Fund - 1426,799
vii) Defined Contribution Plan (SSF Payable) 3,001,636 -

Provision for tax related legal cases = -

Provision for non-tax legal cases = -
Total 14,329,100 14,273,538

(a) Additional Disclosure under of Provisions

Additions

Opening Balance During the Year

Closing Balance

Provision for tax related legal cases - - R

Provision for non-tax legal cases - . _

(b) Provision with expected payouts within 12 months:

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Provisions for employee benefits :

i) Provision for Leave Encashment 2,210,558 853,325
ii) Defined Benefits Plan - -
i) Termination Benefits - -

iv) Staff Welfare Fund _ _

v) Defined Contribution Plan (PF Payable) - 2,099,600
vi) Gratuity/Pension Fund - 1426,799
vii) Defined Contribution Plan (SSF Payable) 3,001,636 -

Provision for tax related legal cases = -
Provision for non-tax legal cases - R

Total 5,212,194 4,379,723
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 32 Ashad 2079

19. Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities

% ANNUAL
REPORT 2078-079

Amount in NRs.

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Unearned Premiums 581,163,562 511,909,797
Premium Deficiency 39,619,924 31,064,012
IBNR and IBNER 273,694,392 176,397,185
Outstanding claims 131,614,610 885,803,273
Margin for Adverse Deviation 13,684,720 8,819,859

Total Insurance contract liability

2,039,777,207

1,613,994,126
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. Insurance payables

As at 32 Ashad 2079

Amount in NRs.

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Payable to Reinsurers 26,389,284 92,075,348
Payable Other insurance Companies 1,354,472 1,508,927
Withdrawal Premiums = -
Withdrawal Claims = -
Total 27,743,756 93,584,275
Payable within 12 months:

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Payable to Reinsurers 26,389,284 92,075,348
Payable Other insurance Companies 1,354,472 1,508,927
Withdrawal Premiums = -
Withdrawal Claims - -

Total 27,743,756 93,584,275

21. Current Tax (Assets)/Liabilities(Net) Amount in NRs.

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Income Tax Liabilities 13,588,544 75,079,359

Income Tax Assets

(91,247,623)

(92,533,188)

Total

(77,659,079)

(17,453,829)

22, Borrowings

Amount in NRs.

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Bond = -
Debenture - -
Term Loan - Bank and Financial Institution - -
Bank Overdraft - -
Total - -
Payable within 12 months: Amount in NRs.

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Bond
Debenture
Term Loan - Bank and Financial Institution

Bank Overdraft

Total
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. Other Financial Liabilities

As at 32 Ashad 2079

% ANNUAL
REPORT 2078-079

Amount in NRs.

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Redeemable Preference Shares - -
Irredemable Cumulative Preference Shares - -
Payable to Agent 3,741,781 17,279,539
Refundable Share Application Money - -
Payable to Insured = -
Sundry Creditor 15,330,379 17,594,316
Retention and deposits = -
Short-term employee benefits payable:
i) Salary Payable 4,034,433 4,118,852
ii) Bonus Payable 4,156,292 28,930,330
Audit Fee Payable 489,750 500,000
Dividend Payable = -
Claim Payable 1,282,025 1413,936
Total 29,034,660 69,836,973
Payable within 12 months: Amount in NRs.
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Redeemable Preference Shares = -
Irredemable Cumulative Preference Shares = -
Payable to Agent 3,741,781 17,279,539
Refundable Share Application Money = -
Payable to Insured - -
Sundry Creditor 15,330,379 17,594,316
Retention and deposits = -
Short-term employee benefits payable:
i) Salary Payable 4,034,433 418,852
ii) Bonus Payable 4,156,292 28,930,330
Audit Fee Payable 489,750 500,000
Dividend Payable = -
Claim Payable 1,282,025 1,413,936

Total 29,034,660 69,836,973
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Z Himalayan Everest
Insurance Limited

As at 32 Ashad 2079

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24, Other Liabilities Amount in NRs.
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
TDS payable 3,085,484 4,265,670
VAT Payable 11,011,676 11,218,069
Deposit Premium = -
Deferred Commission Income 91,624,227 70,984,396
Insurance Service Fee Payable 12,013,385 10,248,119
Lease Liability = -
Deferred Income = -
Payable Survey Fee (114,589) 10,457,046
Payable to Other 27,635 243,794
Provisan for Doubtful Debt for sundry Debtors 25,360,480 20,386,714
Provision for debt for reinsurers 574,238 574,239
Dividend Payable 6,268 -
Provision for VAT = -
Total 143,588,805 128,378,048
Payable within 12 months: Amount in NRs.
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
TDS payable 3,085,484 4,265,670
VAT Payable 11,011,676 11,218,069
Deposit Premium = -
Deferred Commission Income 91,624,227 70,984,396
Insurance Service Fee Payable 12,013,385 10,248,119
Lease Liability - -
Deferred Income - -
Payable Survey Fee (114,589) 10,457,046
Payable to Other 27,635 243,794
Provison for Doubtful Debt for sundry Debtors = -
Provision for debt for reinsurers - -
Dividend Payable 6,268 -
Provision for VAT - -
Total 117,654,087 107,417,095
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 32 Ashad 2079

25. Gross Earned Premiums

% ANNUAL
REPORT 2078-079

Amount in NRs.

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Direct Premiums 1,087,081,502 870,532,003
Premium on Reinsurance Accepted 114,255,378 160,807,392
Gross Change in Unearned Premiums (69,253,765) (70,897,354)
Total 1,132,083,116 960,442,041

Portfolio-wise details of Gross Earned Premiums

Amount in NRs.

Direct Premiums

Premium on Reinsurance Gross Change in Unearned

Gross Earned Premium

Accepted Premiums
Current Year Previous Current Year Previous Current Year Previous Current Year Previous Year
Year Year Year
Fire 210,250,250 182,767,777 296,721 405,062 (7934,217) (21,618,600) 202,612,754 161,554,239
Motor 337,708,775 283,365,830 113747123 137,038,655 (1,571,049) (52435,014) 449,884,848 367,969,471
Marine 64,640,672 55,415,547 (2159,320) (6.468,139) 62,481,353 48 947408
Engineering 225,395,025 188,911,176 209,059 63459 (27374,405) (18,293,040) 198,229,679 170,681,595
Micro 2,293 10127980 22,861192 16493439 (6,526,738) 16,495,733 26462434
Aviation 3352448 236,685 (2,568,992) 57832 783457 294,517
Cattle and Crop 38,822,923 33460335 (545453) (12,442,570) 38,277470 21,017,765
Miscellaneous 206,909,115 116,483,358 2475 202,339 (43,593,769) 46,828,915 163,317,822 163,514,612
Total 1,087,081,502 870,532,003 114,255,378 160,807,392 (69,253,765)  (70,897,354)  1,132,083,116 960,442,041

26. Premiums Ceded

Amount in NRs.

FY 2078-79

FY 2077-78

Premiums Ceded to Reinsurers

Reinsurer’s Share of Change in Unearned Premiums

752,049,116

(67,355,800)

610,818,989

(54,084,614)

Total

684,693,316

556,734,376

Portfolio-wise detail of Premiums Ceded to Reinsurers

Amount in NRs.

Premiums Ceded

Reinsurer’s Share of Change in
Unearned Premiums

Premium Ceded

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Fire 159,024,165 134,350,100 (6,584,183) (21,617,164) 152,439,982 12,732,936
Motor 198,768,228 173,394,778 (9,594,340) (40,113,866) 189,173,888 133,280,913
Marine 46,055,560 41,959,514 3,945,143 (595,597) 50,000,702 41,363,917
Engineering 192,688,776 172,914,390 (18,946,873) (28,747,391) 173,741,902 144,166,998
Micro - 7,571,507 3,785,754 (1,906,764) 3,785,754 5,664,743
Aviation 3,350,772 221737 (2,575,181) 53,568 775,591 275,305
Cattle and Crop 31,058,339 26,805,468 (423,971) (9,874,653) 30,634,368 16,930,815
Miscellaneous 121,103,277 53,601,495 (36,962,148) 48,717,254 84,141,129 102,318,750

Total 752,049,116 610,818,989 (67,355,800) (54,084,614) 684,693,316 556,734,376
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27. Net Earned Premiums Amount in NRs.

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Gross Earned Premiums 1,132,083,116 960,442,041
Premiums Ceded 684,693,316 556,734,376
Total 447,389,799 403,707,666

Portfolio-wise detail of Net Earned Premiums Amount in NRs.

Gross Earned Premiums Premiums Ceded Net Earned Premiums

Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Fire 202,612,754 161,554,239 152,439,982 12,732,936 50,172,773 48,821,303
Motor 449,884,848 367,969,471 189,173,888 133,280,913 260,710,959 234,688,558
Marine 62,481,353 48,947,408 50,000,702 41,363,917 12,480,650 7,583,492
Engineering 198,229,679 170,681,595 173,741,902 144,166,998 24,487,777 26,514,597
Micro 16,495,733 26,462,434 3,785,754 5,664,743 12,708,979 20,797,691
Aviation 783,457 294,517 775,591 275,305 7,866 19,212
Cattle and Crop 38,277470 21,017,765 30,634,368 16,930,815 7,643,102 4,086,950
Miscellaneous 163,317,822 163,514,612 84,141,129 102,318,750 79,176,693 61,195,863
Total 1,132,083,116 960,442,041 684,693,316 556,734,376 447,389,799 403,707,666
28. Commission Income Amount in NRs.
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Reinsurance Commission Income 181,378,283 140,827,598

Deferred Reinsurance commission income (20,639,831) (10,882,758)
Profit Commission - -

160,738,452 129,944,840

Total

Portfolio-wise detail of Commission Income Amount in NRs.

Reinsurance Commission Deferred Commission Reinsurance Commission

Profit Commission

Income Income Income

Particulars Current Year Previous Year CurrentYear Previous Year CurrentYear Previous Year CurrentYear Previous Year
Fire 38,953,058 42,341,530 1,694,236 (7,703,970) = - 40647294 34,637,560
Motor 53,850,249 42,892,945 (5,478,652) (5,599,359) = - 48,371,597 37,293,586
Marine 9,440,481 7,567,092 (936,694) 696,954 - - 8,503,786 8,264,045
Engineering 36,229,479 29,350,334  (3,439,572) (6,016,917) = - 32,789,906 23,333,417
Micro = - = - = - = -
Aviation 38,238 22,174 (18,215) 27433 - - 20,023 49,607
Cattle and Crop 5,279,918 4,556,930 (62,839) (1198,785) = - 5,217,079 3,358,144
Miscellaneous 37,586,861 14,096,593 (12,398,094) 8,911,886 - - 25,188,766 23,008,480
Total 181,378,283 140,827,598 (20,639,831) (10,882,758) - - 160,738,452 129,944,840
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 32 Ashad 2079

29.Investment Income

% ANNUAL
REPORT 2078-079

Amount in NRs.

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Interest Income from Financial Assets Designated at Amortised Costs:
i) Fixed Deposit with “A" Class Financial Institutions 84,962,311 64,136,083
ii) Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Bank - -
iii) Fixed Deposit with “B” Class Financial Institutions 24.774,914 23,341,677
iv) Fixed Deposit with “C" Class Financial Institutions 2,643,367 7,767,533
v) Debentures 9,668,212 6,983,952
vi) Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government) - -
vii) Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions - -
viii) Bank Deposits other than Fixed Deposit 2,947,701 2,520423
ix) Agent Loan - -
x) Employee loan 75,720 62,187
Financial Assets measured as FVTOCI:
i) Interest income on Debentures - -
ii) Dividend Income 6,015,916 823113
Financial Assets measured as FVTPL:
i) Dividend Income - -
Rental Income 7,994,880 7,856,080
Total 139,083,021 113,491,047
30. Net Gains/ (Losses) on Fair Value Changes Amount in NRs.

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Changes in Fair Value of Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL:
i) Equity Instruments - -
ii) Mutual Fund - -
Changes in Fair Value on Investment Properties = -
Changes in Fair Value on Hedged Items in Fair Value Hedges = -
Changes in Fair Value on Hedging Instruments in Fair Value Hedges = -
Gains/(Losses) of Ineffective Portion on Cash Flow Hedge - -

Total - -

31. Net Realised Gains/ (Losses) Amount in NRs.

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Realised Gains/(Losses) on Derecognition of Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL:
i) Equity Instruments 3,963,854 70,759,206
ii) Mutual Fund - -
Realised Gains/(Losses) on Derecognition of Financial Assets at Amortised Costs:
i) Debentures - -
ii) Bonds - -
Total 3,963,854 70,759,206
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Z Himalayan Everest
Insurance Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 32 Ashad 2079

32. Other Income

Amount in NRs.

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Unwinding of discount on Financial Assets at Amortised Cost:
i) Employee Loan - -
ii) Bonds = -
Foreign Exchange Income 253,236 -
Interest Income from Finance Lease = -
Profit from disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment 114,785,557 850,449
Amortization of Deferred Income - -
Stamp Income 1,625,310 1,382,110
Miscellaneous Income 2,718,461 -
Written back liabilities 3,154,110 -
Other Income 5,911,854 5,598,636
Total 128,448,528 7,831,195
33. Gross Claims Paid Amount in NRs.

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Gross Claims Paid 1,023,708,312 894,367,763
Total 1,023,708,312 894,367,763
34, Claims Ceded Amount in NRs.

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Claims Ceded to Reinsurers 610,476,953 620,694,618

Total 610,476,953 620,694,618

Portfolio-wise detail of Gross Claims Paid and Claims Ceded

Amount in NRs.

Net Claims Paid before Change in

Gross Claims Paid Claims Ceded Contract Liabilities

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Fire 209,471,444 140,564,402 177,340,669 126,985,137 32,130,775 13,579,265
Motor 333,717,799 175,287,775 97161,057 45137674 236,556,742 130,150,101
Marine 28,690,661 17,801,509 22,415,802 14,961,104 6,274,859 2,840,405
Engineering 262,675,563 332,250,898 223198,031 295,298,395 39,477,532 36,952,504
Micro 29,843 109,225,000 = 60,616,313 29,843 48,608,687
Aviation = - = - = -
Cattle and Crop 33,853,988 17,249,561 26,664,830 13,799,649 7189,158 3,449,912
Miscellaneous 155,269,015 101,988,618 63,696,565 63,896,347 91,572,450 38,092,271
Total 1,023,708,312 894,367,763 610,476,953 620,694,618 413,231,359 273,673,145
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35. Change in Contract Liabilities

As at 32 Ashad 2079

Amount in NRs.

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Gross Change in Contract Liabilities:

Change in Contract Outstanding Claim (245,811,337) (36,781,620)
Change in IBNR and IBNER (97,297,207) (16,648,391)
Change in Margin for Adverse Deviation (MAD) (4,864,860) (832,420)
Change in Provision for Premium Deficiency (8,555,912) (6,176,058)
Total Gross Change in Contract Liabilities (356,529,316) (60,438,488)
Change in Reinsurance Assets:

Change in Reinsurance Assets Created on Outstanding Claim Provisions 86,810,858 34,441,504
Change in Reinsurance Assets Created on IBNR and IBNER 81,092,671 14,656,881
Change in Reinsurance Assets Created on Margin for Adverse Deviation (MAD) 4181,964 732,844
Change in Reinsurance Assets Created on Provision for Premium Deficiency (8,527461) 10,588,583
Total Change in Reinsurance Assets 163,558,032 60,419,812
Net Change in Contract Liabilities (192,971,284) (18,676)

Portfolio-wise detail of Net Change in Contract Liabilities

Amount in NRs.

Gross Change in Contract Liabilities

Change in Reinsurance Assets

Net Change in Contract Liabilities

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Fire 77,316,126 (144,766,222) (89,906,142) 132,803,309 (12,590,015) (11,962,913)
Motor (272,448,143) 5,288,341 99,437,904 (1,719,908) (173,010,239) 3,568,433
Marine (4,988,583) 21,916,716 3,388,426 (20,752,272) (1,600,157) 1164,444
Engineering (83,334,990) 252,410,214 73,934,706 (235,083,698) (9,400,284) 17,326,516
Micro (88,532,217) (179,603,165) 88,586,878 181,783,330 54,661 2,180,165
Aviation 506,357 1,231,887 (502,924) (1,226,848) 3,434 5,039
Cattle and Crop 16,708,166 2,121,813 (12,684,209) (843,859) 4,023,957 1,277,954
Miscellaneous (1,756,034) (19,038,072) 1,303,393 5,459,758 (452,641) (13,578,314)
Total (356,529,316) (60,438,488) 163,558,032 60,419,812 (192,971,284) (18,676)
36. Commission Expenses Amount in NRs.
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Commission Expenses on Direct Insurance Contracts 24,073,841 20,561,077
Commission Expenses on Reinsurance Accepted 1,906,860 4,900,954
Deferred Commission Expenses (67,358) (3,704,912)
Total 25,913,343 21,757,118
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Portfolio-wise detail of Commission Expenses Amount in NRs.

Commission Expenses on Commission Expenses on Deferred Commission

. . Commission Expense
Direct Insurance Contracts Reinsurance Accepted Expenses P

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year CurrentYear Previous Year

Fire 3,262,882 2,832,627 44,657 52199 (211,357) (142,127) 3,096,183 2,742,699
Motor 4,390,411 4,240,085 1,829,728 4,799,224 1,409,585 (2,406,371) 7,629,724 6,632,937
Marine 699,052 638,41 - - (30,320) 45,292 668,731 683,703
Engineering 510,207 6,000,277 31,359 9,518 434115 (663,200) 5,575,681 5,346,596
Micro = - = - = - = -
Aviation - - - 13,073 6,536 (5,200) 6,536 7,872
Cattle and Crop 5,823,439 4,592,947 = - (340,074) (1135,128) 5,483,364 3,457,818
Miscellaneous 4,787,850 2,256,730 116 26,939 (1,335,842) 601,822 3453123 2,885,492
Total 24,073,841 20,561,077 1,906,860 4,900,954 (67,358) (3,704,912) 25,913,343 21,757,118
37. Service Fees Amount in NRs.
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Gross Service Fees 12,013,369 10,313,394
Reinsurer’s Share of Service Fees (7520,491) (6,108,190)
Total 4,492,878 4,205,204
Portfolio-wise detail of Service Fees Amount in NRs.
Gross Service Fees Reinsurer’sFSeILasre of Service Net Service Fees

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Fire 2,105,469.71 1,831,728.39 1,590,241.65  1,343,501.00 515,228 488,227
Motor 4,514,558.97 4,204,044.85  1,987682.28 1,733,947.78 2,526,877 2,470,097
Marine 646,406.72 554,155.47 460,555.60 419,595.14 185,851 134,560
Engineering 2,256,040.84  1,889,746.35 1,926,887.76 1,729143.90 329,153 160,602
Micro 22.93 329,891.72 = 75,715.07 23 254177
Aviation 33,524.48 2,366.85 33,507.72 2,217.37 17 149
Cattle and Crop 388,229.23 334,603.35 310,583.39 268,054.68 77,646 66,549
Miscellaneous 2,069,115.90 1166,856.97 1,211,032.77 536,014.95 858,083 630,842
Total 12,013,369 10,313,394 7,520,491 6,108,190 4,492,878 4,205,204
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38. Employee Benefits Expenses Amount in NRs.
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Salary 60,768,073 47,917,626

Allowance 36,812,377 29,444,720

Defined Benefit Plans:
i) Gratuity

Defined Contribution Plans:

i) Provident Fund - 4787492
ii) Social Security Fund 12,152,280 -
Leave Encashment 5,169,389 5,822,954
Termination Benefit

Festival Allowance 7,748,238 5,867,704
Training Expenses 1,809,042 197,266
Uniform Expenses - -
Medical Expenses = -
Staff Insurance Expenses = 1,470,801
Staff Welfare = -
Bonus 1,393,305 25,379,603
Gratuity/Pension Fund - 4,068,020
Prize & Incentive = -
Staff personal cost - -
Travel Reimbursement 13,480,447 11,462,896
Overtime Expenses 182,439 52,098
Labour Outsourcing Expence 3,538,550 5,299,056
Wages = -
Total 143,054,140 141,770,236
39. Depreciation & Amortization Expenses Amount in NRs.

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 5,526,037 4,544,777
Depreciation on Investment Properties = -
Amortization of Intangible Assets 402,381 402,381
Total 5,928,418 4,947,158
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. Impairment Losses

As at 32 Ashad 2079

Amount in NRs.

FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Impairment Losses on PPE, Investment Properties and Intangible Assets:
i) Property, Plant and Equipment = -
ii) Investment Properties = -
i) Intangible Assets - -
Impairment Losses on Financial Assets:
i) Investment - -
ii) Loans - -
iii) Other Financial Assets - -
iv) Cash and Cash Equivalent S -
Impairment Losses on Other Assets:
i) Reinsurance Assets - -
ii) Insurance Receivables - -
iii) Lease Receivables - -
Total - -
41. Other Expenses Amount in NRs.
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Rent Expenses 13,627,967 11,409,501
Electricity and Water 2,224,572 1,956,479
Repair & Maintenance

i) Building 256,856 183,888

i) Vehicle 805,244 578,482

iii) Office Equipments 298,097 330,490

iv) Others - -
Telephone and Communication 4,897 355 4,288,441
Printing & Stationery 5,620,707 4,498,884
Office Consumable Expenses - -
Travelling Expenses

i) Domestic 897169 406,284

ii) Foreign 178,013 -
Agent Tranning 13,915 5,220
Other Agent Expenses = -
Insurance Premium 1,884,612 346,667
Security Expense 1452146 1,387,331
Legal and Consulting Expenses 1,189,600 935,759
Newspapers, Books & Periodical 51,359 48,204
Advertisement and Promotion Expenses 732,187 1,025,780
Business Promotion 6,408,065 4,898,331
Guest Entertainment Expenses = -
Gift & Donation 5,000 50,000
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Amount in NRs.

Board Meeting Fees and Expenses :
i) Meeting Allowances 460,200 458,000
ii) Other Allowances - -
Other Committee/Sub-Committee Expense:

i) Meeting Allowances 168,000 119,000
ii) Other Allowances - -
Ceneral Meeting Expense 767,719 453,080
Audit Related Expenses
i) Statutory Audit 250,000 200,000
ii) Tax Audit 30,000 30,000
iii) Long Form Audit Report 20,000 20,000
iv) Other Fees = -
v) Internal Audit 350,000 350,000
vi) Others 263,639 222,031
Bank Charges 548,431 383,029
Fee and Charges 1,050,708 916,209
Postage Charges 2,781,495 2,457,017
Foreign Exchange loss = 756,221
Conveyance Expenses = 70,013
Fuel expenses 7186,040 3,651,854
Anniversary expenses 14,134 64,070
Office expenses 6,252,866 3,956,930
RI Facultative Insurance Service Fee (Reimbursement) - -
Crops and live stock expenses 753,487 1438,270

Computer Expense - -
Research & Dev Expenses - -

Miscellaneous Expense 3,060,612 1,072,167
Others = -
VAT Expenses 1,504,890 1184,446
Share Issue Expenses = 793,9M
Share Registration Expenses = -
Share Listing Expenses 1,401,139 -
Software Maintenance Expenses 1,200,000 -
Provision for Doubtful Debts 4,973,766 -
Merger Related Expenses 1,034,110 -
Other share Related Expenses = -
Total 74,714,099 50,945,989
42, Finance costs Amount in NRs.
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78

Unwinding of discount on Provisions = -
Unwinding of discount on Financial Liabilities at Amortised Costs = -
Interest Expense - Bonds = -
Interest Expense - Debentures = -
Interest Expense - Term Loans - -
Interest Expense - Lease = -

Interest Expense - Overdraft Loans = -

Total - -
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43.Income Tax Expense

a) Income tax expense Amount in NRs.
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Current Tax:
i) Income Tax Expenses for the Year 13,588,545 72,162,949

ii) Income Tax Relating to Prior Periods = -
Deferred Tax For The Year:

i) Originating and reversal of temporary differences (3,835,267) (3M3,713)

ii) Changes in tax rate - -

iif) Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses = -

iv) Write-down or reversal - -

Total 9,753,278 69,049,236
b) Reconciliation of Taxable Profit & Accounting Profit Amount in NRs.
FY 2078-79 FY 2077-78
Accounting Profit Before Tax 19,318,134 228,416,428
Applicable Tax Rate 30% 30%
Tax at the applicable rate on Accounting Profit 5,795,440 68,524,928
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose
i) Repair and Maintenance - 20,703
ii) Depreciation (419,589) (467485)
iii) Business Promotion and other non deductible expenses = 90,000
iv) Provision for losses 10,553,583 3,101,161
v) Provision for Leave Encashment 647,590 390,068
vi) Gratuity - (17.545)
vi) Donation 1,500 15,000
vii) Share Related Expenses 420,342 -

Less: Tax effect on exempt income and additional deduction = -

Less: Adjustments to Current Tax for Prior Periods = -

Add/ (Less): Others - R

i) Unexpired Risk Reserve of Marine Insurance 1,061,977 844,051
ii) Dividend income as Final Withholding Income (864,275) (246,934)
iii) Gain on sale of assets 1,526,652 (255135)
iv) Investment Provision Written Back (3,101,161) (5,152,576)
iv) Difference in GAAP and NFRS Profit before Tax (2,033,515) 5,316,712
Income Tax Expense 13,588,545 72,162,949
Effective Tax Rate 70.34% 31.59%
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44 Employee Retirement Benefits
a) Post Employment Benefit - Defined Contribution Plans

For the year ended 32 Ashad 2079 (16 July 2022) the company has recognised Rs. 12,152,280.00 as an expenses
under the defined contribution plans in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

b) Post Employment Benefit - Defined Benefit Plans

For Defined Benefit Plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method,
with Actuarial Valuations being carried out.

c) Total Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss Amount in NRs.
Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability
Particulars
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Current service cost 1,061,451.00 818,379.00 - -

Past service cost = - = -
Net interest cost :
a. Interest expense on defined benefit obligation (DBO) 536,501.00 413,814.00 - -

b. Interest (income) on plan assets - - - -

Net Acturial Losses/(Gains) (179,460.00) 1,858,235.00 - -
Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit or Loss 1,418,492.00 3,090,428.00 - -
d) Remeasurement effects recognised in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income (OCl) Amount in NRs.
Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability
Particulars
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

a. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to financial assumption changes in DBO = - = -
b. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to experience on DBO - - - -

¢. Return on plan assets (greater)/ less than discount rate - - - -

Total actuarial (gain)/ loss included in OCI - - - R

e) Total cost recognised in Comprehensive Income Amount in NRs.
Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability
Particulars
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Cost recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss 1,418,492.00 3,090,428.00 -

Remeasurements effects recognised in OCI = -

Total cost recognised in Comprehensive Income 1,418,492.00 3,090,428.00 - -
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f) Change in Defined Benefit Obligation Amount in NRs.
Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability
Particulars
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year 10,625,956.00 8,192,611.00 = -
Service cost 1,061,451.00 818,379.00 = -
Interest cost 536,501.00 413,814.00 = -

Benefit payments from plan assets = - = -
Actuarial (gain)/ loss - financial assumptions (179,460.00) 1,858,235.00 - -

Actuarial (gain)/ Loss - experience - - - -

Benefits Paid (838,169.00) (657,083.00) - -
Defined Benefit Obligation As At Year End 11,206,279.00 10,625,956.00 - -
g) Change in Fair Value Of Plan Assets Amount in NRs.
Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability
Particulars
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Fair value of plan assets at end of prior year = - = -
Expected return on plan assets = - = -
Employer contributions - - - -
Participant contributions - - - R
Benefit payments from plan assets - - - R
Transfer in/ transfer out - - - R

Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets - - - -

Fair value of Plan Assets At End of Year - - - -

h) Net Defined Benefit Asset/(Liability) Amount in NRs.

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Defined Benefit Obligation 11,206,279.00 10,625,956.00 - -

Fair Value of Plan Assets = - - -

(Surplus)/Deficit Recognised in Statement of Financial Position 11,206,279.00 10,625,956.00 - -

i) Expected Company Contributions for the Next Year Amount in NRs.

Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Expected company contributions for the next year = - = -

(Surplus)/Deficit Recognised in Statement of Financial Position - - - -
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j) Reconciliation of amounts in Statement of Financial Position

Amount in NRs.

Employee Benefit Plan

Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Net defined benefit liability/(asset) at prior year end 10,625,956.00 8,192,611.00 - -
Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit or Loss 1,418,492.00 3,090,428.00 - -

Total remeasurements included in OCI
Acquisition/ divestment
Employer contributions

Benefits Paid

(838,169.00)

(657,083.00) - .

Net defined benefit liability/(asset)

11,206,279.00

10,625,956.00 - -

k) Reconciliation of Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

Amount in NRs.

Employee Benefit Plan

Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars

Current Year Previous Year

Current Year Previous Year

Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss, beginning
of period

Total remeasurements included in OCI

Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss

1) Current/Non - Current Liability

Amount in NRs.

Employee Benefit Plan

Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Current Liability 2,210,558.00 853,325.00
Non - Current Liability 8,995,721.00 9,772,631.00

Total

11,206,279.00 10,625,956.00

m) Expected Future Benefit Payments

Amount in NRs.

Employee Benefit Plan

Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars

Current Year Previous Year

Current Year Previous Year

Within 1year
Between 1-2 years
Between 2-5 years

From 6 to 10

Total
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n) Plan assets Amount in NRs.
Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
(% Invested) (% Invested) (% Invested) (% Invested)

Government Securities (Central and State) - - - -

Corporate Bonds (including Public Sector
bonds)

Mutual Funds - - - -
Deposits - - - R
Cash and bank balances - - - -

Others (to be Specified) - - - _

Total - - - -
o) Sensitivity Analysis Amount in NRs.
Employee Benefit Plan Any Other Funded Liability
Particulars
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to
1% Increase in Discount Rate

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to
1% Decrease in Discount Rate

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to
1% Increase in Salary Escalation Rate

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to
1% Decrease in Salary Escalation Rate

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to
1% Increase in Attrition Rate - - - R

Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to
1% Decrease in Attrition Rate

Note : Sensitivity analysis is required for Post
Employment Benefit as per NAS-19 and not
for leave encashment liability which falls
under other long term benefits category

Note: Sensitivity analysis is required for Post Employment Benefit as per NAS-19 and not for leave encashment liability which falls under
other long term benefitscategory.

p) Assumptions Amount in NRs.
Particulars Emplozf:nBeneﬁt Any [E:::':irlilicnded
Discount Rate 5.00%

Escalation Rate (Rate of Increase in Compensation Levels) 5.00%

Attrition Rate (Employee Turnover) 8.05%
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Insurance risk includes the risk of incurring higher claims costs than expected owing to the random nature
of claims, frequency and severity and the risk of change in the legal or economic conditions of insurance or
reinsurance cover. This may result in the insurer having either received too little premium for the risks it has
agreed to underwrite and hence has not enough funds to invest and pay claims, or that claims are in excess of

those expected.

The Company seeks to minimise insurance risk through a formalised reinsurance arrangement with an appropriate
mix and spread of business between classes of business based on its overall strategy. This is complemented by

observing formalised risk management policies.

The Company considers insurance risk to be a combination of the following components of risks:

a) Product development
The Company principally issues the following types of Non-Life Insurance contracts:
- Fire
- Motor
- Marine
- Engineering
- Micro
- Aviation
- Cattle and Crop

- Miscellaneous

The significant risks arising under the Non-Life Insurance portfolio emanates from changes in the climate leading

to natural disasters, behavioral trends of people due to changing life styles, the steady escalation of costs in

respect of spares in the auto industrys.

The above risk exposure is mitigated by the diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts and

geographical areas. The variability of risks is improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting

strategies, which are designed to ensure that risks are diversified in terms of type of risk and level of insured benefits.

Furthermore, strict claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing claims, regular detailed review of claims
handling procedures and frequent investigation of possible fraudulent claims are put in place to reduce the risk

exposure of the Company. The Company further enforces a policy of actively managing and promptly pursuing claims,

in order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future developments that can negatively impactthe business.

b) Pricing:

The pricing of an insurance product involves the estimation of claims, operational and financing costs and the
income arising from investing the premium received. The pricing process typically comprises collecting data on
the underlying risks to be covered, determining the pricing assumptions and the base rate, setting the final

premium rate, and monitoring the review of the appropriateness of pricing.

The Company collects adequate data to validate the reasonableness of the underlying assumptions used for

pricing. The base rate represents the amount required to meet the value of anticipated benefits, expenses, and

margins for risks and profit. Data primarily relates to the company's own historical experience and that of the

industry where relevant. These may be supplemented by other internal and external data, and could include

trends observed in claims costs and expenses.

Pricing is done by modelling all identified risks, using appropriate methodologies depending on the complexity of

the risks and available data. Adequate buffers are kept in the premiums to cushion against the risk that actual

experience may turn out to be worse than expected.
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The Company’s underwriting process is governed by the by the internal underwriting procedures. Some of the
actions undertaken to mitigate underwriting risks are detailed below:

i) Investments are made on the training and development of underwriting and claims management staff,
including those attached to the distribution network.

ii) Application of Four-Eye principle on underwriting process.

iii) Pre-underwriting inspections are made on new business over a predetermined threshold to evaluate risk
prior to acceptance

iv)  Post-underwriting reviews are conducted to ensure that set guidelines have been observed.

V) Adequate reinsurance arrangements are in place and reviews are undertaken to ensure the adequacy of
these covers

d) Reinsurance:

The Company purchases reinsurance as part of its risks mitigation programme. Premium ceded to the reinsurers
is in accordance with the terms of the programmes already agreed based on the risks written by the insurance
companies. Recoveries from reinsurers on claims are based on the cession made in respect of each risk and
is estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provisions made for the loss. Although we
mitigate our exposures through prudent reinsurance arrangements, the obligation to meet claims emanating
from policy holders rests with the Company. Default of reinsurers does not negate this obligation and in that
respect the Company carries a credit risk up to the extent ceded to each reinsurer.

e) Claims handling:
Some of the actions undertaken to mitigate claims risks is detailed below:
i) Claims are assessed immediately.

ii) Assessments are carried out by in-house as well as independent assessors / loss adjustors working
throughout.

iii) The service of a qualified independent actuary is obtained annually to assess the adequacy of reserves
made in relation to Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) and

iv) Incurred But Not Enough Reported (IBNER) claims.
V) Post-underwriting reviews are conducted to ensure that set guidelines have been observed.

vi) Adequate reinsurance arrangements are in place and reviews are undertaken to ensure the adequacy of
these covers

f) Reserving
Insurance Contract Liabilities are created to cover this risk based on the actuarial valuation report.

The table below sets out the concentration of risk associated with above mentioned products. Risk as at year
end has been measured as insurance contract liabilities and disclosed as below:
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Amount in NRs.

Current Year Previous Year
Fire 395,548,617 325,324,176 70,224,442 464,930,527 408,646,134 56,284,393
Motor 618,164,881 258,552,822 359,612,059 344,145,689 149,520,578 194,625
Marine 67,998,462 41,661,094 26,337,368 60,850,559 42,217,810 18,632,749
Engineering 483,112,985 425,219,957 57,893,028 372,403,590 332,338,378 40,065,213
Micro 270,372,303 270,370,434 1,869 198,333,525 185,569,309 12,764,216
Aviation 3,134,280 3,130,377 3,903 1,071,646 1,058,120 13,526
Cattle and Crop 34,248,805 27,502,144 6,746,661 50,411,518 39,762,383 10,649,135
Miscellaneous 167,196,875 101,509,766 65,687,109 121,847,072 63,244,225 58,602,847
Total 2,039,777,207 1,453,270,769 586,506,438 1,613,994,126 1,222,356,937 391,637,189

46 Fair Value Measurements
(i) Financial Instruments by Category & Hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the Fair Values of the Financial
Instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at Amortised Cost and for
which Fair Values are disclosed in the Financial Statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining Fair Value, the Company has

classified its financial instruments into Three Levels prescribed as per applicable NFRS.
Amount in NRs.

Level Current Year Previous Year

Particulars
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Cost FVTPL FvoCI Amortised Cost

Investments

i) Investment in Equity Instruments 1 - 198,324,086 = T 212962475 -

ii) Investment in Mutual Funds 1 - 13,944,600 - - 21,096,576 -

iii) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank
and Financial Institutions

iv) Investment in Debentures - 124,487,641 - - 86,442,648

v) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/
NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government)

vi) Fixed Deposits = - 1,398,436,447 - - 1,195,881,703
viilUngouted Shares 3 = 1,195,000 = - 1,320,000 -
Loans = = 1,685,472 - - 1,881,315
Other Financial Assets = - = - - -

Cash and Cash Equivalents - - = - - R

Total Financial Assets - 213,463,686 1,524,609,560 - 235,379,050 1,284,205,666

Loans and Borrowings - - - - - R

Other Financial Liabilities - - = - - -

Total Financial Liabilities - - - - - -
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Level 1: Level 1 Hierarchy includes Financial Instruments measured using Quoted Prices.

Level 2: Fair Value of Financial Instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation
techniques which maximises the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to determine Fair Value of an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in
Level 3.

There is no transfer of Financial Instruments between different levels as mentioned above during the
year.

(i) Valuation Technigue Used to Determine Fair Value

a) Use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments

b) Fair Value of remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis
(iii) Valuation Process

The finance and accounts department of the Company performs the valuation of financial assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes. Discussion on valuation processes and results are held at least once in
a year.

The main level 3 inputs are derived and evaluated as follows:
a) Discount rate is arrived at considering the internal and external factors.

b) Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current, and the impact of the
discounting is material

(iv) Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost
Amount in NRs.

Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value

Investments
i) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions - - - -
ii) Investment in Debentures 124,487,641 124,487,641 86,442,648 86,442,648
iii) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by : . } .
Nepal Government)
iv) Fixed Deposit 1398436447  1,398/436/447  17195,881,703 195,881,703
Loans = = - -
i) Loan to Assaciates = = - -
ii) Loan to Employees 1,685,472 1,685,472 1,881,315 1,881,315
Other Financial Assets = = - -

Total Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 1,524,609,560 1,524,609,560 1,284,205,666 1,284,205,666

Loans and Borrowings - - . R

Other Financial Liabilities - o - -

Total Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost - - - -
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The fair values of the above financial instruments measured at amortised cost are calculated based on cash flows
discounted using current discount rate.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-
term nature.

47. Financial Risk Management
The Company's activities expose it to Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk & Market Risk.
i) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss as a result of the default or failure of third parties to meet their payment
obligations to the Company. Thus, for an insurance contract, credit risk includes the risk that an insurer incurs a
financial loss because a reinsurer defaults on its obligations under the reinsurance contract.

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Company's exposure to credit risk:

a) Company has credit risk policy which sets out the assessment and determination of what constitutes
credit risk for the Company. Compliance with the policy is monitored and exposures and breaches are
reported to the Company's risk committee. The policy is regularly reviewed for pertinence and for changes
in the risk environment.

b) Reinsurance is placed with counterparties that have a good credit rating and concentration of risk is
avoided by entering into agreement with more than one party. At each reporting date, management
performs an assessment of creditworthiness of reinsurers and updates the reinsurance purchase strategy,
ascertaining suitable allowance for impairment.

0 The company deals with only creditworthy counterparties and obtains sufficient collateral where
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.

Expected Credit Losses for Financial Assets at Amortised Costs as at Ashadh 2079 Amount in NRs.
. Gross Carrying Expected probability Expected Credit Carrying Amount
Particulars Asset Group Amount of Default Losses After Provision
Loss allowance . . ) . .
Credit Risk has not measured at - - - - -
significantly increased 12 months B B B B B
since initial recognition expected credit
losses - - - - -
Credit Risk has
significantly increased and LSS allowance - - - - -
not credit impaired measured
o at life-time
Credit Risk has expected credit
significantly increased and  |gcgps - - - - -
credit impaired
Expected Credit Losses for Financial Assets at Amortised Costs as at Ashadh 2077 Amount in NRs.
. Expected . .
Particulars Asset Group Gross Carrying probability of Expected Credit Carrying An.'lo.unt
Amount Default Losses After Provision

Loss allowance
measured at 12
months expected - - - R R
credit losses _ _ } : :

Credit Risk has not
significantly increased
since initial recognition

Credit Risk has
significantly increased | 5ss allowance
and not credit impaired  measured at life-

Credit Risk has time expected credit

significantly increased ~ 05ses
and credit impaired
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Reconciliation of Loss Allowance Provision Amount in NRs.

Measured at life-time expected credit losses

. Measured at 12 months Credit Risk has sienificantl
Particulars - redit Risk has significantly - R
expected credit losses increased and not credit .Credlt Rislchas 5|g.n|.ﬁcan.tly
. . increased and credit impaired
impaired

Loss Allowance on Ashadh 2078 - - _

Changes in loss allowances - - R
Write-offs - - _

Recoveries - - -

Loss Allowance on Ashadh 2079 - - -

i) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. In respect of catastrophic events there

is also a liquidity risk associated with the timing differences between gross cash out-flows and expected
reinsurance recoveries.

Maturity of Financial Liabilities:
The table below summarises the Company’s Financial Liabilities into Relevant Maturity Groupings based on their

Contractual Maturities for all Financial Liabilities. )
Amount in NRs.

Current Year Previous Year

Particulars
<1VYear > 1VYear < 1VYear >1VYear

Loans and Borrowings

Other Financial Liabilities

Total Financial Liabilities - - - -

iii) Market Risk
al) Foreign Currency Risk Exposure

Foreign exchange risk is the potential for the Company to experience volatility in the value of its assets, liabilities
and solvency and to suffer actual financial losses as a result of changes in value between the currencies of its
assets and liahilities and its reporting currency. The Company does not maintain foreign currency denominated
assets in its investment portfolios and as such is not exposed to foreign exchange risk related to investments.

The Company has no significant concentration of currency risk. The amount with reinsurer is settled in Nepali
Rupee.
b1) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The major interest rate risk that the Company is exposed to is the discount
rate for determining insurance liabilities.

b2) Interest Rate Sensitivity

Profit or Loss is sensitive to changes in Interest Rate for Borrowings. A change in Market Interest Level by 1%
which is reasonably possible based on Management’s Assessment would have the following effect on the Profit
After Tax.
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Particulars Current Year

Previous Year

Interest Rate - Increase By 1%*

Interest Rate - Decrease By 1%*

* Holding all other Variable Constant
1) Equity Price Risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in equity prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those
changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or by factors affecting

all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company has invested in equity securities and the exposure is equity securities price risk from investments
held by the Company and classified in the statement of financial position as fair value through OCI.

€2)  Sensitivity

The table below summarises the impact of increase/decrease of the index in the Company’s equity and impact on
OCl for the period. The analysis is based on the assumption that the equity index had increased/ decreased by 1%
with all othervariables held constant, and that all the Company's equity instruments moved in line with the index.

Particulars

Current Year

Interest Rate - Increase By 1%*

Interest Rate - Decrease By 1%*

* Other components of equity would increase/decrease as a result of gains/ (losses) on equity securities classified as fair

value through other comprehensive income.

48. Operation Risk

Operational Risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss, or damaged reputation resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people and systems or external events. When controls fail to perform, operational
risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications or can lead to financial loss. The
Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but by initiating a rigorous control framework and
by monitoring and responding to potential risks, the Company is able to manage the risks. Controls include
effective segregation of duties, access controls, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff education
and assessment processes, including the use of internal audit. Business risks such as changes in environment,
technology and the industry are monitored through the Company's strategic planning and budgeting process.

49, Capital Management

The Company'’s objectives when managing Capital are to:

a) Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern so that they can continue to provide returns for

shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

b) Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to

shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

Regulatory minimum paid up capital

Non-Life insurance companies were required by the Directive issued by Beema Samiti to attain a stipulated
minimum paid up capital of NPR 1 billion by mid-July 2018. As on the reporting date, the company's paid up

capital is NPR 1,254,620,664.00
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Dividend Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
(i) Dividends recognised

Final dividend recognised for the year ended Ashadh 312078 of NPR 74,753,962.00 (Dividend of 74753 962 )
year ended Ashadh 312078) R

Total 74,753,962 -

(ii) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period

There is no any proposed dividend for FY 2078/79

a) Bonus Shares - 71,016,264
B) Cash Dividend (Dividend Distribution Tax) - 3,737,698
Total - 74,753,962

50. Earnings Per Share

a) Basic Earning Per Share

Amount in NRs.

Total Current Year Previous Year
Profit For the Year 9,564,856 159,367,192
Less : Dividend on Preference shares - -
Adjusted profit attributable to ordinary share holders 9,564,856 159,367,192
\S/\:]eairgehted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding During the Year For Basic Earning per 1.978.076 10.976.114
Basic Earnings Per Share 0.80 14.52

b) Diluted Earning Per Share

Amount in NRs.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Adjusted profit attributable to ordinary share holders 9,564,856 159,367,192
Add: Interest saving on Convertible Bonds = -
Profit For the Year used for Calculating Diluted Earning per Share 9,564,856 159,367,192
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding During the Year For Basic Earning per 1,978,076 10,976,114
Share
Adjustments for calculation of Diluted Earning per Share:
i) Dilutive Shares - -
ii) Options - -
i) Convertible Bonds - -
\é\;ea:srgehted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding During the Year for Diluted Earning Per 11.978.076 10,976.114
Nominal Value of Equity Shares 100 100
Diluted Earnings Per Share 0.80 14.52

Weighted average number of shares

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Issued ordinary shares as at 1 Shrawan 11,836,044 10,959,300
Shares issued during the year 142,032 16,814
Total 11,978,076 10,976,114
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51. Segmental Information

Segment information is presented in respect of the Company’s business segments. Management of the
Company has identified portfolio as business segment and the Company's internal reporting structure is also
based on portfolio. Performance is measured based on segment profit as management believes that it is most
relevant in evaluating the results of segment relative to other entities that operate within these industries.

Segment asset is disclosed below based on total of all asset for each business segment.

The Company operates predominantly in Nepal and accordingly, the Management of the Company is of the view
that the financial information by geographical segments of the Company’s operation is not necessary to be
presented.

Business Segments of the Company’s are:
i) Fire

ii) Motor

iii) Marine

iv) Engineering

V) Micro

vi) Aviation

vii)  Cattle and Crop

viii)  Miscellaneous
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c) Reconciliation of Segmental Profit with Statement of Profit or Loss Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Segmental Profit 41,687,800 240,351,570

Less: Depreciation and Amortization (592,842) (494,716)

Less: Non-cash expenses other than Depreciation and Amortization

Less: Unallocable Corporate Expenditures

(21,776,824)

(19,271,622)

Add: Unallocable Other Income - 7,831,195
Less: Finance Cost - -
Profit Before Tax 19,318,134 228,416,428
d) Reconciliation of Assets Amount in NRs.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Segment Assets

3,992,902,764

3,677,382,241

Intangible Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment
Investment Properties
Deferred Tax Assets
Investments

Loans

Current Tax Assets (Net)

Other Assets

Total Assets

3,992,902,764

3,677,382,241

e) Reconciliation of Liabilities

Amount in NRs.

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Segment Liabilities

2,254,473,528

1,920,066,960

Provisions

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Current Tax Liabilities (Net)
Other Financial Liabilities

Other Liabilities

Total Liabilities

2,254,473,528

1,920,066,960
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at 32 Ashad 2079

52. Related Party Disclosure

(a) Identify Related Parties
Holding Company:
Subsidiaries:
Associates:
Fellow Subsidiaries:

(b)  Key Management Personnel:

Key Management Personnel on Financial Approval Date

Name of key management personnel Position
Mr. Mahendra Krishna Shrestha Chairman
Mr. Bhubal Rai Director
Mr. Ram Prasad Khanal Director
Mr. Hem Raj Thapa Director
Mr. Vijit Krishna Shrestha Director
Mr. Ajaya Ratna Sthapit Director
Mr. Vijaya Bahadur Shah CEO

Key Management Personnel During the Fiscal Year

Name of key management personnel Position

Mr. Rajiv Sapkota Chairman

Mr. Bhubal Rai Director

Mr. Ram Prasad Khanal Director

Mr. Hem Raj Thapa Director

Ms. Anjila Bista Giri Director

Ms. Samjhana Sharma Independent Director
Mr. Kamal Gautam CEO

Payment to Chief Executive Officer (CEQ)

Amount in NRs.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Annual salary and allowances 5,776,000.00 4,500,032.26
Performance based allowances = -
i) Employee Bonus 1406,827.86 1,759,689.46
ii) Benefits as per prevailing provisions = -
i) Pay Against Leave 120,000.00 97,500.00
iv) Incentives - -
Insurance related benefits

i) Life Insurance - -
ii) Accident Insurance - -
i) Health Insurance (including family members) 12,000.00 12,000.00
Total 7,314,827.86 6,369,221.72
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(c) Related Party Transactions:

1. For the purpose of depositing insurance premiums, the company has maintained a current account with Laxmi
Bank Limited. The available balance in the account at the year end 16 July, 2022 was NPR 55,683,726.00

2. During the fiscal year, Laxmi Bank Limited purchased land and buildings that were jointly owned by businesses
including Everest Insurance Company Limited with the highest bid of NPR 150,000,000 (15 Crores NPR). The
building was built on land with the kitta numbers 4424, 4425, 4426, 4427, 4428, and 4429. The buyer has already
paid in full for the sale of the land and building during the fiscal year.

Amount in NRs.

Holding Subsidiaries  Associates Fellow Key Managerial

Company Subsidiaries Personnel Total

Particulars

Premium Earned

For The Year Ended 32 Ashadh 2079
For The Year Ended 31 Ashadh 2078
Commission Income

For The Year Ended 32 Ashadh 2079
For The Year Ended 31Ashadh 2078
Rental Income

For The Year Ended 32 Ashadh 2079
For The Year Ended 31 Ashadh 2078
Interest Income

For The Year Ended 32 Ashadh 2079
For The Year Ended 31 Ashadh 2078

Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment
For The Year Ended 32 Ashadh 2079
For The Year Ended 31 Ashadh 2078

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment
For The Year Ended 32 Ashadh 2079

For The Year Ended 31 Ashadh 2078

Premium Paid

For The Year Ended 32 Ashadh 2079

For The Year Ended 31 Ashadh 2078

Commission Expenses

For The Year Ended 32 Ashadh 2079

For The Year Ended 31 Ashadh 2078

Dividend

For The Year Ended 32 Ashadh 2079

For The Year Ended 31 Ashadh 2078

Meeting Fees

For The Year Ended 32 Ashadh 2079

For The Year Ended 31 Ashadh 2078

Allowances to Directors

For The Year Ended 32 Ashadh 2079

For The Year Ended 31 Ashadh 2078

Others (to be specified)

For The Year Ended 32 Ashadh 2079

For The Year Ended 31 Ashadh 2078
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(d) Related Party Balances:

Amount in NRs.

Holding

Particulars
Company

Fellow

Subsidiaries Subsidiaries

Key
Managerial Total
Personnel

Receivables including Reinsurance Receivables

For The Year Ended 32 Ashadh 2079

For The Year Ended 31 Ashadh 2078

Other Receivables (to be Specified)

For The Year Ended 32 Ashadh 2079

For The Year Ended 31 Ashadh 2078

Payables including Reinsurance Payables

For The Year Ended 32 Ashadh 2079

For The Year Ended 31 Ashadh 2078

Other Payables (to be Specified)

For The Year Ended 32 Ashadh 2079

For The Year Ended 31 Ashadh 2078

53. Leases

(a) Leases as Lessee

(i) Operating Leases:

The company doesnot have any operating lease.

Disclosure in respect of Non-cancellable lease is as given below

Amount in NRs.

Future Minimum Lease Payments

Current Year Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1year
ii) Later than 1year and not later than 5 years

iii) Later than 5 years

(ii) Finance Lease:

The Company does not hold any asset under finance leases.

Amount in NRs.

Future Minimum Lease Payments

Current Year Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1year

ii) Later than 1year and not later than 5 years
iii) Later than 5 years

Total Future Minimum Lease Payments

Less: Effect of Discounting

Finance lease liability recognised

(b) Leases as Lessor
(i) Operating Lease:
The Company has not leased out any space.

Disclosure in respect of Non-cancellable lease is as given below

Amount in NRs.

Future Minimum Lease Income

Current Year Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1year
ii) Later than 1year and not later than 5 years

iii) Later than 5 years
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(ii) Finance Lease:

il
(g

The Company has not leased out any space. Amount in NRs.
Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Unearned Net Gross Unearned
Gross Investment  Finance . Net Investment
Income Investment Investment Finance Income

i) Not Later than 1year - - - - - -
ii) Later than 1year and not later than 5 ) ) ) ) ) )
years
iii) Later than 5 years - - - - - -
Total - - - - - -
54, Capital Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed and not provided for Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Intangible Assets = -
Property, Plant and Equipment = -
Investment Properties = -
Total - -
55. Contingent Liabilities Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Claims against Company not acknowledged as debts S -
a) Income Tax 102,036,544 83,606,850
b) Indirect Taxes 19,337.863 19,337,863

Total 121,374,407 102,944,713
56. Events occuring after Balance Sheet Date

None
57. Assets Pledged as Security (only if pledged)
The carrying amount of assets pledged as security are: Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Reinsurance Receivables
Investments in equity

Fixed Deposits =
Property, plant and equipment =

Others (to be Specified) - _

Total - -

58. Miscellaneous
(i) All amounts are in Nepalese Rupees unless otherwise stated.

(i) All figures are in the Nearest Rupee & Rounded off.
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Minimum Disclosure
As at 32 Ashad 2079

Information related to Non Life Insurer

a) Date of establishment

% ANNUAL
REPORT 2078-079

Everest Insurance Company Limited (EIC) was a public limited company, established on 2048/08/17 (3 Dec
1991) from company registrar office, Kathmandu. The company has now been merged with Himalayan General
Insurance Company Limited and has started a joint operation since 17 July 2022 in name of Himalayan Everest

Insurance Limited.

b) Insurer licence date

Everest Insurance Company Limited (EIC) obtained the license from Beema Samiti on 2051/02/17 (31 May 1994)
and finally got approval from Beema Samiti to carry on business from the same date. The company has now
been merged with Himalayan General Insurance Company Limited and has started a joint operation since 17 July

2022 in name of Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited.

0) Insurance business type, nature

The principal activity of the Insurance is to issue Non - Life Insurance contract to the general public.

There are no holding in subsidiary and associates.

d) Date of commencement of business

Everest Insurance Company Limited (EIC) finally started its commercial operation from 2051/04/07 (22 July

1994).
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Annexure Il

Major Financial Indicators
As at 32 Ashad 2079

JI/},;
(g

Amount in NRs.

Fiscal Year
S.N. Particular Indicators
FY 2078/079 FY 2077/078 FY 2076/077 FY 2075/076
1 Networth NRs. 1,738,429,235.64 1,757,315,280.20  1,596,804,603.56 1,313,977,768.07
2 Number of Shares Number 12,546,207 11,836,044 10,959,300 10,425,481
3 Book value per shares NRs. 138.56 148.47 145.70 125.99
4 Net Profit NRs. 9,564,856.18 159,367192.1 189,208,571.71 62,871,034.01
5 Earning per Shares (EPS) NRs. 0.80 14.52 1738 22.91
6 Dividend per Shares (DPS) NRs. - 6.32 8.42 -
7 Market Price per Shares (MPPS) NRs. 500.00 749.00 412.00 365.00
8  Price/Earning Ratio Ratio 626.15 51.59 23.71 15.93
9  Returnon Equity % 0.55% 9.07% 11.85% 4.78%
10 Returnon Investment % 0.76% 13.46% 17.26% 6.03%
n  Loss Ratio[(Claim Paid + change in 135.50% 67.79% 46.58% 59.63%

reserve)/ (Net Written Premium)}
Expense Ratio (Underwriting

12 Expense including Commission/Net % 6.80% 6.43% 7.30% 12.76%
Written Premium)

Combined Ratio (Loss Ratio +

B Cenee Ratio) % 142.29% 74.23% 53.89% 72.40%
14 l’\r']estu'rra‘f]l;r:;f:n:f;”'”m/ bross g, 39.52% 42.03% 3767% 46.05%
15 E‘fetrsifr:t/ Gross Insurance % 0.84% 16.59% 16.83% 13.06%
16 i;oszst;””rance Premium/Total o 28.35% 2612% 33.99% 15.27%
17 :Ezgirm”gzi g :ggz ;”;%Tﬁt/ Total o, 8.23% 1213% 10.90% 797%
18 Eg:;:z:gzi ;?;”m"i‘fr;"’“/ Gross o, 23.48% 23.34% 15.1% 42.80%
19 ngfagnecr:‘;rr‘;;ﬁs:ses/ Gross o, 19.76% 20.58% 18.03% 3412%
20 ﬁ%i:;ii'ﬁ’:ﬁf”seS/ Gross 2.29% 2.27% 2.40% 5.09%
21 Number of Agents Numbers 140.00 127.00 78.00 210.00
22 Number of Branch and Sub-Branch Numbers 40.00 34.00 31.00 31.00
23 Number of Employees Numbers 215.00 193.00 171.00 189.00
24 E:;E'r?g’:se expenses/ Management 63.95% 71.72% 70.95% 67.29%
25 Ernﬂ'boeyrese expenses/ Employee o 665,368.09 734,560.81 84111914 584,607.61
26 SlL;E;:aP”a'ji['j”(‘gNgS'm Expenses/ % 41.62% 34.08% 46.09% 8213%
27 EE:;?;?P%S?AE:EF](E?SS/ % 39,685.69 15,866.89 2134773 3297125
28 ;%t“i'ig‘s”mber of Existing Insurance \ - pere 118,427.00 101,504.00 79,502.00 90,456.00
29 Renewed Insurance Policy/Total o 12.58% 15.00% 013% 011%

Insurance Policies last year

Number of Claim Insurance
30 Policies/ Total Number of Policy % 5.52% 8.56% 3.61% 2.56%

Outstanding
31 Technical Provisions/ Total Equity % 33.74% 23.36% 23.47% 291%
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32 Gross Premium/ Owner Equity % 65.12% 54.65% 70.42% 36.62%
33 Net Premium/ Equity % 25.74% 22.97% 26.53% 16.87%
34 Insurable Debt/ Total Equity % 9.93% 11.28% 10.70% 9.57%
35 Net Premium Growth Rate % 10.82% -4.69% 91.13% 129.68%
36 Change in Gross Written Premium % 17.87% -14.58% 133.65% -20.04%
37 Cession Ratio % 60.48% 57.97% 62.33% 53.95%
38 mgi Ele;::';zll deosf[‘;Z ?‘\’(ee?rgse of o, 201.92% 213.55% 380.87% 625.48%
39 Liquidity Ratio % 172.95% 186.31% 187.42% 166.07%
40 (E]Ljer;ig?sge/['jl'ftillj ilzisesse; % 0.58% 0.64% 0.70% 9.61%
41 Solvency Margin Ratio 3.16 319 2.62 2.76
42 Change in Equity % -1.07% 10.05% 21.52% 226.67%

228



88/'881'8ZY'vLL

£99°'¢vv'v6Z°06

605°888‘LyY'6LZ

859°625'09Z°0LT

LBT'LLE'DLB EEE

SZE'TL6'PSS 09E

vos‘LoL

Lzy'8LL

|ejoL

60/'046'€46'95
S6Y'670'6EL
80€E'L8LEL

926'EVi' 968y
8/¥'966'1L0'8
8¥8'Ev0'SCY'SL
£¢0'€08'806'8¢

8LL'6ED'SO8'6E
G19'0€8'6SL
€L0°L6

LLY'\SE'BIL'Y
8/9'980°925'6
7/8'€95'16C'TT
Y68'6LY YL LL

SLL'T8T9LY'8Y
6/661'955
769'E8E'S6L
000'006'866'L
LEL'8LL'80L'TS
BES'8SY'ELL'ST
£69'188°528'0L
¥63'500795'6L

L08'L8L'6IE'S8
8591 CZE'6EY
886°EEL'LBL

LTE'0L9'790°CE
LOE'C6T VLE LT
0/7'€91'180°CL
715°520°75S Tl

S88°757'06€'S0L
v/YLvT'S69
000'595'80C
000°006'866'L
¥99°7¢7'S09/S
8L0'SSY'SPZ EE
L¥5'526'052'9C
[1£'808'S/t'80L

6L6'02Z PLL'STL
€L0°ESL'B6L
000'G20°Z8L

708'196'LE8'8E
6/6'8/E'006'9€
TYLLTLELE VE
80%'S0S'E6Z VCL

995'%
SE0'C
S
86C°C
099°C
EEE'S
0/8'0L
LEB'EL

6YEL
€197
[4

PEE'T
0406
SOL'L8
756'GL

SN03UE||3ISIN
doiy pue 311e)
uopeIny

01N
BUl33UIBUT
aulep

Jo10[

aild

1B3A SnolA3ld

1B3A JUauN)

1B3A SNOIA3.d

1B3A JUaLN)

1B3A SnoIA3id

1B3A JUaLN)

1B3A SNoIN3Id

1B3A JUaLIN)

J1ainsu| Aq pauieiay ysiy painsuj 18N

1aInsu|-ay
0} papa))jsiy painsu|

s3a|dljod ddueinsu|
Su13six3 isulese Junowy painsu|

siaquinp saldljod 3aueinsu| Sunsix3y

sadA] ajueinsuj

‘N'S

'SYN Ul lunowy

junowly painsuj o sjielag
Al 2InXauuy

230



231



232



233



\\\\"" ///

\\\\Iluu

3 22 fEweE Tie
IR ferfaes
TIE $oIAR6I BIUGT fAfSS
3R ATHE R09R F TAATT
IHH (%)
ik A R SR 9 9§ T 9§
S|
g ol 3 2 31, %R0 §5¥ 2903 %0% %00
2 SIS U1 BN 98 2% R10¢,304 9, %02, 4’2
3 9w 3 9 %% BRY Bok ¥2R3,22%, 1 0%
g HAe-faus SEreT 9y 2%,3R¢,0%% 2,509,033
y  foF 9t Sgamrfod ke den |t 9, - -
BB A 1,599,549, 1920 1,599,259,500
ST
&  Rer 9=l (Qa) U ©3 $%2 ¥RY 200,241 £2%
v  SrE®Ifed S ¢ 3%%,3%% K32 3R2,9%%, %3¢
¢ SIHIGT Bl 0 - -
G TR HoAl doNl WHIE® :
R S T I% Hissrd R 93¢,33,¢eR 98% W3R ¥k
90 IHBIG B L1 2,%¥%%, %3 30K 2,¥ 3%, ¥E2,3R%
99 IHBIG Boll 0 $C,Ccl §4,433
R I HERA 29 “3¢,£23,049 ¥RE,EE4,UR?
S (@) (R+90+99+93) ?,13%,4%5,954 9,085,994, ¥&Y
g TR N FTRATE -
93 dIg aidE R 8¢,03%,9%% 2180,£31,%¥3%
98 ITFATG SIREH qrad gg=el 3 34,0%0,% 320,220,309y
Ay YTHI g dld] a1 FOd egaRel & R%0,27%,2% 209,393 TX %
S B C ks B3P €R,%%3,40% 24R,EUR, 0¥
= (W) (93+98+94+98) &’2,583,3¥% §¥9,555,0%9
®“  FE TG FER (1) + (F) - (F) 2,%¥3% %%¥, <3 9,%¥%0,3¢19,3%¢
9¢  IUSET 91 TS g 4o fafdy w2 - -
QR AT AR IS‘HIGIGIIC AP ATRAT - -
P FE SN (§HHHCHIGHICHR) 1,5\99, 49,1920 4,5\99,%5\9,%00
Rkl IR T
£k A R 9 9§ NGAGL
9 BT a1 YHE G Sl SN - -
R gfegd - -
=TT YT dIehaIc §Hd SUR Tl TR
3 W fHPe IR WHR TR ; )
g f9Phd a1 SHBH dheae _RsTar RIS - -
I (@1 BRI FGT I Fe99 VR FREAS
g IR 3 geu sifgfeg e o= MR |t iR 232,310%, %00 20 R¥%, 093
PHR_AYRY R R TGS IR EHR TRDI)
IS hai 999,39%, %0\ 09,R¥¥,993
Hurfaa aTiRicas® ¥ SIgAl & 1 92 <R g T F|HT AW I F |
e qw 4w Al o 9o oI ¥ XN SRS o Yqo TS
el H>ATHD >ATHD AATSD H>ATHD
M YR @ Ao §8IgY 98 fapra Sura A YfAdeTd! MIRAT
TATHH e SRR sffema  fad uga g9 e
SR
IMA: HroATef FAAT @? )
fafd: 06-1901R0 s ‘

R3¥



Qqaﬁ e Ufdae 00¢-03 _

LI §6IARGH BIUGH [AfACS
ATFIF a 209519 FHT ATHT AFAH A

IHA (%)
4. faa=on ERbsll 9 T T AN
ST
9 AT Iy RRAEEe ARG A1/(AeE) o (2%%,%%2,43R) 9%3,¢3%,000
I Hull qAT SIS I B 04,4819 <25 93¢,%¢4 233
3 ogawer fhal ¢ 20,339 303 219,294 U
g 31 I (faaRe gorsT) = -
ST 3T () 92,953, ¥G0 RR,E64, R
o

Y  FRAIA @ 4 22,640, % 0% 20,034 Ty
§ IUewEd Ed ] - _
6 IR g R B 2,%02,23% 933,322
¢ I GO 90 - _
R IR BN axe Q9 34,209¢,592 20,339,303
90 FHHAN! INART FaRAT = -
O PHAN T ARl 2,333,304 24,303 203
R R SR (31)=(am)—(3) 3,32%,%%% 92, %%0 4cs
3T) SMIBR 23, Uee, Ry ©3,28R,2%%
) R A Fwfy/ (<) (20,38%,043) (1833,3%3)
ST T () §3,0¥3, % 19%,%55,%99
g T () (1)=(®)-(9) ],R90,45 99, 8R5,9%
93 (P) 91 DITHT TRDI CH) %,%20 2% €8,3%% 200
(@) 91 ST ARG 9y - -
9y Jiftree! avdT g @9 (3,448 0%¢) (2,220 3%0)
y  HfEred! a¥are wRye! Te/(Frei) 233,335, S0 20%,¢2% 320
dremied O SUGE IHH 99¥,2%0,'939 133,045, 988
IR Ofawee Aikue = (¢,34¢,390)
% (P) AT B IS a8 20,388,043 V33,33
(@) YoinTd Srrst 9% = -
(71) ¥y SrreT 9y = -
(°) 3y SHrST (Wer-faush SrsT) Qy = (,830,20%)

(¥) uxaifaa e
(a1) dFe TR 9g - 82,028 %%
(3m) Q. @M 3D - 3,030 8¢
(@) #E-fwh SHreT ay ¥%9,09% €,83% 322
(B) ARG STRETRAE DITAT AR YE, T¥R -
¥ IS ARBT ATHI/ () 99%,30%,09% 993,%3¢,59¢

G 2, 4 TAT 9 IR 9, 98 X 9y TR IAHT AW T A |

R g g fafa g1 gw
arezey HATOH

M YR @ e faew q8igr e
FAGD T BRIGRI 3ifdgd
RIF: FHIGATS

fafd: 0wRI901R0

o/ I wefud TARTST 2191

NSECIerEd

e Sura
fas v

gATH D

YIS T

T& Ufde-Tdl MR

ga IfersRy

TASIE. TUs THIRITEH
IS THIS<<H

BER



\{1]
.,.‘&;\\:....,',!(g/,,

B e T TR
R~ fafacs

LI §6IARGH BIUGH [AlACS
09z SEUT q IR R0\9Q ATHIG IR TFHEHT AE TAEHT [Ga<UT

7

ISR R/ fa=a=AT S (3fg) FH
I S (3hg) FA

Yzl g FHormr (3fg) F

P UTK =TSl AT (STT)
ThHl U e~

RIS R

YhHI U Tol AR (FHArT)

A YL AT

(3%,%¥%R,000)
(©R,3kY)
2R¢,2%0,%2%
%,08%,%8%
9,R%%,¢co
¥k, B0

¥, 49,00%

I6Y (%.)
$3 e 9 9§ T 9y
F BRER WAGAEIE TG YA

41 Yob AT 9,009,£2¢,343 €90,433 003
JEH Yo AR 929 34K 3¢ 2%0,€0 3R
T BEARE SR 9¢9,30¢ 3¢ 92%0,€39,4%¢
I Y& AT 4,292,€k% ®,4%¢,%3%
gdHEae ura &l R ®’%,%2¢,04% %R0,%%%,%%¢
T gob YhI (¢20,3%%,2%) (220,£2¢,2¢%)
YA BIRE Y<hI (2,20%,¢%0) (¥,200,34%)
JFHHAT B YBIT (29,%22,4%¢) (20,32%,2¢2)
S b (2,02¢,3%0,333) (¢R%,3%0,0%3)
HIT YPob Y (20,R%¢ 203) (2,2¢3,%4R)
I YT @I - i
LRI @I YThHT (R0%,%2% 9o%) (283,092 %)
FHHARN dH BT (R%,2%9,3%3) (20,4%%,423)
JIHR YhIT (91,3%R ¢%3) (¢, %%, %¥3R)
G FRIET gl /() (2%,c%¢,%0W) (222,3¢¢,220)
a1 qTicEEn gieg/(HH) (24,04 8% ) £¢,00%,4¢
PRER FAGEIE Y& TIE Yae (&) (R¥%,03%,%80) (934,&29,9%%)
I Tifadiee TR yaE
Rere w=afemr (qf) w4 234 369,431 (3,5%%,300)
PN I TRHRD ST I FRIREAT ST () B - -
o dern facig wwere JEdt RagH s (9fg) (RoR,4%0,000) 9%9,%00,000
I Tt foRig e o= gy s (gfg) & 2%, 3¢, %09 (230,33%,¢R0)
IR I (IRg) HH (¥,3¥4,34%) €3,62334¢

(3%,%¢4,000)
(18,2%¢,0%3)
20% 9% €%
[AERLE

9,4 %,0c0
%R,2<¢9
?,2¢R,%R0




I Q" s sz 20—

I TfafdEiee gg TR vEE (9) 1Y,09%,5R% 99R, 49, 44
T frid #d PREREE K YaE

IRRETC YT IHH - -
IR ffm - -
R dfelt wadr g/ (F) _ _
BT T glg/(HHT) - -
U1 HTACHT =TSl YhIT - -
IR TE GG (2,¥02,23%) (©23,222)
BT BTl (3,032,%30) (%,%2%,%%R)
fig sid $ReREE G T8 yarE () (4,932, 4&R) (4,%05,343)
Td afpl wg RN gE T e = (BHEHT) (3€,0%%,803) 3G, %¥R¥, 890
TR qA TH [WH FE A &Y, ¥3R, ¥TY 994,239, 99Y
TR qAT THA1 TH A~ Ao 95,339,552 %Y, ¥3R, ¥TY

o qu ds i v g IO ¥ Wi RIS o1 9% NI

Jrege HATGD HATGD GECICED HATGD

M U9 ©e  faod 98igr e e Suem H& gfdeTe! SR

HATHD e SRR afgd  fad ugw g9 o

R
fafa: 206R19010 X

3



BReuflbh 89lk hllas
BRARIBG Sab BAYSEA
AbDlh
Bloge sk BBk D) phglie [plople Rhk bolbck
LbABIE |bbbDIK Lok Rikalhe Bldp) ala 2513p kinp) QbR bIRK b
bolpch bolpch bolpch bolbch B3l
3 wbk lhifs Inlrb3 Dhjily ) Rinie oy lmd Diob) ol lndb B3k
020'bR3B619h 2RO KOB'REABR ABRRDE - 6226k Tk BOROE'RL  RID0EBRRE bihall bbsjle
20338 - (kgo'33r) - |Sleln |Dhb|-3k
- lell] 2l
ARl DK
12kl blrb DPJIDNK
- - - A2 Bblb DbJIDMK
2233k (223%h) - 1Ak bkl b PR|IDALS dinlbl
- - tho'tad'os - (gno'sar'oy) - Rlek Ab bl
(7303mn%) - - - (730%W%) - Liolplkk Iekb @2k
- b2yoyR - (bedoa'n) - Abalbbd (bl Lkl $ lblp
Pnrorts - - Pndorts - lhik B kb Bk
(R32330%0) - 3233030 Rl 3Rlx Bb
rrrrrrr
00305 toh RE0'ORR'L  BORALLELR |RE0CH00 |- - - OR2F/RER RRWOTH WL |ooR‘R03¥R Dibap of
bl bl bl blib|b
o | 12k by opis | 2klg Bblp
hdbd @b ) b 18kl 1Sl 1ol | lhik | uoh kg ladbp|
IR ARy lblp | DbJIDM
() hea 102 bb) \R3alth BPbYMh il LhIPhES L 562602 k'L

SQIgJIQ) lIohocd RoR|pr0d upien

R3¢



I Q" s sz 20—

LI §6IARGH BIUGH [AfACS
ATIF ad 309516 FT Tlhdd s =07 fgam

IhY (%)
EOGARGERL A I 99 UCHCL]
KD
9 aEged (TR) 9 %% ¢ BTy ¥R0,430,%0%
? YAEH BARE M 2¢2,300¢ 3¢ 2%0,£R10 4%
3 UM, Boll el IJIRMEE M 3 “,02% 033 %19, 0%, <%
g I UIE A ©,229,£4% 4 4R E3%
g NE IUPBI FEDH! YT g dID! I A IR 201993 T¥% 20%,4eR 12%
& oME IND! PoD! JFATK SINRGH I I R0%,0%0,3¢0 2%¢,%%3,70%
S I (P) 9,0009,4519,4%0 R9G,09%,319
qg
© T YT (FR) 3 ¥2333%,34% 03 203 2%Y
¢ IIAHdAl B R%,093 €% R0,4%2,000
{  YAI HARE W™ 2,%0%,£%0 ¥,200 4%
P I Pob (Yg) g ¥ ¥3R C9C ¥ Ro4 0%
99 I Y @I - -
9 AR T 4 23,04 %,0¢R 243,332,00%
93 3fdfE D! I Wb T Sfdl ST 990 g g 3%0,27%,2%0 200,393 S¥%
9g 3N IYPB! AT AT SIREH qIa Fa=el I%,5%¥3,¢eR 3%0,%0,%03
S g (W) 9,99%,939%,0%% 99¥,9%Y,30%
9y ATHT A REEH RS 99d (F-9) (%%, &¥9,43R) 9¥3,G¥,009
ITGAl 9 2R & T FGH AW T § |
T T A R w1 o= Y I xenfia RIS 7T Ya® TS
e GECIGEY RECIGEY GECIGED KECIGEY
M yEE @ e fasw qwigr wE faer™ S H& gfdeTa! SR

HATHh

U9 SRR ed  foa ugE

IE: BISHTS
fafa: 0619010

TASIE. Uos QHIRGeH
e THIST<TH




LI §6IARGH BIUGH [AlACS

AR qW 09519 T AT SHTHRT T AT fea™

IPH (%)
EXGAIRCEIL A a9 a9y UCHEL]
T
1 g (F9) q ©g U3 0% ¥£,e3R,03%
R GG BRE S 3¢,343,04¢ ¥3,3%2,430
3 BN, oIl q STEIE M B 23,390, 30% R,%%¢,%33
PR e e i - -
g  ofE TN FHD! YHMI T a0l @ qUd IaRe 30,0¢%,094 9% ¢R%,3%
&  oNfY® uD! YD FFATK WIRGH qIId SFazel R¥,%¥22,3%% % ¥oR 3%
S A (D) Y9, ¥ &, ¥YY 9%¥9,09,9%0
I
6 T ywrT (F9) 3 33,230,004 23,18, REY
¢ el Bffee 3,383,¢¢R R,EIR,ER
R g B @ PRAL ©R,2%%
o WA Yo (Fa) 8 “2%,33¢ ¥ee,IR0
99 I YIE @I - -
R ARAYT G 4 3¢,220,342 3R,¥40 Yok
93 o7fF e AT YHI g dfa QT 9IUd awen & %% %¥%3,03¢ 30,0¢8,024
98 s IYPI IHT AT HIRGH U =T R%,9%2,¥03 R%,%29,3%%
S Y () %Y, 9%Y, 334 903,290,90%
9y AH AeEE REEE R F=9d (F-9) 9,244,990 39,282,042
G 9 <Ra & I JqH AN T A |
e W 9% i o 9 IO I Xefid TARTST <11 Yqo TS
e H>ATHH T>ATHH AATSH H>ATHH
M y9E @ e iy swigr wE e Surem H& gfdeTa! SR
ECICED U9 BRGRI AR fad uga g9 e
R
fafd: 06RI9010 )

R¥o



I Q" s sz 20—

LI §6IARGH BIUGH [AfACS
AT T 309519 FT AR AR I =7 T

IpH (%)
4. faawo I Iq a¥ T T
I
9 dHYed (TYa) 9 2¢,4e4,223 23,¥4%,03%
g HfATE SmY R ¥%0, %2 9,489,083
3 N, Holl qA IEE M R 3,533,232 J,R3E,%¢3
g I U I - -
g 3N qUPDI YR B g Sl ITET AU Fawer ¥,%2¢ %% €,0%2,22%
& oMY® aYD! Pod! JFATK SIRGH I awel 3,9¢¢,0%% vy, ¥k
ST I (h) 3R,%%9,40% 30,20%,\909
qq
O & Y (GR) 3 §,R0% ¢4’ R,£¥0, %04
¢ SIfEdl BAeE £3%,04R ©3¢,%20
R G BT @ : _
90 HaT Yob (TR) ¥ 2e4,e48 23%,4%0
99 I yIE @I - -
R AR T 4 92,09 0%3 ? ¢c0,32%
93 3MfE DI STIAT YhHI § il Sd) II9d Favel & 4,909,332 ¥,%2¢ %%
9y 3N I¥pT ATAT I SRGT §TUd HavT ],R]3,UU4% %,93¢,0209
S = () WRI,RY W, TV
Wy AT AFEE A WRAl g9 (5-9) ¥,498, 99 ¥,38Y,08%
YA 9 <Rg & IR JAqPT AW ST A |
TR U A v @ oS 3T T eI TERIST T Yao IS
e GECICED SECICET HATHD GECICED
M yEE @ e sy swigr e fasra Sureary H&T gfdeTel SR
NECICED U9 BRIGRI e fad ugE e R
R
fafd: 06190120 )

%2



R " /
\\\\Ilm

S

oo

LI §6IARGH BIUGH [AlACS
ATTIF qH 0\951\9% T ZATS THIHRT I =0T Faa

‘ﬂ\\\\

A (%)
H4 faaro SELEll I9 q§ RGEGL]
SiIpf
1 g () 9 2 508 2% R %
?  gEMl HARE & 3¢,R3¢ R,20%
3 B, Holl q STEIE 3 2 w,30¢ 3,33R
g I U A - -
y  oTRiE quP! YHD! Y g dfd] ST AU aReeT - -
& oNfYd VD! Yod! JFFATK WIRGH qTId Fazel 8, %% 29 03¢
ST S (W) 42,809 49,932
T
b ST gHE (FT) 3 - -
¢ el Bffes - -
R gHEH dfAeE @ - 93,003
J0 HAT Yob (JFg) 8 20 2%%
99 3 yE @9 - -
9 AT G 4 £20, 3%¥ -
93 Ife JYDT I YhT §F dfd] I UG IR & - -
9g s YD IHT AT HIRGH dTUd =T c3e 9, %%
= Y (@) &1G,91G 20,5R%
W A e e WRel q=d (9-a) (4EY, 420 39,095
TG 9 <R & T JHHT A ST F |
e 7w a4 fafm w1 9w O ¥ wifd TERIS T qqe T8
arezet HASH HAGD HATOH HASH
M yEE Ee sy svigr e fRera Surearg H&T UfdeTd! SERHAT
TATSD U9 SRR e fad uga g9 SR
RICEN
fafd: 0619010 NEOREASR!

¥R



I Q" s sz 20—

LI §6IARGH BIUGH [AfACS

ATTIF q 0\951\9% AT HIET FHHR AW T g

6y (%.)
4. fdaror IJggA Tw 9§ CHCL]
Mg
9 dEged () 9 UR ECO,RE] R¥1,00% 605
R gEH BfATE I ©3,c40,R%% ¥R,€33,3% 1
3 O, Boll q IREE I ? R%,00%,2%% %,342,¢2
¥ I YT I ©,R22,c1¥ ®,4%¢,%3%
g 3MfYe guPI FHD! YHMT g il I qUd SFawen 9,093 0¥ 3%, 33R,43%
§ OM® JNDI YD FHATK SIRIH aTId Fael 233, 40% c43 222,2¢3, 004
ST 3 () ¥G%,299,%¥99  ¥§§,38G,G0%
qg
© < YR () 3 3G UUE ¥R 230,240,208
¢ IAEHAT BAeE ¥,3%0,%29 ¥,R%0,0eY%
R YAGHI HfATH TH 2,¢R%,6R¢ ¥,10%% ¥
90 HaT Yo (Ga) g J,URE Cll 3,%90,0310
99 I Yge @d - -
9 ERAUT TH 4 £2,3¢2,4¢ ®0,3%%,033
93 3Mf® D! SRIAT YhTI § Sfdl STd) 919 Favel & 92%,0%% 93¢ 30,093, 50%
9g MY H YD IIH AT SHIRIH U IR 23%,3%3,¢3¥ 2R3 U0%, U
= Y (W) 829,064,398 3¥Q,499,GY49
9y HATHT AeaH REEH RS §9d (F-9) (9%0,903,5¥3) 993,5%0,%43
IFGA 9 <Rg & T JF@T AN 3§ |
e W 9% fafa w1 9w oI ¥ X TIRIST o Yqo S
3rege NECICER NECICrE NECIery NECICER
M YR @ e iy q8igr e e Suam Ho UfagTd! 3eRHA
GECICL e RGN Aftgd R ugw g7 aRE
TR
TASIE. TUS THIRITEH
WI: BISHTS] e
fafd: 206R1901R0 NEIRRASR

R¥3



R "
\\\\“"ll

S

‘ﬂ\\\

“,

N\

LI §6IARGH BIUGH [AlACS
AT T R09z19% HT FTrAIAIS dHTRT T =T fgae

e i

Py (%.)
4. fdaror A a9 a9 T A
I
1 AYed () 9 33,424,309 25,080 %%
? YAGHI BARE 37T 3E,33%,%0% %,3%0,33¥
3 N, Boll qA IEIE M ? w, ¥R, wy ¥ ,3%%,3%%
¥ I Y& I o -
g 3MfYe IuPI FHD! YHMI g il Il qUd Fawen 24,204,219 R¢,0%% %%
g O® JNDI YD FHATK SR aTId Fael ¢,030,933 3R,R¢],201
S A () ’5,408,38% 100,088, 42
g
6 S Yo (g9) 3 3% ¥4I 35,24R oY
¢ afvedt hE 4,220,200 %,000 30\
R YA HfATH T 32,348 ],u2%
fo  Jal Yoo (G) 8 37,243 2%0,%0%
99 I Yge @d - -
9 ARG EY 4 ¥0,UEE 220 33,3%%,2¢3
93 3Mfe aue! IIH YhMI §9 did! M@ 990 Fawel  § %, 4R¢,09% 24,304, €6%
9g s YD I AT SHIRGH U AT 2%, %40, T Y ¢,030,933
S g () 23,400,089 900,043 0¢4
9y AT e REEH RS §9d (F-9) (35,%0,939) 98, 98%
TG 9 <Rg & T JFDT AN ST B |
TR 7w 9o vk o= 9o o T i AT Tl Yao T8
3eged NECIery NECIRER NECICrY NECIera
M yEE ©e  faew qvigr e faem Suem Hod UfadeTa! STeRHA
FAD T REN dftga R ugw 7w
qER
THSNTE. TUs THIRITEH
RIM: PIGHTS! 3 QW
faf: 206R19010

XYY



I Q" s sz 20—

LI §6IARGH BIUGH [AfACS
TR R0\9519R A1 fafay fwmt s =uw feam

IhY (%.)
EGARCERL IggA a9 a9 T Ay
I
9 dEged (Fg) q €R,c0¢,323 £3,0¢% 303
g FATE Sy ECPA AL 2%,0%% 4’3
3 B, Boll qA IEIE I 3 R,2¢3,3%% g,34¢, 2%
g 3T U I - -
g oTRiE auPI YD YT g did] ST qUd g 3, %04 ¥R¢ 22,304,310y
g oNY® JHDI YD FHATK SRIH aqd Fael 39,4%R,202 R%,¥RE,02%
ST 3 () 9519,42%,09% 99%,3%1,009
g
© = gl (Fa) 3 22, K3 ¥ 4o 3¢,0%3,302
¢ FfHal HERE ERCTACRAN ,R4E, 030
R YIS HfATH TH 2,22% R%,23%
90 ¥aT Yo (TGa) g e 0e3 £30,¢¥R
99 I YgE @I - -
9 ARG EY 4 39,332,%% Ro,%0%, 8 ¥R
93 oRN® D! I YhT A dfP! 1A IUT IR & 2¢,R32,88% 33,¥ok ¥R
9g s YD I ITATG SR 1T a=el ¥R,20% 240 32,4%R 202
S 2 (%) &, Q98,48 ¥ 198,445,349
9y AT AT REEHT RS g9 (F-9) (%,940,%¥%9) 9,195,040
TG 9 <R & T IJF@T A S F |
e 7w a4 R W o= I X Xenfia TR &7 Ya® S
e >aATHD HATED H>ATHD >ATHD
M yEE ETe iy qvigr e faer Surm H& gfdeTd! SERHm
HATHH 79 RGN Ied  faa ugE g9 e
R
fafd: 06190130 A

¥



\1J
:.&:\‘\:uml,!{'/(//#

I e = o=
R~ fafacs

LI §6IARGH BIUGH [AlACS
AT 09z)\eR T ATl AT qudedt AR s = e

IPA (%))
EDGACEIL IggH  TE 9 UCHCL]
I
9 YD (Y1) q ©,9% %, Uk £,8U%,C80
R g BT e ®,30%,22¢ ¥,44E,330
3 O, Boll dl ST I B 2,094, %¥0% 2,0%%,44
g 3T U I - -
4 3nfe aUPT gEPT YN g B Il arad wawen §3¥0,83%  §%0%,¢34
& oNfYe® qiD! Yol JFFATK SIRGH qTId Fawel 3,330, %¥3% 3,¥RE Cloe
S I (W) 93,805,338 99,493,089
qg
b ST gD (1) 3 ©26884¢  3%¥%42R
¢ Il B ®,¢%,%3% ¥, 433,271
Q  gdMl HfAeH wd , _
% ¥ Yo (FI) 8 0, TS TR
99 3 Y @Y - -
R FARIYT Y 4 §,00%,34% 4,201,323
93 ITRN® D! I YhT g dfd! S1A U IR & 2,%%8 34R %,3%0,33%
9y 3N a¥R! IHT I SIRGH I19d Faved] 3,¢R,R’R 3,3R09,%3%
SHT g () ¥, %RE,5¥Q  QW,GTY,0%T
9y AR AFEH RFEET RS =9 (F-9) (GOT,%03)  (9,399,R59)
PGl 9 2Rg § T FqDHT AW 7§ |
= v as  fIRi gwr 9w o I wRnfia SRS o7 Yao TS
rege HATGD HATGD H>ATHD HATED
M yEE @e o w'gr e faer Surer H&T gfideTa! SR
SECICEE T BRGRI AR fad uga ga e
TR
fafd: 20619010 )

R¥%



I Q" s sz 20—

LI §6IARGH BIUGH [AfACS
ATH aW 09519 H A FHH AW 21T Faa

IhA (%))
4. fdaro A a9 a9y UCHEL]
S
9 dEged () 9 3,333 EERTICR TN
R g BARE S - -
3 B, Bl JAT IFEIE A 2 2 ¥R0 430 -
g I YUl Iy - -
y  oTRiE auP! YHD! Y g dfP] ST AU RaRReT - -
& omfdd v E\B\Tﬁﬁ AT SIRGA qId Sa=eq 2R,00¢ €3 I TARAN
ST I () 1%, 939, &% 33,408,493
g
o ST gHE (GT) 3 3R,¢%3 ¥¢,50¢,50
¢ Ifmar wffes - -
R gEH wfAeE @ . B}
o Wal Yoob (Ye) g 33 W¥,200
99 I YIe @l - -
R AR @I y ¥R 2,ERE,23%
93 3Mfd NP STIAT YhHI g il S1d) 990 Favel 3 - -
9y P YD SIAT AAIC SNRGH qTUd a7 2 2%\ 93,90¢,¢33
S Y (W) 3,¥3 83,385,831
9y AT e fREEHE RS 99 (F-9) 9¥,900, 991 (R,5R2,0R0)
Il 9 <Ra & T JFST AN 3 F |
e ol a5 R g as IoTg ¥ Renfid TR T Yq® TS
el H>ATHH T>ATHH TSATSH H>ATHH
M UEE Ee  faod 98igr e faera Surm SRR RCINCERCA IR
AP e SRR afgd  fad ugw 9 e
ER
S :;ﬁw qUS THIRITCH
fafa: 206.190IR0 X

¥V



Rk SREbEO‘D 022288602 b ¢%2‘00202b 2618 “RRE ‘Kbb 200‘CER 0612 ¢0R‘b20°020°b Lhslo
=03 %2% e LR 25882702 - 02%‘ax3'0l PR Bo 2
hitoar'el rey 2222t - - hitoar'el R 22 whldh kb Ie 6
a%23M223%233 o%h33% 30 Se‘aox RO 2nt'22283 h3300% 202 Bblpl B
N 'R0% 278 220'203 M2y ShR e »hoy0x 203'33% 2238 heohME e Aykblnax  §
W2%'R0R ‘0% 0%2MnR g nh3Ro’aRg rrdana‘tes og2mit’eor hoa 200 ‘atE T[S
233 ZE R 233k = - 228 ent e Sb8 ¢
RERTPE A e63'023'%3 - = RN MR NN x63'0R3'R3 epifin ¢
222203228 $0% 30032 220Mo8 320 2% ae8‘a26223 onx‘onkoge lprie b
kb DBIr kb Bk kb DBIr kb Bk kb DBIr kb Bk
. (paadandy)
Loflblp b @B njpeh b eofiiblp BROK  bRG Il R

b 08 (B)

b-leBEbie

20 ‘0¢R‘0eR 23260928 >R $92%9b2°0b3 2bb“>R0°CHR6 RoRSkEbEOD 029228%b02 b Lo
RELSOPEREES ERE aon '3y - PR ERY Bo 2
032203 h2h'R36'% 73802 ek 7nosE netoar‘te 2%k phh kD [RIE 6
202220 23t202M2 h%R'303'tn aex'Eos'sd D%3"M23283 o%h33% 302 BejE} B
322’0303 LRGP 0%k 'R3% 202 2062232 %3 hEd'R0% 278 220'203 M2 Sykbficals &
30650002 2330232 he 2606252203 222'236'2%3 RSP ENCE 0%2MNRghR M 8
22%'%3 2633 DELRINS 06 ‘ont 't RYERTY 228 ente sba ¢
REoanREs 233223 2en N 3R o3hMho'a R DERRPE R ROENCF R IR [STI 1SN
5E0 22228 3020203k oog‘ont'RE} h33'220"% N8 %E2°208'E23 8% 3% 03 e b

kb Bl hb B kb Bl hb B gk Rl hb Bk _ R bl B

(2B) woliibp Wik ook bbb eRiblp 0&
(1) wees () eship (2)
Sho) Ibhite Badlledad RPN \-ahEk

R¥<



I 2R i s 200¢—os: R
I SoIARGA BdUci fAfHACS

HIGA2

T, Holl AT A 3 A (%)

3 fdaRo 9 9§ T 9y
2. WHN X WIRD THMT U< ARREEE - -
. TSy Seel gEdl REmere sm ARLER L %% 23%,0¢3
3. oo Jee geh Mauee o %,00%,32% 33,3%¢,500
¥,  ANR® S AHEEE 3 - -
v, Rl W gecht Méuae em R,%¥%,3%0 8, 0% 433
<. Ufeo® HHEAIPG] ARV IRREIS BT %094 28% €3,293
L.  IUGR IRRSC B - -
¢c.  §% T faxi E@xendl fSdmerae oy R,%%¢ 32 §,%¢3 4R
;. o (fagRor goreA) qe Mg (dve) - -
%0,  HOEIC I By, 80 €3,2¢9
2. 319 Fgudre (el aed) 3,2%18, 902 3,4R0,%33
2. @M I AT ERSERATSY 90, 4R 0%
G ECHIB IR CEIGIN NG - -
23, @M (WNIQ) AT ATHI - -
REA B (ERIR) A1 A - -
2%, Rer w=rl fazplare A 29% Bk UL €90, %%
<A Rer F=rll fsbiare e - -
2y, WAl U I 3,24%,220 -
s, oiftrew aud dwfa ey - -
e, 3 I - -
20.2  ER WIS Y 9,R%%,¢co 9,£1% 0c0
20.k 3 Iy (fafde) ¥,4%,00% 2,3¢R,2%0
kil &Y, UG, 4% 158, ¥5,5NR
9. ATH A R ARG R0£,480, 2% 93¢,5¢4,333
2 3 ST Y Y REEAT AReT 93,30,0% R, %¥R¢ %33
3. AWfas T o = fREeR WRal 3,%3%,232 3,33%,%¢3
8. BAls dHPT  AY fRAHT ARG 4,30¢ R,’3%
4 AR DT I I RETEHT AN 3%,00% 2%% R%,3142,3¢2
& SOIMARY dHeT 3y @Y fREeH AR Y, ¥R, qoY %,3%,3%%
v, IRy dmme oy =g e IR® R,2¢3,3%% %,34¢,2%%
¢ TSI T uguel I o Y fFEEHT AR 2,00% ¥0% 2,0%%,440
Q. BY JHIDI I FY fREEH ARD 2,%0 430 -
STHT SR CERRA 6%, ¥52,61R




202 ‘R0& ‘R 262°2%8 ‘R 0%b20b2 bSR ‘02K ‘6 58 bk Ob %28 2b0‘Ch Limlo
PR 2 PR - IRTANSY 2 blp B 2
%2023 223606 Who 23y AP rox'ret 222228 leehlih b @b 6
2220ty §2024m2 hgo'akhn tro'3se’y ORVAL P 233930 lelbl BBk 3
zox‘on} PRNEY RR3520s 227325 3205223 §R0aNx"s lblp Sykblials
f%0'0nR"x aa2'320" 73%'880% 22302%% hRo'Rox'] Phh'R3h'R lbllp M2l 8
SR& 0% ase'e 204tk DTS Ren'EE lblblp Blba ¢
o3n'RE} $h2M23 RELRPEY ERDCEP Whg'ahh foR3R3 lelblp e¥Bin
axx'228 222"ih son‘zre'y PRI 220382 oa Moy elblp e b
kb DI kb Bk kb DI kb Bk kb DI kb Bk
(2B) @2 lbip 1223 (@obipbh 1beof b o @k bl 0% TR
(sB) @3 Lo
2=
Yt RRER aS: Wwwe e Bt i R B XROR RS R i T
2708 Y uhpe - ooy R - - - - - - - - ool R Bo
HRRE P24 SRS ORI mR: 7 - Okyth 00z P S OXORER  WhAh  boAkoth  onbrpl Rngidhid whlh kb I 6
PR0% om0l ORENZEY  WAMIAEY  2Rhio) nobahhg - - 280 - - 0% Wk BeaRh G R Relpl 3
FENSEY awoaRhE Wi oM pbwbir oW - Sa3b; ugowt b deor Aol opoknaRe  Eaohv)  oeboiaR 2ok ESYT-YNTEN- S
1030nj0%} wofnagy  ronOhA onoRaleh  Weborbay ekt oodooy  WhOWER ol oY BwhRd WoRehE AR WA o ROy 2 8
woRoORA SPRN RoiERE ol SomioRy o - - PRI VPN A0 onbx aRRY MhERY Py akaor ES-TIATT
Wty YOROKIRE  ORIAINS GIOREGA  doxRImOR}  ARREMMO: - - ootk bRooMOER  RaNeRAy 0755R8  OaRbdhn ROWNAR  EWMZAR  2onanb Ul b
he Dl b ho b b B he Db ho Be kb Bl kb Be kb Db kb B2 kb bk kb Be kb Db kb B b Db b B
o) puk pn  SYEREE g beREREREe b e - b e e
AT AT o 1B Lbble Me (bl lodh Bfisble b Ibl> [bdh hlieble 35 bib lodh hlieblie ©d lpld lbdh bl Ble

(@) hoa

SQIg)IQ) ohow RO}Ip20S NIe

NI
2-phEle

4o



I Q" s sz 20—

A §6IARGH BIUGH [AlACS

AFFA-Y
IRAYA @I T (%)
%3 faaror 9 ay T 9y
2. BHANI @9 (IFFAT 4.9 FHEIOH) 2%% BUR,cco 224,349,425
. ER TS 23,509,380 22,%0%,40?
3. g qer u R,R%,4R 2,34%, ¥R
¥,  HHd qUT IR
(®) Haq EECRA 2¢3,cee
(@) ORI e o4 %Y wee, ¥eR
(1) FaTET UG 3%¢,08 330,%%0
(|) s
w.  HOR ¥,cR9,34Y% ¥ R, %%
%.  BUR A TR 4,%R0,000 ¥, %%¢,cC%
v, TE g PRI A ¥40, 082 w¥2 4o
¢. URTEA 9,2¢% 0%0 3,6R2,¢80
], ¥AY &g (Wl |HA)
(®) sm=aR® €R1,28% Yo% Ry
(@) =fR® 26¢,093 -
20, fffigal arfed 23,324 ©,3%0
22, 3AMHdl 3 - -
2. SHIYD 3190,c9¢ ERERAAT
23, GREAT T 2,¥4R,2¥% 9,319,332
2%, B T WHY Yob 2,2¢%, %00 334,048
2w,  TF U@ dUl gRIdh “g,34% ¥¢,R0%
2%, fA=UA Je AR TSR ©3R,2< 2,031, 8c0
2v, MR Yag €, %0¢,08% ¥,2¢,332
¢, el I@HR - _
92, TGl TAT JUBKR «,000 40,000
Ro. VUG AT wER @Y
(®) Jo& ¥%0,300 ¥4¢,000
(@) s - -
2. g dfAf/Su-afifa v @d
(%) Jo® W 9%¢,000 993,000
(@) s - -
Q. AERV G TR @9 B%0,92% ¥43 0c0
3. W WY TR @d
() @ e gob 40,000 00,000
(@) I @ WeE Yob 30,000 30,000
() fowga @@ 9o gfided gob 0,000 30,000

Rug



(°) 3 gob i} :
(8) amaRe o e Yob 340,000 340,000
(@) o= == 353 2R,032
¥, A - -
. gF A wye, %32 3¢3,0%%
e, Yod AU TRR 2,040, 80¢ 32%,R0%
e, TN Pel 4,’3¢,%2¢ ¥,3%19 24¢
Re. god fepe R,9¢2,%34 3,%4,02
. I
:R.¢ dIf¥epIHd @d 99%,23% £¥,090
R.2 PRI TY w,¢03,%0Y% 3,%24%,3%0
Q.3 HoR wER @d 2,03% 220 -
.y fafey @9 3,0%0,%2R 2,003,250
Q.4 TS qT UYUeN R @l 43, ¥ 9,%3¢,R00
RR.% GCEl "l - BUE, 2
R0 g Afglg R @I ?,40%,¢%0 9,2¢% %% %
R IGW JHA TIffd TR 9,200,000 -
ST 219,408,945 990,348,944
ASHIGHT ATRT AT
9. THT A REEH IR R2,840,%9% 218,034 Ty
2. 3 DI I Y fRTeH AR 3¢,220,342 33,%%0,¥0k
3. Ogfad 9D o FI RBEEHT ARG 22,094 0% 3 3 ¢co,39%
g, IS D AT IY fRATEHT ARBY %20 3%% -
g Aiex dHT A Y fREeH IR$! %2,3€2,4CL 40,3%% V%R
& SRy dETP! T Y R AR ¥o KEE 29 33,3%%,2¢3
v, fafey dwrer g o fREEAT AR®T 31,332,%% R0,%0% %Y
¢ TS qAl Ul el I Y fRAEH AR £,00%,3%Y «,R09,32
Q. Y IS A I RAEH AN ¥ g ¢RT RN
ST 219,408,945 990,345,944

RuR




I Q" s sz 20—

A §6IARGH BIUGH [AlACS

ATGA-4.9
FHAR TG A (%)
3. faa=or 9 9 NGECL]
9. dod £0,0%¢ 003 ¥19,2219, €%
PR 1| 3%,¢8R,301 R%,%%% 90
3. W 8, 0% ¢ R3¢ ®, ¢, 80
g >AIHINHA] Y %,09%,¢RY ¥,919, %33
g drfew @b 2,£0% 0% 2219, %%
& UG - -
o,  INEEYER - -
¢ dm 2,423 b3Y 2,%\90,£09
Q. U= AT SUGH Wd Tl HaReq £,00% ¥4’ ¥,0%¢,0%0
Jo. faaT qMUAH! WA qAUT A=A €,9%9, 900 PRIARA L
99. 31 Gfem 9ud @9 e Fawen 93 %<0, %%\ 29, ¥ %R, <%
R I TI
929 IffaR<h |\ W= 2¢R,%3% “R,0%¢
R I ST 3,43¢, 440 4,288,014 %
S 6,949,550 194, 49, ¥ 1&

RU3



B3b REL0%E  BRRCREGA2 Ob3'RL2BELL - e3‘ak0‘02 b ‘bbR 2k OO bRYRBE  BR2C0C‘B2R Limlos

- 00083 W3k 000813 W1k - - 000'0hh'ahg 00002300} - Bo

thi9RR's R5876%" $303829 - PRE AN 002233 n3%83 hih 230 whEh kD [QRIB 6

n333E%28 822" m32'%8 noy'0xE'RE - 0REThA': 0503773 £0E'9RR"? 20738832 Belel 3

2610280 02 267'7h3'0n} 8552202 - 000'R83'R 577320tk R33'%36'033 LYPROFSLY ESNTINTLN

333R0'R58 200590 206'087"n01: - ER2S32 0 IPRATRY! SIS 850 7h 8342 bk 8

5£5'000'% 33R2he 22 2273858 - 528305 000222 270'¢00'% 1008308 IS T| TEN

780238 '2R 207033702 EUIRI AP - 000'000'% 0009503 W5 02R b2 528 382 ele b

b=
Lozl Lz (ute) pio 5 e = L
wlp 15 ok AT T [oligh bbbl eah B o b8 plok | o b8 plok | b b8 ok | BRIG| ik | Bk
g Lol b3 ok | 7 A (ke Lbinks lodh fieble 35 | [odh Gjieble &b | ledh lkble Sk
. B b blie b
(@) hed ledbko Dhib [pl> lplb b LR Ihbuie lbhb ol

SQIQIY) iohPc ROYIp2oS DaRien

3 phEe

U



I Q" s sz 20—

AFFA-0
I Y fREEEae AHT Ao fRNEHT GRS XBH
IpH (W)
H3  faaRo 9 9§ GHGLT
9. 37l IR Y Y fRAEEe ARG! 23,2142,20 2,23,04%
2 OHfed I o Y e aRal 4,URE,RER ©,384,08%
3. 18 dHId! M I fRTede AR®! (wsk,4z?) 32,0%%
3. AR D! A Y fFA9ee ARG (2%¥0,203,¢¥3) 233 ¢¥0 43
4 SIFRRTGYG e o Y fREEEe RS (R¢,2%0,183%) 2%,2%%
& da dHe oy @Y fREEee AR (¢,9%0,%3R) 1, 18¢3,040
©. IS qAT qYdeldl 3T FI AW ARBI (¢o¢,403) (2,222,2¢2)
¢ @Y T 3T FY fREde ARa! 2%,20033%  (R],¢’R,0%0)
[l (1%&,5%¥9,43R) 9%¥3,5%,009
IFFA-¢
aen fopat A (%)
H3  faaRo T 9§ T 9y
q. BT AR SR oaven fobdl ERAPCRCICES R,€R%,34%
2. HolEl AR BT agawern fOhdl - -
3. Yerug STl aaRen fohat 8, %C¥, %33 8,3%¥1 %%
g 3 gaven fihdl - -
ST 10,339,203 99,994, 42
AT
IUFET TIEE IPH (%)
$3  faaRon T 9§ T 9y
9 IRMNS GdE% - -
@ Aued wuEe - -
3 W AIRYS EdEw - -
g BT TIRYD! S . _
g BT TRYPI Bl - }
& BT TIRYDI A . _
© I IFUBEA - _

STHT




N

\\1]
Sl

RN

femer wee - |
SRR ferfes

TR @
R T wd P (%)
4 faaRor T 9§ T 9y
9 MU ERGINE RG] 2,%02,23% 9’3,%22
2 IR DA @I - -
3 IR R @g - -
g BT faaRT @ d - -
gy IR IR e @d i, B}
S q,%09,93% 933,211
90
I TUEw I (%)
.  faaRor I q§ GG
q qug SIRamT - -
R faom gow SIRam - -
3 I (Rwxo gerss) . -
ST B} ;
-99
e B gaen I (%)
4 faqaRor I 9§ T 9y
q FIEMAT IS S e 30,30%,c%4 R,E4R, 00
2 BT AAHIDT S Sazen - -
3 SBRUS ATHHT LRl ¥,293,0%% © 0%, %33
g

3,195,819 0,339,%0%




268 ‘Rbb ‘bR R06\ ‘K26 2R a0k ‘sRE‘612 %Eb‘0b2 R 32 R2O‘REE BOR‘RbbLCLR Lisles
07322 203822 - DRTRNNS o232 02232 Bo 9
23508 28% 0N - - 23508 28%0hR whiEh b Ik 6
2%3'032'2% 253032 2% 253222 - Roo‘aan‘on 2%3'032'2% Belp} 3
326003t $20Mo 't 7307 - NI sR0Mos'E Bykkjrex  h
sE%'R7332y 3E%RZEBRE 300'023) - Rng32R3E dRbR2eARR FY=TI"S)
53288 53288 %8hh3 - ohi sy $33"M% Bba ¢
RELERNIPI IR PRI 202'003% 220276 808220323 RELEREIPH epifin
ERo'x33't0s  226a%%'R08  Wrxlony'ny nRe 22 »82'20r'R? ERo'R33't0} e b
kb Dl kb Bk kb Dl kb Bk kb Dl kb Bk -
@ lblp lkhule (fb 0B 2bRIRY kiBbE bk bl lblp beR |Gho TR
() e B Lalp

Uy



STREA-93
(%) IR TR P (%)
G fa=or a9 94 RCHCL]
Aftgpa on 3,000,000,000 000,000,000
q %) W.900 GBI 30,000,000 A FHRU IR 3,000,000,000 R 000000000

Q) F... WO A AURITAR RMRABR AR
M) B GBI ... TF IRITAT JARFR IR
SR ol 2,R4%,50,S%¥  2,9¢3 T0%, %00
%) T 900 XD 93,48§,200 AT AR IR 2,R4%,50,S5¥  2,9¢3 T0%, %00

il 2,34%,%30,88%  2,2¢% 0¥ Y00

F) T 900 XD 93,48§,2009 AUTH AR IR 2,34%,%0,58%  2,9¢3 %0¥ Y00
3. =T YHE U g9 9] .. SRPI A R IRR

@) B.... WP .IM IFURITHAI MRAGR AR

STHT q,94%,%90,&8%  1,9G3,%0%,%¥00

IPH (%)
Iq 99 UGECL]
IRE TR 3R AR IR
. Wifas % . Wifas %
= )|
AUTS Efod AR &3 4% .%o 2,040 1\? 2%.0%
Jares il « ¥9R, %R ¥3.%R ¥,329 €08 3%.%3
fageh
ST % %% 250 42.R3 %,0%3,%¥3% ©2.]3
T4 IR0 %,2R0,0%0 ¥<.9¢ K,903 %R ¥, 9¢
I (o= gorsn)
L) 99,4%%, 201 300100 99,G38,0%% 400100
(1) e yfde @ 96 IR W@ HUHT WREAEED fQaRor
) Iq 99 RGECL]
ik Ao
wWiA@s % P (%) wWifias % P (8)
9 N FIAR WA 2%.%¢ 2¢9,3%0 33¢ 2%.%¢ 2918 30 0%
3 EIE WdH 2¥.83  2¢1R4c %00 2¥.83  2U% T4R 200
3wl ga o R.%? 29¢,03%,%00 2%.9% 204 04,34
g ol 3ETS Wae 2.¢3 R,384%,200 2.¢3 R2,%2¢,R00
g s AR e 2.33 2%,930,%00 2.33 2%, 08, ¥\90
& a9 O% s 2.34 2%, €Y% %00 2.34 2%,3R0,%00
v o7 JERR 2.2% 2%,%00,R00 2.2 23,039,000
¢ M yHr Ry 2.0% 23,90% “oo 2.0% 23,330, %00
R R FHR JMYATS 2.00 23,%¥%16,¥00 2.23 23,39%,030

Rue



I Q" s sz 20—

G-
SRrST I Py A (%)
4. faa=or I9 99 T 9§
9 RFM $R SRIST 0,3%2,00 20,083 0%
2 @ ST 4R,3%,5R 4R,3%,5R
3 Yol Srre - -
g fa9 ST - -
g I ST “E,% ¥R -
& R O B, 3
O RAId 9 IR - 109,02% %Y
¢ Yohgd g9 dfd! a9 eRR - -
R %I A fREEe AR®! ATH 22%,30%,03% 233,33%,2%
Skl 9GE,19G,36Y 419,%09,4%4
SFFA-4
Ae-fufy SRt DA (%)
DI YOI HeHAURI TS AMGT AGHH [2UESle GR®I au@] A<gHl HeHAuURl oRlel
9 ¥ T 9y I9 ¥ T 9y 9 ¥ T 9y
ST 9G,GE9, 033 9%,G&R, 5 ¥%9,093 2,00%,934 9%,335,0%% 9G,5%9,033
STEA-9%
o a0 e o dur |md I (%)
4 fqaRor J9 ¥ T 9y
9 f$a=r | 9vs - -
2 LEg - -
3 fa<ira d=en - -
8 g (feRvr gorsT) = -
\_yrﬂin - -

4R



RRE‘202°00b Rb2 FRb‘00b bAO\ DERER  OCLERLE  2FL'AORBR  0CH‘READR RBRRLBERL CCRCORR REORELT  RBLERECW kb DI
Kb2REL‘00b RERXbR2EE 206 RE2‘ER EBRCERBL 9bR 2SR bRASERER  ORbOOIR “Bbb RAR‘EOS DR 2bORRE'Rb KRR RRRERL (27
ShER0RE  BhEROR - - - - bhrR0RE - - bbE380'RS R DLloh Lgllalkk)
nERAREE? B200E3%h 30aMEPAR EBRRERRE 2870 ghahEhEh dEaM3R0p  War'Eabh  hpowaay  e33ryord JIESILN
- - - - - - - - : : (b2I0B YEK) hule
227'263" Q2278508 kaR'adEss 2Re‘Ro0f 723355 toa'nen’s  oax3it:  WidEhe 25858888 a2n'oni'ys BRI [Mbk
neR3dat RRobRrE ook’ - $7820% Pakooy  woomdiR - - w20'hE3'R (L8loB laabb]) Rymb kabie
3no'eary o%R200%  0nx'9%% hiR'ee WR2R3GE onashe Y - on?708y  0050739%  lodbhe |RpJK lbbB leb 3okne
2500533 A3RINS o2y - 223280 870'mb0s  v22%ehnRs - 230370 2632024 blblh ROIRID
BRO783EE aroWxEd emaanyy - ago'ang's  koaddior  EoRaR'R: - argoary AR Bhibd| lisD Mkt
as'avroy - - PP VAN S ana'aremg - ROWN22R - R0 W22 bbh
%h37030r  AWREAR7E - - - - KnpEOR2E  mR2AEZ? - b3703a% bljin 9218 4|
Ghibgh D (e b ks 0 g Bb bbb 106 b Bb (of fb b Lo of
| bl InAbb)
ol 2B Be B2 ol o
(@) haor Lok abed)
6)b-

R%o



FFFA-¢
NG T (%)
G = a9 a4 T AN
(Eﬁ) DEBIfGT ST -
9. BRI X PRI MG ITa FRIRET - -
2. T dFer et e - }
3. faom e gecdh fem - -
g ARG ST Ao - -
y fxim dwerer gech g - -
& Ufwd HHiID] AER TR (ST 9. FHIfOM) ¥3 €I RIU IR ¥
o, % dur fRi wRemd IMeR R/fREa=ar 920,868,000 ¢ 2c4,000
¢ I - ,
ST 3R, 3¥YLU3T IRLUXY, %G
(@) P ST I q§ T AN

9. ORI X PRI MG gTa GRS

2 aIST SHdr el fem 9,00%,300,000  ¢££0,300,000
3. oM e gedh [y 3¢%,400,000 ¥, ¥%0,000
g, ARRG S IS - -
y. fRig dwemer geah e 39,400,000 32,000,000
& % dr faxiy wRemd SR IRR/fEa=ar - -
9. TIT dHd! &N U g9 o= A ¥ U3Y ERL  I4I RER ¥
¢ oM dowe @ g1 e e 23,430,%¥3R  43,0c¥,08Y%
Q. foriry weera! &t ura g o e €,3%¢,R30 33 8R¥ Rec
o, I TSI UK g1 &I (fFaRo1 Fors) - -
ST - 9,%%¥,8563,344  1,%¥3%,¥&1,2%
FFGH 99
TRAT S T (%)
4. A Gga P9 dfbd 9 0 WS Y@ TOIR A
? R o FERE @R @929 12,400 234,000 2,3%R,%0% 82 Koo
fadl o0 TP IR ’ ' o '
R :oo W‘s‘z:x':g'c’ T W 8940 F 2,234,000 2,234,000 2,234,000 2,234,000
3 o ogfaw R wer & @1 339 3,%%8,%00 333,800  ¥,00%,3R¥ 3,%%%,%00
fadr o0 TP IR Y ' T Y
¥ mw AL BT 9,05 fom 3,300,82¢ 9 4o %00 U,€R% <R 3,200 %%¢
) fera 3 1. 1 9,450 farl o0 ERACACEC 2,24%,000 ®,¢%0,¢%0 ERECACI

I Q" s sz 20—

%2



R "
\\\\Illm

iy,

i
‘l\\\\

“,

N\

e o

RS syl fadia dwen &, @1 3,362

% R 900 W IR 3,3R¢,3¢0 33%,R00 EANNUEER 1 3,3R¢,3¢0
© TEA PR {6 T 3,coo el qoo 2,]42,%00 R¢0,000 3,%%%,¥¢0 2,342,%00
iR syl facia wwen &, @1 a..%s
< RPaT 900 <@ SRR R,0%%,900 2R%,%¥00 3,20%,8%9 R,0%%,900
? TOS ogfad [ e 6 @1 3,000 3,%%0,000 300,000 ®,432,2R2 3,%%0,000
fa 900 TR IR e ' Y S
g0 O T IR D W Y050 fn R,9%% 40 ¥19% 000 LRAERIAY 3,0%% 40
[e] aTcﬁ W ' ' ' ’ ' ! '
gy IO GTEAR T 16 B g6 ol q00 w¥iRo0  BURLRC0  ¥,€004UR
2R T G PR 16 @ 989,96 Y 2%2,€2% ¢8R 282,28 CRR 292,28 ¢RR 282 €% CER
fT 900 BT WP TRAUF IR T Y Y Y
93 FEfT S ogfad fdi wen fo6. ot R V¥ Koo %0 000 ¥, 3% 13% R, ¥ Koo
,400 ﬁ'ﬁﬂ qoo0 ETcl'ﬁ W ’ ’ ' ' ' ’ ’
9% farsran wgfa fadir wRen & 31 3500 3,2%%,000 3%0 000 Y,39R 930 3,88%,000
a1 o0 TR IR e ’ o o
2y Rora e . @1 3,934 Fetl o0 =t 3,%4g,R00 3¥] 00 Y ¥UR LS 3,%4%,R00
IR
2% Rl Eoreei M Rt 2 20,9%%,000 992 000 000 2% U3 ¥R 20 9%% 000
9,900,000 I 0 TP TG HVS T T o Y
29 o 311'3: 1 oRen sy wrs B 2 29¢ %00 ? 200 000 g, kg, Ree 2 29¢ %00
990,000 N 90 TP FA®G HUS R AR AR 189
%¢ Zﬂﬁ‘ﬂgﬂﬁ%ﬁq = 340,000 #T A0 2,239,400 },400,000 },400,000 2,219,400
Sikaill Q93,¥%3,86%  9G3,GGY¥,384  Q¥RF,EEG, Y31 R13,¥E3,&5%
IR
G 1 (A 2 B 2 | A o4 (w)
3. fdaxor T 9§ T 9y
9 TE A EY40,%0% £400,233
ST TU,%0% 40,233
& Hroara
TSy Jehsen] Aioard 295,043 2%% 243 ¥R¢’2¥
X fom Seewn Asad 20,00 323 R,%84, %8R
foriy Heermsn! woa €)%, cR0 €20, 010
I (faaxor gors) - -
Nl ?49,550,99% 9&3,19\9Y, 349
EA) 95,339,556 9§, %3, ¥GY

RER



I Q" s sz 20—

STIRA-20
o= B I (%)
EAH faaRor I q§ GECL]
(@) <rE®IfT
SIRENICIENCAC ] - -
}  HHARIGIE Holl . ;
3 I (R gorsH) ; -
— } ;
(@) orcudmIfor
9 AfNEHAeR Foll - -
2 HHARIGE Holl ARAA %%, 133
3 (faaver gors) - -
Skl &5Y9,55V9 EREE
TR
37 | A (%)
%4 faaRor I q§ GECL]
9. BIMEE U g9 Sfdl 311 22,42%,33% ¥,433,3%4
. FHoEe UK g9 Sl - -
3. 3 dMPae U g afdl 2¢,2%%,34% 3%,0%%,302
8. gdMGIIC U< g Sfal REL,04%,00%  IIK TIR LY
g fafdg smarh 3,004,334 3R,0¢¢,23R
&  3IH YHEN ¥,%%%,%%% ¥,333,00%
v, FHHAR YT 3]19,4ck 2,384, 6¢?
¢ I YR 28,000,000 R¥ 400,000
Q. R ¥R,2€19,%2% 3%,%0% ¥3%
9o. 3IPe g EIEg| 'GﬁTITg]FcE = -
9 : AP g aidpl dHged Fead! (suspense) = -
99. I 9UR,C4R, 332 23¥ R0 R]E
99.9 31fH #X 32,3%19,%3% 33,433,2¢¢
992 WM R FH R0,3%2 004 20,09 O0R%
993 U dfdl HN I FgEH ¥9,3%3,833 3R,002,0¢%
i ¥3G,51R,049 ¥R, &&Y, 41




HFFA-R
G I A (%)
3. faa=or I a9 T 9y
9. iffiediers a1 dfe 3,0%2,0¢2 20,208 U3
2 I dHdorg fad dfar 2,34%, %9 2,40¢,33
3. gdmdoers o dfer R%,3¢],R¢¥ ]R,00% ¥
8. B AU - -
g dEged RIS - -
& U faeRor Tgoe dHges : )
v. fafey «rg 2%,£R0,23% 2¢,0%%,38%
¢ wERs[Afcey dErer fam dfa - -
Q. HITAT HEI MRUD B AT iy 30¢k, ¥y ¥ %4, %00
qo. T gl wx foe dfa 92,022,%0% 22,32¢,08%
99. Ja1 gob fae dfa 23,023 3¢Y 20,R¥¢,22%
R FHARIGE T dfar 2,0R0,% %2 2,£22,¢¢2
93. AAGHeR o dfar - -
9g. Yol fad dfe am (fisvs) - -
9y I R,£82,08% 2%,33% 4%0
949 R PP (22%,4¢R) 20,%%,0%¥%
943 YHMT faT dfdl ToEe 9,834 %3,0%%
Y3 HHART BT B 22,2¢% 29,2¢%
quy ST Tl 2,R¢R,0R% 2,%23,%3¢%
94y HHAR T3 BN 2,40% ¢3¢ 3,0%% %00
Siaill 9G,03%,98% 190,539, %R

¥




I Q" s sz 20—

AFFA-23
AT SIReH  oaRRn FH (%)
3. fdaxor I q§ GECL]
9 A ST AT SIRgH SIIST K, 0%2,%03 R%,%22,3%%
AHfad DT SR SIRIH ST
G MBI ],333,44% %,63¢,020
? & M4, e €,03¢,020 3,%%¢ 00
gs 3MAD eI 3,%%¢,R00 3,9¢¢,0%%
ST 8,858,441 93,454,055
3 a8 S ST SIREA TSl c3e ©, %%
g HIeX G AT SRIH SRSt 93%,3%3,¢3¥ 2R3 U0¥ U3
y sfEfFERY den SPHaR M SR Sifed STTeT 2%, ¥4, TUY ¢,030,233
¢ fafdy Smrer s SiRew et ¥3,%0%,24@ 39,4%R 202
© IS qAT gYUeNH! SR SHRIH ST 3,¢¢R,R]R 3,330, 3%
¢ oY 2,2%\9 2R,80¢ €3
ST 234,0%0,50%  219,999,39%
YA
3 fQaRo I a9 T 9§
9 IUSEd T de URMBIE @d - -
? AUSBEA T dfd qd HAed @d - -
3 IUBEH T dfe sHET e - -
g AUBEA T dfd) WRFHE IRYBI I Td - -
g o (faaRer goren) _ }




RO DR2ARL  B0RERB G BRL22S Eo2‘OREOb  Sby'e02'¢ee EREL26%°R0 ObEROE0EL RL0°GbEAR  ELEAELRBE 226 BR2‘CRL Ll
- o - o 000'006\'R - - - 000'006'R > (ledbko M M_w.% pok) Rale S
5826k 582’20 - = - - - - bE2'20N 8220 bt [piBlle [923kht bblpbh 7
s0% 308 205308 - - - - - - §05 308 805308 o Dhb b E;M&EEMW
: : : : : : : : : : b (2)
ogt'ory'2d 252 3hsR Eeh'aahol FTIEYE VO T S A I R AT P PRI I TN lleibte Bblp [plbkd (B)
- - - - - - - - - - bty 1RpIR fele e Blble (L) 0
£7n'han's as'aEats - - 50357t - 0875738 ’EA7Wi% Wwhi'har £2% o' lisibte Dhib b (B)
550328 5503288 - - hoh'aag'R - 0%0'230'% - 22k 2R 59028 lisdbho bIbhe I bhh (&)
e
aR3'300'2% 07803t Wy TS VY I A Y - RR23'e Aakeb’a  oportar  argtao7 lipbks Pl [blalble bhdlbl
il § . § . . . . - § lotbte |0 (bbbl Lnlivd &
22352 ab3bohor  Anbhr2%  oeadWaY - - oaathat  wr2Ror'or  2ov'atiop  xeafalb lpbte I [blplRbl iplhe €
Shi 5008 K&027%'84 Kah'ha0738  0aE's00he  SRHEBERA hRWP2RRD &3b2%'00d  Shibeo'ha lsdble MbRlR &
2550t 732" ERRREY'R orR3EA  7%30rat - 2RA'RE'R 25300 ldbte Lllo) [ (20249)) RIK® b
hb Bl b2l hb Dl be b ho Bl bbb bl EL o2 b ho Bl be b
lledbbe |&3) bhid lbiuie |bhb EEM: . %E o ledbbe (Gl hie Ible b ledbke 1boR ogb kg B
ohyl ] Ibble Blo  |plwk | Leehe bble Slb
(@) box lladbbe hule
ote-phbie

Re%



I Q" s sz 20—

LAY

g o w=fya wa aar Aiftss

(®) wm=g 9Rag
IIfdd TR sRIRT $HA fofics Aftiad S aRIIR doared 9 U6 WRGR, a1ty favmmEr
fAf Q0¢/o¢/qaw9 (3 Dec1991) 1 <@l W8 1 AfAfaare A 049/02/99 (31 May 1994) AT YT SolroTd
A zenfoa Riffg TR Yudr FF B | I8 IR IRV S SRS BIRIER, BISHVSH] Xeh]
R | 99 FF el WR e fBas i soR fefices giiga iRuer ° vafea @ 9 den
1 APl i & a1 dfafiare wWigd u R [Afes 9 FaE ST Te JMsIe el
Tifide fRHesd SRe sRIR &9l fofics ¥ 9ifde iR =R~ o+ fofics a9 & fafy
06R MU 9 T IR BTG TRE TRING faficsdl AT Ufdhad IRIR TS ERH] B I 86
HAID] IS PRTGT BISHVSH gh O |

(@) <aEee fifdee fItm e wea
e ¥ ol¢ SEU 9 T IRT 0% MG 3R TATHG! Ao Ak Ay o d7ier darod
fafaer fAfd 00 ATE R T IWDI Jobe TIRT RP! B |

9. fig o AT emREw

T e [t favor yafed §m 8, 9 Femrae deon Sure §91 e SR wua fAsiiaa
1 gawE T dHed ARk faarer awel AR, yafed wE, FRE U9 2063 U AMRIC
I SErRl Rigraee (CAAP) AT B TR 9IRy®! Bl

I FEe fafkr fQaRvr d@re! sifdes=1 sraeReme! RIgI®! MURAT TIR IRG! B |

I FiEers A SUHT AUTe AIcs UdSee ARIEIe WIRI WUBI Nepal Financial Reporting
Standard - NFRS #1 2menRd it fdaror qaR T 9ueie oY a9 Qo0¢/] A1 -ute fafm@
giae=ae (NFRS) meRa gg faft fdaxor qar IRkve & |

(ﬂﬂﬂ'ﬁ'ﬁ MR (Use of Estimates):

e fIaRvree AMMgar 99Hg S@Tdl RIgage  (Generally Accepted Accounting Principles) @1
IERAT & HHID] ATAID] YR T IRAVBIFHY §HRI FaRITS AgAH T 968 | S9a
faf faazor fafor Seow TRueT =Ry, S, S e Tod! IGHES, aRelTee aol aifivd dfad
TRIESS U9E 68 | aRdfde 9RO (Actual Result) SeoRad SigA™ w1 =1 §1 9998 o 9

arifde aRemHET eR =TT Seoed (Significant) Fg1 IgHH © |

2 Rer wwfy dwies iy -
Rer wRies VARG @A SM@uRON (Historical Cost Concept) @1 3MERAT SWISUH! B | HFIS
PGB TR FHURT UG SEHH AFAR SEIHA TRYPI B | FURT UG Tl S RS @9 qH
FAEE R Rer FRRmr §olieror 7 IRyS B |

3. | W&pf Hfa -
FHEpl ReR AEHIREST B $e! &l U6 o@ME 9§ (Property, Plants & Equipment) 3194

FARATIAERT Economic Useful Life @1 SMERAT g¥ahs! ) fAuRor 1 41 <=1 g9ag]l TRua © |
ITHR Yo [T B IPEl aXPI VAN e TRYDT B |

%0



._.“\\\\nm
S

%

()

(@)

()

(=)

Wiy,

My,

FARTY BNIbE! X
I RY %
BfaR den fhaaad ¢33 %
EapICUEILIE] 9 %
HFYCX AT LA YA SUBROT % %
NEISUESIEE] 0 %
HICY FRHEAIR 90 qY

D] I I HRYSR ARCIIRD] BAPE] THGR YOS (SLM) I STERAT TAT 3 FHIRISRD] 214
FE) "eal Hisard yonel (WDV) AT RS B |

oliga TIRY FwREs Tu ) daedd A

FERMBT MY TR . 4,000 W=l AMIDH FTARGE Jollgpd T e T=fva e aim @d
SRaud B |

AR FaRAT I -

JMIFR A, 04¢ THINH FH@ I Y M Pl T 916, IS D] ST AP Favel TR
B | IR faRe IRye! FR ifvad wR wRien geErd tRe 0 9Es |

FHRT ¥ RS IHH I PRGT MR 49 Bk 95 SRART ®UAT ST §1 RH HRals qHd T
T T YD TR JMARIH RAFAT TS A IBHI B | JAE WG (Temporary Difference) 1
HRUIS HHEID] ATHT ATFRIH YHIfad g Rieeess WAH &R SHeMl SEslal B |

FIE dWEH

WHR FTAAYA[FOIFTAT S S@EHA AR

AUTE 91 AR SR R FAfsa d1 <1aa |95 T $FEe TG T Sl et
FGRIPT 01y THIRT ARSHRI FTIAUH/FHOTIFAT TIRTH FIHIG AT a1 WS od 7 gd $H §6
|t g o@rsd T A fO3a B | SIHE If3d o 911 e Jod 9 WUHl KN IBHGTS
TP AR JFAR FHGUID JERAT T 3@TFT T Al 8d] B |

o /fxia el gedil e S dEre@ i

TS T TGRS SR TRDT [ARTas 1 a9 F5a16 T GRS MA@ T S R
T 00y THIRH d@/faxia TRl gedl Feu IRUST SIHer 9Ei IGHH SEEyal B |
gfow fofices FFI®l IRAT &I dwrgH Af:

feed ffice FHIa IWRAT IRTHT FMFSE W 91 T9R o 78 G &F B T S@rsd T
AT foSUD B | e IuD! T TR JoI HH WD AT HH 9UDI IHH T T A
e B aRen R id &awe T A saaw= RIS © |

IH R UG YD TAT S ol TRYD! IBAGTS AR S8 IRTHT B Tl a9 R
AR A Seod N 6 W Jed JEad HRF e RIS 8

Ifsd fofice TS AR RS FHOUFASEAT SHT SEEHA A

Ufesd fSfce G RIS HUUASH S RS JoIHT STz T A [osgdl 8 |

R




I Q" s sz 20—

©. HCE UcTe WHHEGH i
el gam e gwfRy X IREe! < dseae! Jearse auael A g &% SgER T e |dere
TP TREBTS Fce! =1l dAT AThET FHRSE IR T BHl B |

¢ YD ATRF BWEDA A
1 Yoo AR TAfed 91 U, AUTe ST TIEeReel FEeE a9 T Uifdel STERAT Swrsd
T AT e B | R Ae Wi ffd w1 dWged g g o i ufs voan aftesr ffoen
Tged TRl BdErEd W AT fovel B | gadn ®er TRue dHges smemeE dew )
(Accural) SMUIRAT JETFH TRUDT B |

R YA HAEH AT d@EdA Afd
M 9190 UK T HEREST S@IEA & e WK ¥ gAdmdde uw foRad |neeel SmERH
TRPT B |

0. I IN BWEHA AT B A :
S U TS I 3 TGS USG9 Waxd] FGee SR WR®! STERAT U6 fhRma!
1 3 = fRAEH ¥ IcaYdl MMYRAT AT a1 dfshre IRy®! © |

99,  Holl dEEDHT N :

PG HHANIOR HHAN] AT =Iaven YesHINH®! Boll 419 YaH e UHl B | Sh
BBl AT HHARN! FRAFTHATSHT Sod@ ¥U HISH HHIRIEE fose 3MURI B ¥ holldl SErgd el

Outstanding Loan @18 A1 S@RUH © |

R HGRIUA EF Sehre g :
FG FRAUA TAGRE UG 91 UEHRod] o aHIfor WRe! SMERAT 90 Ui 1T e
R derm Qo ufivd wWHoE e SH IE—D! RG] IURAT TAh I I I RAeewT
dfethrs TRUB B |

93. 91 TE YOOI @9 owred AW
JRAfAD YhHID] MMURAT S@IFA T I e RS B |

98. 91 T Sud SR aven dWErgd T

41 S aIIa SR aReN TRT ifdere U STl A, [0 wWRuTs, $ICE dU1 9aRers Mg
TRGHT ARIRIIE YT gfdded g Ufides Ui A9UahT Sdiesd] S T SRewdT Beha TN
T g S1Rd Ifhd T gaen IRTAT B |

RIS WUl @R SIMeRAT Fea@! (Incurred but not reported) ST S/ aMd =Tg oMfdd Iy Afidas
fAfo™T I 1 S TFHRT UK THUDT G | add A1 STYE aEl IBHT FaeRl TRYST B |
1 FREES] 08 FHINTH FHI HTIH EPH! YhAl g id] ad AR HHIAIS Ga RN IRPI &T6l
U FEARATT 94 YA 29 TR 99y GfA9d =gaxen MRUB B |

9y.  GE ATHI Sfehrs T
1 FIAEST TR 991 FaEd T HHID] Gbl Joil SRIER THYEH ATHIDT Yo UfRrd ST HIYHT
TiRY IRTBT © | 191 PIYAT FIRUD! YhHSTs UAD [hHd] dH1 DIYAT A8l B Ao IR
fos dfethre NP & | FV FIER HIEMl TWH B 91 JFD IR YA A1 TR B |

R



._.“\\\\nm
S

%

9&.

90.

9¢.

R®.

Wiy,

My,

AR SueM, fa|r den o= gRen sma wEeen A

PHAR) SUGH A g9 TS TR HHARI fAFEHEs™ T @raeen 9y qHIfor 0T TN @9 s Wiad
T TSR PIF] SIRgeT T [T fogual ® | o06¢ 3 g SUSH aradd! YohiHl T 9 I6H
FAIRTS GREA BT o= T Aifa fogga & |

| faqr IUde FERen YU IHT A HHAR] RfEEeE Scow weeHioM gl oET
IR TRYPT B |

YPprUe SR e Aifd

IHRUS JATFID] B FaRAUTs MR TR GAM IJAR ael T I 1 B |
JAUBET EI BEEHA Al

IS F9F FAIAT FERY TR AW saEs @d d@rsd ™ N Jaew wWH B |

I AifdeE :

I SIREH U aRe Hifa

I U SR IH D] G dHYedhd] Yo U IFHAIG SHREH HINAT | ifa fSTd © | |
T IHD! FIRAT IH JHAT GG I SITIRID] 3T I fReH1 e Sffue] B @) |amfad 9
FARID] FHHT A qY W<l ISP FaRATATS T Sifvd] B |

AUl SArST By

AT S UTfdeRuel deE s dishisal SIfT Sueel AThId! 9o YRR IHH HeTAUfl SHrsT
PIY AT Rl TRYD B |

I P

U I wReRvEe SR fEeE a9 TS dEel eI gerge 4 BV g U YIaee B |
AHT AFAFEIE AP P& ATDBEIE W AIRYD! FR JUAD] IGH FARIGHE g1 IHADI Yo Uferd
IHAGTS TAS TR FATHIGT IR FHIRM diehie 79 AT Bl © |

PR I TRl

GAAP 9T 3R 3MIaR 3ifed! Ga AThT NFRS T SERT MRIHR Jffodl T ATh Wa1 HH WUDHIo
GAAP #T STERT JRIHR AfIHT G& ATHIDI 90 TR §F ST IBH HHAR! ddD] SN ael

TRYP B |

I Ja1 gob

yafed 99 U9 Sg9R §o O smarae! 9 Ufiede g1 §o 94l Yodhdl IGATC JAaadl el
FE TR A IPFGE G Hal Yob RN SE@SID B |

Ro




I Q" s sz 20—

HFFA-2E

i v wefag 3w et Ruiiew

9.  wIfaa IIREEE -

1) GBI a1 Y<HEN g i B - THCSDT |

am) I giegdar (Underwriting Commitments) - 9T |

g) oW AT Wl dREae §E SR Gl WP R §HGe I WHR TR - T |

3) BN I HUAID Thee RIUB RS - TR |

) A (TH AT IR PRGN BRTGIS 3 ax e & sifalRes ax FeRo ey @® e
TRE WHR TR IGT . 92,930,809 B3 T TR@ 3=HTd IWZTH B) |

2 PP T ST SEl 999 SR g 6] SEord IS SRS |

T WRRS F TR U9 TRPT I A5 < URHS QTP GADR! IMERAT AT ae FeiRor
T yafed 91 FEwEed IgUR wREe e ai®! Farad! did) qrdl STl e @ IHHAT
9y TR o9 TR Fawen TRID! B |

3. dWon gl muel Affaar den fQaess - gy 84 |

g wofl, oI o ReR R @i IReP gRwEar gy 8 |

4 BIFRT WNERd SERe 9Re S anpEes 9

3 wRe Rye! wrftre w@ifia U TWgd! : G B |

am  famr IRuST FEfer Yoh U AMTHT : WRh ggu AT 9 U g9 §ffd W g uf e |

& I9 qfR) RYS FIF den fI/feal fouer swier faRer | @ (%)
HRAHT T g RTH &I B fhal TR I B
e fdm aiftrsa & aqe 9,29,£3,00,000 ] %3,00,000
el e Qe 99 38 3%,4,00,000 3%,%%,40,000
gedll 8T B SR AE 3,2%4,00,000 3,20,00,000
yfesd fofics aal /R R,2%,%R,08% ?,32,¢3,%¥%0
RS SN DI S ¥4 3% 2% ¥%,C3,883
o= 3,%% 33,000 -
Sl 9,4%,0%,%5,%\9 9,39,4%,99, M3

0. o Avwm R W gwiia Jo/faiy Serel Redw 9itae REw o aw= a@k
I qen fakm wven @@ fae fom TRafere ¥ Asea 9w U3 ua Aaal B

¢  e[gEmed g Ry de Rue T gwfhya dhe/gdEes) e aftaer R
oM == @RI |
fog fog dfar e a=fua SHe/gAdmasT A fod don fRee oM a1 sraafis T TRuaT B |

Q FHS NP S Y=Efod /1 U, FgaEd) dur AU 91 gifieroEe difet @im )
D!

R?



R "/

S8

BN
‘S

9o.

99,

R

=\ \\\\lmm,,/{//

PHAIG TRPI S T UG WRBR ¥ ARBRPI ST UTal HagRICHT TIRYD ST Fafosd S U,
wEd T ure M uiieRvEe QY T BH IR B | IR HH HYDT I6H a1y Shenl gadl
QM SHI RGP B | IR SHIeTs byl RET &7 et a% JAEaedd 986 TR1 B |

on Gaod 91 GAOHET GHEIg ARP 91 G YUH! HRIER |
T SRS ARGadH! M YS9 R qod, W=l I g gl :

M uq qod, W X I gfawr (%)
FHG A T BRIGRI 31feraa 93,02,¢¢
IWIH q8F §%9 ¥ HIR @I Y TRID © |

P (%)
HaTed ARfae So@ Wl % §0,300
3 |fAfa®! Jod W
o ulReror Afafy 43,400
TS bl den gAfeHr |t 8Y,400
PHAR FaRATYH T HaT I AfAf 38,400
SIREH SgaRMIE qm & |fafa 9%,000
Aok AfAfa 2¢,000
gaaf glgawor affy 3,400
ST 9,%0,000
o o= §,35,00

TERT UeRT WUB BRIER:

®) ydfed FE THIRme 9 TIHURRET TN PRIAR AE WU T I GG GeRl Ih
fofcsar Wl dHYed FPho T FARHS] B WNSTD! Tl FIHET IS 32, 108 IHH
. 4,48,¢3,03¢ ASET TD B |

T) TRE SRR 5 [ofics Wae] dgwh @Il Ied! o, fB 9. 8338, ¥4, 87,
¥QW, ¥R¢ T ¥R ¥ I W AT W9 T NS TR R 9 W 9 ddle T
AN e 9 BACSHE . 95,00,00,000 AT fH NPT T |

THS A FURIS FRev™T foud Fore fBar, ol qen ey gy g |

IHS PR Gebl TAOOS U IRDT AT T Gebl TS U §9 §fal S 9 X Al
AR T Afted! JMATED! TR GIRGFT A U7 IE WP T T AL 9 A YDA WD G |

FHHAG TG SMMAD aud] B F. ¢,29,06 R TGP BN AT IRPI B |

IOI IRAMT HATGIS 37 4. 0§¢[6R BT v dx RuRY Tef Friiss FHaRiewas 0YVS Ao
T UG TIRTSDT FART FeED! (819, FIRI 9 &R, 99d, 991) @9 a3 fafi= e
TR ®. Q,3%,3%,483 ®TS SMIAT Y FAY (Add Back) & FHHIS Q1A TRAI AT 6. 19,¢R,36,3%%
IR B Y42,68,04y AT RIfAT TRRATST e fAvgd TR@T JRRaEGIH SR fHaed IRy®! © |
Y G, 31 B AB QYVS AT I HHe FHARISESTS UGH RG] HaRI HeH SMed 3= =
RIVHHT ST 6. 9,80,84,¢9 3YS YU BT PRGN HRATGID] AW [ARGH TARIGRI JRIGSIHAD]

ROR



I Q" s sz 20—

@I Fdes IRTP! B | IH 37 9. AT BT PRGN HATGIS AH FRadfe qh off~ad wx AR R
AN IRP! FS DA . 9,00,94¢ T HFIAIG 37 d. 003/98 AT YThHl TRADD] B |

TS BREMT PRTGISG 37 T R08%/6o Bl <A IR FER 16 Fe FHaRgwes 0YVS TSl
I UG TIRYST FaRI AE®T BRI 991 @d oed o =1 Rfewr wdee s/ T saa,
. 31 IR, IAH PR Bfe T PAY . 2,68,89,6¢3 . 0,86,638, . 4,§8,36¢ IMARTH IR FGROT a1
B | TN R dhadl AfNH wR uRer I gwal aee S Foliel fawg smaRe e
fUrM™T TR gRAaES S Fded RS 8 | . & & ¥ AW FR B d% AW TR
PHY . 0,8,638 I W, Y4,68,36¢ TH HHIG M. 9. 008/0y AT YhI IRTDH B |

BT IRQM HRTGAS 3N G 000/0q BT AfTH B R ™ 4, 31 FR I AIH &= Hfg T® F9Y
fREROT TR IHH . 3,9%,690 I . 4¢, 060 TH HFIAIG AL 9. 0094/0g AT Yl TRADD] B | AFH
am YR YUPH THHAD H. ,36,¢6,640 3T T o6y/us AT YhMI TIRADD! I dfel FHuiRa wH
PR dE AT X TG [IgWREl USRS St MURel [9%g IRG Ieid MR geRre
JREAGIGEID! SR Faed Rya & |

ALTAEIRIT PG HIRATGIS 3. 9. 0099/9 BT 3ifvad wx MaRor T 7, 31 = a0 FuRer Wal 59
. 8,99,3¢ T HHAIG AL . 004/0g AT YhHI TRTDDI B | AHI qAh AIHAT FAY TRYD] IHH
. 3.8Y4,84,3R PHAN] A FaRel], AR AREHB] HReb X PHAR] TSl 3 ol gopal T9UdIe I<h
o) fawg IR® o I TRIGR JiRaebd! S faed IRe & |

AR TG BRTGIS M. 4. 002/03 B 31~ Fx fgRer IR 4, o1 = dn FAaRer war wdq
/. 8,39,244, BHANT TS AT T% YR TRBT IHH . 90,3R% & gl dh HURI TRBI IhT .
4,93 868 X OYVS Scheme % fEROT TRPT RebH &, 9,44,6% HHAIS 371 & 008/60 AT Yehr-il TRADDI
B | AP Th IMMIAT FATIR TRYD! IHH . 8,89,38,330 BHARI dIH FaweqT 3 AR TGP TR
o ghal TIPS Y, 1 IR d® FNERT W E 4,.82,082 oA R RIS S FAoiaEwn
g ARG oA fAMRMT TRRIGR JRESIGTH] S Fded IRy®! © |

TEITRRIG PR BRTGIS 3N 9. 003/98 BT i< B FERer IR 7, 31 HR qh FERT Rl 157 =,
Q98 REW ¥ HHARI TS 3 T R0 TNDT IHH &, 38,499 fIqT Yo aoh FEROT TRPT IHH ©.934,¢¢9,
HHIRID! 991 ¥ IRIRTS <l arad Yo a ERY IRT WA 6. 4,49, 4*RQ, W W&l I AWl @ ah
3 R B B Yo RO WP IF9 ® 9,83,¢ X APH FR Pfe FWFA TRYDT R GbHl TP
fERT TR IBA . 9¢,68,9%4 TR @ IBH IR Bfg Th R TRPI IHH F. 09,08,338 IS 3. 4.
R0¢ [0} AT YeHI TIRADBDHT B | PR Th MR TRYDI ATH SR AU 2T ATPR IPH . 9,83
R,y VI3 dIdbel BaRITG g TRITAT X [AERUT HUDS qex¥r A I AP TXb, HHAR] dd
AR qUAD! IHH Al T FHAI THIDHG S daxdN IR [ER ¥ FoRswn 0wg saRe IoRa
R TR gRE®ES! B Fdes IRY® © |

HHAIG RA®H IH 000/9¢ FTHDH! PR FHT TAOMS U< IRAHD] & |

93. Tl R Fgemd! IRATT I HROT

i a¥ 00¢leR AT fbell TRYD! [FHIGeD . 4,23,50,20% (SETHUT U BRIS TE BT AUS! TR
s 9Y ek AF) WH B | 9 I quae! X6 fhal e eRY S SEIRY, ¥HU [E gy
I YA U G, 13 Oeleg, SIRed Oelsg, Ufaqud e onf] ed o+ |

8. IOET g1 @ TEP [FaR0T : BE VA |

9y, gB Yot W AW Bl WK (Paid in advance) Y<bIl U<l g9 df@! (Call in arrears) X St
RGP W g: FAspreE TIRgST WRS R[awor: 38 87 |

95, oo Bes THURMT 19 a9 ¥ I9 99 @Y (Amortization) SRITH IHFH! AR BE VA |

3



\\1]
._.‘&:\‘\huu',!{/(///

B e T TR
R~ fafacs

qu.  FENRAT YUHI TS devdl HRERS] a0 AFGARE DI A(S) TAIRTH Al |

9. ifticwl a¥ER GEYd SFEF GU Wuewedl gege fdavv : Jfftest e quswn] IR,
A FRBE T H, 3 FR AUT . 34,46,06¢ TG B I AHT A BeAaH wd Rawat w |

R JNEEE, TH A e, a7 Ty Fuw emde R fAwver 339 7 Qe ™ owas
g9 TN o IEwe Afues e e B |
FRl g Yot aenm iy goft -
fafdy 200 TR 29 (4th May 2022) 0 THBI IF HHID! 0 3N I ARV THS BB BIIH
TP Gl Goll . 9,9¢,3§,08,800 AT § URIRITH! &R AR TR TIRI TR RN | Ih a9 IRR 42
FHEAD] SIRT Gl Yol 6. 9,24,86,20,668 PIIH WDl B | H¥IP! ff¥Hd Yol . 3,00,00,00,000 ¥
SR Yol . 9,34,86,0,668 XD B |

DI NPT BN awe :

F) SIHER WRe AGH @ R Jod $H g1 TNel AURY JIR | Tals arad =1 S
P FaRAT RS © |

il

B Favdl YhH (%)
TR oR% SR 6. o, §,34,%0%
foie sgfaa i wen fo. 20,3%,93%
Ries & $ex3Mo fo. RE,R3,%0%
fRatea o 3. R¥,03,23¢
e wyfda faxia wwen fo. 2%,R¢,C0%
g BT . 9%,%0,cc0
RN wgfa faxia wwen fo. 9¢,09, %%
Twe eyl faxia w@wen . R¢,22,232
e Ols 3R &, . 20,01 2%
IS EAR B, . 29,30,843
e S sgfaa i wRen fo. 2%,00,03%
fasran eyfa foxia e fo. R¢,¢3,830
fRram R fo. R¢,03 K%
Ry ea< MY Rad 2 ERTARTAY
o amg R g Ao wus ERCIAR 224
T RS HUS 9 4,0 400
S 3,09,0%,G¥Y
Q) ERINA N X 3 BRUG AU MG §ho HRAB! IR [0 Hrei 8ol Fauers aven
TRYD B |
B Bl fofics ¥ 3,08,¢43

I PV FSHIS TRYD THH
yafed 91 FemEe 9o/ gg At yo ufrerd dH1 SyAT |AIRTST © |

RO



I Q" s sz 20—

WE R TR (SRQ)

faa=or T ¥ (%) T Ay (%)

Rer wwufy (¥3,42,0%R) (w¥, 4 cok)
fda1 qen Suae sgawen 3% %¢ 304 33,00,694%
HHRUE AT Ja=ed] 8,0 %25 4,23 E9%
SIFMA] eR] R2,43,%0% €,¢9,R¢9
FHAR! Tod qId Al €,23,0%2 %,23,0%2
AHf® TP SR SIRgT aTad eaRel 2¢,2%,0%¢ 30,419,232
WM R TR (TRE) R,03,%¢,001 2,00,9%,0%%

famra anfder q¥eT ST=HT YBd! WNH B FHRI . 9,00,03,038 AT . 9,0%,6%,043 WNF &x Sire! a9
3. 9. DI ITHT W B TR 6. 2,03,89,008 SHISURI B |

0.  Yoirm @9 :
TRE R $ [SAcss diEeT IRe! 9aq gl oW, & 4. ag3o I 9099 I STagel
TRE RN $H fofics F9del g T I8d] X | SR ©IFY Moo §hreg o
W S w9 A wuE geies sl B
Al SO HFED WA AR S BISATS] HEMIRUIGHM Fad &di TR A0 g& IRy
BTEE U | WaTd! T U WUH B | BI6 T @d HUB! YThH ®. 9,30,66,%44 SolTa @i
[OET BETFA IR IRITDT B |

30 g 2099 @1 HHMA@T S SohamGeni Software RITUAT T @] Tl ot o fg9 <fos

FAHTR T {3, FoR, IR @18 A= & €. 9],88,888 YohFl SUGE TRISTHMT Alfbyd] FTHIHT

U SO B S A9UDIS Al IHH TG T U §Oi TEel wuEl aErsd IR IRaual © |
0. IEeaH AR 9w o

FHARN FHEtd A folad gese s|eaa [EREE Bel JeR1 THaRl RS |

30 g 2099 @1 HHMA@! SN SohamGeni Software WITUAT T & Tl ari s g7 s

TheR UIfes, FToR, YRd a5 (A= G . 98,838,888 YThFT SUGE IRISUS] X AlbTD] FHIHT

|l BRI goT wUA GO AHTH] FEEH Thliod Tgd SRIGR] Abqgaers feeT JETeadT g1 SRR

UPI X Ih gl 8l G U RN /v 5@l © |

R PG TR AT FEfdd §ET UF, FREES 9 qute S5 aiiiexvEe. aifey 98I 8 ARE !
FHFAIG M ST 7 ScoRad s18d Jafed dE U4, Aaamae don Jure §91 uifitexoEe difey

THINH D! B |
IS

DT THR PH U S foRr Hithad
gfererd

e WeRel (It e B . o <AFee Resiar g

EAREE EIKIG] 3T

Rk



\\1]
.0‘&:\‘\:“'"'15{'/'////

IR ferfaes

B, U e FEAl s T SRR gewe e foficsw Rwar s

T FAIG S SATG AUTe GG B fSAcsHT TRemue TR a19d &, 9§,9¢,96,¢64 ¥ SR
e Aue foficsa IR 9Ud F. 99,84,000 Yol SIM RS B |

2w yafed 9w FHEs SHIM a9 Iuel Ga AThEIe TR TRST Yo IR IHH &, 8§,90,9% (T
qY B, ¢,193,9%,900¢) ST HIHAT AIRTHT B |

. Aute AT wifSeRure! A 2009108 lo¢ TR URTT IHINH fa<ia faaromr e A= R sraeid
dfeHieH BN SUGE IHABI 0 YRR FRIAUN SHISHI gearsyg U1 fAaed sHIfvM &, 8,63,093
qRIfAw Bvdr AIRT® © |

¥ IHEITE SIREIRIG DY -

A GBS RN R T FERP1, 004 BT TW1 4o T JFJAR ATHIST 9 FfiRa Hd
. 45,59 dehie BT BRI 3T BT ARDI B |

. yafed M VF IHINH Gearsy U HHAR] JaN Jae) WRgd f2are @1 IRyST 89 |
Y. U @i

B G SMMAD D] B ST FaRAT TRD B |
R g affieRer qen g W}

IME qH®! YHHEEHIS IMILASHAT AR Y: affiexor qen g=: FyfResor TRysT & |

Ro%



38k bet Y 7% 0% DLRDJA biofls feholp B2
200 $0°0 200 go'o R0°0 blaRlK It E_u.cm Ew@w beld mmw\:mw_u/. Ewmw»w_._u_% Eww_p lbl> ht
g0 Ry 400’0 400'0 x0'0 BIaP| 2R [GRQLbly |3 khid kb Diflak (GBI [ddk Mblpk kb B &
021788 20%'303 20k 3n'0% 23b'nh TSNS t2p ORIk (63 bhlb 0b &
870 sbro 730 W0 seo DLDIK 2R lolplb ok Lok bb beflak lepb b b pok e
38700 X%t 5373h 2t "hog 7%73%% bRDIK by bl [odk plwk/bey b kb b§ Pk b2
532803 528050 ik 'Eh3 ?27%'0%% 220378 @ 2R pleho/ph plohd o
Wl 3303 27'33 053 2843 DLRDIK R bhibph ploke b
ox ' 3 3t K& lca)ty 2R [bkalRld b
gt £5e oy 2 503 Bk 2R Ploke  6b
os o 2 0§ i Ik 2R ol by 3b
00 Y 8%’ 35 RS DRDK ®Rlbp 0b[ph Relbh Pl by hb
3878 Y 0% '73 20753 R5'03 DRI @Ry 0blok bhiiblo &b
2R 30ge tEe 23T 22°R% DRBIK wfRibipbh Obfkle blbje bipbh  Eb
Eh'RY 5308 12703 2t 820} DIRDJK g ) blbo bkl Dlblne 3 bl b
b2 A0 ah'’A2 R 28472 aR'Ey DRIK Db 0b[@oRiblp 0&  bb
a9 ISy a0t 8%'8 T DLRDIK wfRiblp 0bflalb 2B ob
oR'aE CERH A 250R 203 DRPK @ofinlp 0b[woRiblp 2B S
3073 ni\'oh 28k 35 %% 20'03 blhfie (0ney 3d) binfle [pialie Rk 2
0ok, %20 24R it 00R' a (Sdd) Rk Mok bla DK 6)
- ee eR? - - a2 (b Brlp) (Sd0) Bl el DK 3
0o 36°R3 SR h?'E 8888 © (Sd3) blle delz BIK h
7non’sy 2527530 AR 2R3 202 Eh3'%050% 333525k Q ok 2B 8
YT 3578 32 1272088 557308 Y b [pldgf dpl DI ¢
80X"3R0' %} RR0'3E7'33 00t '3k 0 $28'528'08 003t I2p 2R Ml &
obghI N2 00392570027 arrRi200d  3%2MmaMol ra'tho'ton ey b2k b
%6 /260y 26 /660 9m.<w.90w 26 /heoy e /R0 \ laabbj "
b le
() b ik

o Lehbie

R0



frrsfiar & sxeam T gt AT A TR ATITaEEh! Tl
AT q. R0\95 /09 T ATAATART STLTTHT

IpH (%)

. ¥ Furd "Iy MLSiES 2005/}

T IIEREDH URGE™

¢ o [ETgedHr gl 2,308,33% ¢cco 038 33 3% 2%.%¢

R ge fanrged i ¥¥Q,3¢,6EY  ¥R0,430,%0% 0%

3 I gfg 9,€R%,0%¢,£C% ¥.0%

2,8k ¢,00% 3% Y

LG AR (1 o o) B

¥ Yol X Qe o= |RIRieT g 9,3%¢,c?,33%  R,%¥%%,303 <R wy.ce

« g faurges ¥ Yol srgua X¥],RCH,0%%  2,3%¢,€e?, 33U IR

¢ EIE SrguT 9,49¢,%0% 338 400,000,000 3.9%

T FERT JORER X ol AT

C ;;;T TR S T Al ) G S 300,33% 4% R ¥%%,30% <R gR.33

¢ IRAT MUHT A I GE ST FHIRT ¥3,%%¢, 432 R,¥R¥ 303 ¢er .9l

] WH ﬁ\_ﬂf_;m:ﬂwﬁ 9 X R g o R%L,04%,00%  £20 LT U3 PERCEY

9 gTEm X defga

g0 TR WIREH ¥R U ¥¥Q 3¢, 6EY 2,309,338 cco 39.%0

99 jﬁ!—dﬁéﬁﬂw Rort < a1 A afer 1@l yre PUANNCL Y P2 RR0,%¥%3 %20 R0%.]R

§ @d gy

23 TME U 4R%,0¢2,%20  ¥Y©L,32%, %Y 230.3¥

23 U @Y Igu %% c4,30C  ¥¥] R LY R.%¢

2% HAID AU (2u4,3300,4¢)  ¥¥R,Rcl,bRY (3¥.4R)

R S T G (B R T 93) - ?¥0

2% o JaRAUT T X /O [AAYD 29,408, 84¢  2,R02 33F ¢co 2¢.22

2o AU YeEE @9 I Gg dMged 9,24%,2%¢  ¥¥R] ¢H,0%¥ 2.4%

9 oI X gliee

2¢  BIMERE - X Ga dHged 23% QBT RBU  ¥¥Q RCL LY 30.0%

g2 o ufiwe ©,89%,2%0  2,%¥R2,3UG,RER 0.%0

Q¢




996998288 ‘Rb  BIZCRARRBE0D  BOA'292bRRDBE  2RIVEA0BE0AE  AbE'AAR0AQREE  REE'CAMRRR03E  ROALOL BER ‘9bb Ll
- - 000005755} - 000005755} - 7% - lbip B 7
n3R5R0°%83 h33'082'ohg 5059053 T SIIRYIY KORDRE b3 200 h3 %50 hpo's A whldh kb (@I 6
500003 E0b3h  233%E0M02'5E  WARPRBIRPR 302%323%3EN2  w2othr'obimoy  Sgboxd’angmid  33hR SRE0 Belel 3
RHEARD2R 00RThEDI0D AxaVe870a%h  AxE033R30%E  Ra3ReModn ROZPBREIVE ou: Reke Sykblinas  h
222%RoMeag  202E3R AN RE  E93Uo2Mmeoloy  0BR'RB3E20%E  dRhmibonmi3  RREBRARAR'AE  0n3'od hogs? 2l 8
208428'% 23035 2632783 27%85'873 000'3%70% 0002047} ) ¢ sba ¢
7623%%4007 2032020 SEh7nrEashe  ordhaROED:  23o'mhahRxRr e 7eRoosaE kit 0810% mwﬂ.m._.r/. e
B0207720% 20 R%7%0R7%R0°%8  R53m0003n%0  Rgh'hiothhAs  630707MAR70y 20ROk EBR'ARE bR Knyh ele b

kb Dl kb Bp kb Dl kb Bp kb Db kb Bb kb Db kb Bb
$Slklp S2klp E2hp o Bl (63 hble Ry Ll Rt
e e e e s
(@) har bl sl

RO%



\1J
ity

: Y
@ TR
R~ fafacs

T T S fafaee It anftie et awmane

JA= T AT qIeA

TH Y P (@) T (1) FEAD Gohd EE

Afdpe! awern

e saven

A YU BRI

(@) e o S w.
R3IRR.36,000 (B T3
34 USH R SAFAY
B BN ORI
|I) g8 | U R %
o0 (T WA) Bl &S
BRI (38 e
T B AT BOIR
T F FAECo!) YR
IREr fawifog IRy
B, @ g don Ul
223RR.36,000 (B T3

(@) FONe o o %
2,30,94,34000F (% 3%
G M RS TR B
i &9R) gl Ul
IR H. o0 (VH )
B WS 2,30,94,340 (3
PRIE T B T BIR
U9 ¥ Y9N) 9RO
IR fawifdg Rwe
B, W bl Yol e &
2,30,94,3y,000 (F Tg
I TN R TR B

PEAIG M G 00¢[oR B
AGEE dFY IR OUSE I
HYPTS |

3G TSH IRIG SAH i &9IR) o |
@ BN BOR A
) T |
fraamaefaT gem
o & @ (@) IR o
Aifdee awern NIIEC I EE) O T U BRI
&(@) PO ANGHT Toll % | §(W) FEEd AfGd Yol .| FHHe Sl d 00¢[ow] B

4,00,00,00,000| (F/. UE
3E) 1B | HEED SR
Tl % 2,23.8%,3§, 6001
(¥ g od WEHW e
ST B B gk
| ) g8 | @Y g
ol w5 2,23.8%,3§,6001
(¥ g od WEHW e
ST B B gk

|| w9) 19 |

4,00,00,00,000 (Qr_) ug
3d) g8 | HHED SR
Tl ®. 2,30,34,34,0001-
(% g5 3@ TN INe
Ty o e ER)
giel | g ol ufe
2,30,94,34,000 (& TE
G TN WIe T B
i g9R) o |

FAGEE A9 IR Y& T
P |




Qq}ﬁ a1fiies gfaac 00¢ -0



il ll,////

':.‘\\\\Ilml,"‘ %,
@ T R
R~ fafacs

map3, f51.9.31). T 9%, BISHTEL, ATl
BT . 4840R%0, 484089

AN ure I uideRvEe e a¥ Qouclow] B TIRNE REGTT ORGSR HF
foficea it faror Raaxlt gamar wwewd TgeR:

9)  WidERvEe SR AT 06108109 @ F. 9 B uRUTHT R AT R AR IR, @muR yags,
fas= e TER YR R 3ifWedl o Ridew @d T wgaen fReEe B |

?)  Aviation Assets Management Company are fod o= fR¥ma =T ©R19 ST agaxen IRdd1 8 |

3)  OiReW eRemud Ao TWEER! gaed UbeRvEae IR SR aee §Ety AniGed
TARM®! T 3] T8 |

) TR GRS IHEER! g 8 ARG R JUTSiers gge T ARl RS |

) IMIR® FRI=v YUMSId! ATIHae SRgATS S 1 &1d1 YobMl UfBATals 3 YMIIHRI as-o |

&) OUREPS NGl Dithadewsls Jq: QRN Alad faeded Fqeel Aam-o |

) WIRRUEE 3. g 00¢low] BT AR farvr Raga wgad! go fdF i o dERor @w1 |9

RIS |

ReR



I Q" s sz 20—

(ferava= Zat aan fswmem fFamTER 093 1 W 33 1 Iufaw () T avafeem)
Tl T SO &, ToT. &3 &, 2095/ 0\9% T aATiHh Tlciaed

.  Haee affae ufided: aiffie deRe wvrel ufiided So B

2. DWNIEHD! GRdeT: HFEID! 3N 9. 00¢[/oe] P FWUKIEHD! Yfaded T © |

3. SEWRET Wuel AR faeRer s d afifiae Raga woal 39 $AIPT 3. 9. 00¢[owR I
@i w1 ARk fdaver de= ter et st |

g BIgl HRAE G faRon
(@) T9 G Sl WA qRE FHED! [AwE F OGS TRR THUDT |
(@) HUHAIDI ARRAUG 1 FAGHS a1 WRAUS I WAod [06g Jafed FIHd! ae a1 HisiaR]

IR RSP FHAT B J&l TRR A9GDT |

(M) @ FAOD a1 FA0d [Awg IS AURY TR FEEHT B JEl TRR A99DI |
4 HEED IR PREAR TAT TS ey

(@) a i avAT AU ToRA HHEIP] TR GRIAR AR HOAT HUHT <Ras | Bdms gore
YD IAR FSTAD] AR AFAR IH HHID] IRDT HoIH1 Ui Y9G W] HAGLIITH] faRSHoT

B |

(@) A a9H GIS AARIG AT T FFAID! IIRDT HAH, RAGH T IR o IH A1 HS
PRIAR A I {S HRAR a7 FHEHER & |

g IR cel 00 €2%.00 T4k, 00 23,2%.00 “o

Qs IR VLY. 00 “R%.00 B3k, 00 %,203.00 ug

IS RIS L. 00 “%¥.00 4’340 ¥ 334.00 te

AN A9TR® 4¢g.00 %¥%¥.00 %0000 ¥¢,9%%.00 93
&  9ARm T gAR:

(¥) deal RIRBRIG HRU FAO TaH gl |

(@) ora=er yfoRaet |

(M) A FEE Sl B |
0. HERIT gur:

TRATI G BIIH IR B Fqd g TP B | WY AN G BIIH A B0

B FHINH $HEH T G NI B |

(@) wawe affy, dm @, f FeEEd Jon fee erE ¥ M Powerier A qen
fdeee! o do IR W gemaaers FRRR dTodiel o1 SaTed affa den gawend
Picadg © |

(@) omRe® g=Ivr yomell aRerd & WY oM=IR® Sl URIEvl T4 aee IR B |

ReR






I Q" s sz 20—

AN Aure I yideRvEe e a¥ Qouclow] B HIE TRET sTRRE HAl fdfacss fafkm
faaor Raghl §a@ IWeed UGTR:

9)  dWed WA gUTHd gty AR, 008 B SHT Y9 (B) DI AT JTAR HHARISED] GETdl
Jffgftad a1 Tdd av Aftredl ofdes ave @ FHAR! Wadl BRAT 2 YRR 6T HHARIDG
aifed den o=l e aIft @9 IREs |

)  uiteRvEe SR AT 206RI0gloq @ . 0 B uRumd! R i &R fify IR, @UR - yads,
s den yER R R SiffEdl o) ReHr W araRen fAersas |

3) g3 AT IWEYST WA o dife e aenfiie oo SW T ufEar Fe) 9eses |

g) IR aReud Affiers gMEeRN g9sd USeRUae ORI SIREW SIdReud R JRTEeE
THITHAB! BRI FTS! deBD |

4)  BEERIET FARSE THEGR] a8 MRS FE=01 YUdiers gge T aawe R\e |
&) OTNIRG =01 Yoneid! ArgHae SIRgATSdd de S Yohil UfBarars 3nh TWaaR] aisTs |
0) BEIREDS MNP BhATEEdS J: SRINT Alad IAaeTD Faw FaTo |

¢)  UI@RTEE 37 4. ouclok P fARm fdavor Raga wwal go o i aiffe AERo w1 w99=
RS |

Re



;\‘\t.‘.b'.',”//

C

Agency Trainning Agency Trainning

Agency Trainning Agency Trainning

Distribution-CSR Futsal Game
Inaguration Ceremony Inaguration Ceremony

RE%



I Q" s sz 20—

Semi-Annual Review Meeting Inaguration Ceremony
Visioning Workshop Inaguration Cerermony
Visioning Workshop Leading Together

Joint Budget Meet

R\



Re¢e



9. B Y2
YT T SUITET HRTGIED

faeresor A, FgAFEN e- U, fRIETR
biratnagarl@hei.com.np, 033- 409y

fRIEaTOR 74T, 7= qd, fRIeTR
biratnagar2@hei.com.np, 033- y9¢a3o

faafalls Fu, wegR-s, Rdme
birtamod@hei.com.np, 023- ygolcw/ ygocs3

QHS A AP ¢, TAD
dammak@heicom.np, 033- 4¢8R¢R
faresoR. gevea TRfo], e
biratnagar@hei.com.np, 029-ygyxi9a

TGl JUHRTTRYIIGI, &R
dharan@hei.com.np, 024-43%950

3CE Sl SUHEIRUIIG®I, STas!
itahari@hei.com.np, 034-4¢362%

edl TRUIfSS 4, gedl

duhabi@hei.com.np, {¢80403%¢

AfTOIRE UIfeTahT 5, Brpsx
kakarvitta@hei.com.np, R¢4R6433%

Aforea? TRUfGHT 9, TR
pathari@hei.com.np, {¢yRECu%EY

fsfeer . deyd, drRR
panchthar@hei.com. np, R¢o332683%

Felld YUY 9, TOH
illam@hei.com.np, Q¢o23RERIR

2 HEY W
I T S PRIGIES
IS 7AW, AEATR §
birgunji@hei.comnp, o43- 4Yy3&E
daist A1, SR q0
birgunj2@hei.com.np, oya-43903%
forage Rt 2, AR
simara@hei.com.np, oy3- 4098
STADYY STAGYRYM SUHSTTRYUTIHT
janakpur@hei.com.np, 089-82044g

TGEOTINGIYGY T=YY TRYTSHI
chapur@hei.com.np, oyy-ygooo3

FIglol TRUT(G®1, BIE
lahan@hei.com.np, 033-4g084

Iolegadld, ITSIfARTSl
rajbiraj@hei.com.np, {¢y2¢39080

Wﬁ;ﬁ, IER-UNCH
lalbandi@hei.com.np, o8&-4R00¢(
FAA SUHGTTRUISE, HAT 9
kalaiya@hei.com.np §¢ag3y¢cyo

FRTF OO, EIGTT
dhanusa@hei.com.np, 083-4] 9o

OUR NETWORK

3. ST e
I T STNE FRTGIED

AWRHS 99, HTEATL
ktm@hei.com.np, 03-y28400

BftraR-q, FIoHTS!
hattisar@hei.com.np, 09-8888990/88840]0

IS e, BT
uttardhoka@hei.com.np, 09-8883804883394g,

JMaTg 9, THAD, BIGHTIST
gongabul@hei.com.np, 03-834408%

eftardt #mf guRge, ATg- 28, HreHTS!
gongabu2@hei.com.np, 09-8358495

TS HIOHTTS!
newroad@hei.com.np, 03-833%43
qIOIYAT FIGATIS
baneshwor@hei.com.np, 03-8%33¢y
HAERISTIIST HIGHTTS!
maharajgunj@hei.com.np, 03-40¢ Y483
SIRUIA, PreHTST
jorpati@hei.com.np, 09-83419380
HIAAE HroHvS!
kalimati@hei.com.np, 03-83g06209
AT FroHS!

thamel@hei.com.np, 09-g303009¢

ST -93, BATGR
alitpuri@hei.comnp, 09-483038&, Y¥REOLY
GoErzl

lalitpur2@hei.com.np, 03-443930l
BIFACR FHPR
bhaktapurl@hei.com.np,09-663]620/§63%130
FeTERl HYR

bhaktapur2@hei.com.np, 09-40834309

TRGEE H1Y
banepa@hei.com.np, 099-ggogoc

GICECICCE o

banepa@hei.com.np, 099-§§320¢

Ao TR

narayanghat@hei.com.np, 056-598249 / 598259
It e

parsa@hei.comnp, {¢g4yoy3ga

8IS ORI TS

hetauda@hei.com.np, oys-4Rol9y2

feyett wo ToR, Ry
sindhuli@hei.com.np, o89-yo83y

AT @reTs 99, Bfoage
payangaun@heicom.np, 03-4463%83
A TR, FowE
melamchi@hei.com.np, {¢goyooRay
dar, Ryuredis
chautara@hei.comnp, 099-60240/{62028§
AR FISAIE!
chabahil@hei.com.np, 03-889¢]¢o
dhading@hei.com.n, {¢4303&330
TR FaDIC

nuwakot@hei.com.np, od0-ygogag
ATGTDIE, FIGHTS!

thankot@hei.com.np, 03-839883¢

T AT STIET PRTGIEH

TS IR

pokhara@hei.com.np, 0&4-430983/4303¢?
AFAA YIERT 0, SISTHHM
lekhnath@hei.com.np, oa-4¢3¢¢

FIarEfd FEM- 2, SwEad
kawasoti@hei.com.np, o9¢-4899%Yy

geclordi®, IFgS . b,

baglung@hei.com.np, o&¢-430¢ 80

gl &g HI1, 961 986 -
damuli@hei.com.np, o&4-4&4&¢3/4846¢%

el Rt
gorkha@hei.com.np, ogg-430033
FATSST ST TS, aIfors
syanja@hei.com.np, Q¢8343¢389

y FheT yew
TG AT SUNET PRTGIEw

TGRS, JeIo SAALL, ¢, PAoTdd
butwall@hei.com.np, 093-432%%

gead SHAM, §, IR
butwal2@hei.com.np, 093-839268/830260

AU 3. H, AL, , GERIS
nepalgunj@hei.com.np, o¢3-434090/0¢9-434940

dié e 9. 99

kohalpur@heicom.np, 0¢3-439£2
fgrefeor 1. ¢, TREVRN, ¥Rear

bhairahawa@hei.com.np, o93-499%32
AR FreHE A Se, ToRaT 991 o
bardiya@heicom.np, 0¢3-4§3¢%

HRTEl SHATL, |fRg I AN 9y
dang@heicom.np, 0¢R-4§3¢R%

qeiige IHA. €, JogR

tulsipur@hei.com.np, R¢ycgcooo

Feaeg ReRma 7. 91, F=rar

chandrauta@hei.com.np, R¢yso3¢o3¢

Terefl, FaeTge
parasi@hei.com.np

§ BUA! Yo
T AT STEl PRTGIEH

dRegeR AT, IRTTR - §, FORS
lamki@hei.com.np, 0¢3-432450

RE AR A1 9, T AR
dailekh@hei.com.np, {¢yco6E33
FICNBIE HH, BIOPDIC
kalikot@hei.com.np, ocis-8g03%0
F&Ea IR T4 %0, fo7g
chinchu@hei.com.np, ¢8¢308Ry¢

6. ggR-uRRem T
UG TAT S PGS
UGGl . A, UL, ARIS, TS
dhangadi@hei.com.np, 0%9-433%4y
FAZTGANIR, FHFITYR
mahendranagar@hei.com.np, 0]R-4]009¢

HGRIGT 3. H. UL, S - ¥, Al
attariya@hei.com.np, 0R3-40g30



\\\\llllm///// -%-H-Ia-q:l- m Thapagaun, Kathmandu, Nepal, 01- 5245090, Fax: 01-5245099
ktm@hei.com.np, www. hei.com.np

s fafaes TRam ¥ e e afe faeara




